
Thursday, January 31, 2019 AGENDA Page 1 

 

 
P R O C L AM AT I O N  

C AL L I N G A S PE C I AL  M E E TI NG  O F T HE  
B E R K E LE Y C I T Y  C O U N CI L  

In accordance with the authority in me vested, I do hereby call the Berkeley City Council in special 
session as follows: 

 

 
 

Thursday, January 31, 2019 
6:00 P.M. 

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – CHERYL DAVILA  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only 
 

Action Calendar – Public Hearing  
 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-

minute presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that 
persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium to be recognized and to determine the number of 
persons interested in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per 
speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker 
shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing 
both sides of an issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of 
the hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the 
commencement of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the 
City Clerk. 
 

1



Action Calendar – Public Hearing 

 

Thursday, January 31, 2019 AGENDA Page 2 

1. 
 

ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution affirming the Zoning Adjustments Board decision to approve Use Permit 
#ZP2016-0117 to redevelop a 19,967 square-foot (0.46-acre) site at the northwest 
corner of Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way with a proposed 18-story building with 
274 residential units above approximately 10,000 square feet of ground floor retail 
space; and dismissing the appeal. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400 

 

 
Adjournment 

I hereby request that the City Clerk of the City of Berkeley cause personal notice to be given to each 
member of the Berkeley City Council on the time and place of said meeting, forthwith. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
    and caused the official seal of the City of Berkeley to be 
    affixed on this 24th day of January, 2019. 

     
    Jesse Arreguin, Mayor 

Public Notice – this Proclamation serves as the official agenda for this meeting. 

ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 

Date:  January 24, 2019 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to approve 
or deny an appeal, the following requirements and restrictions apply: 1) Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 
Section 1094.6 and Government Code Section 65009(c)(1)(E), no lawsuit challenging a City decision to 
deny or approve a Zoning Adjustments Board decision may be filed and served on the City more than 90 
days after the date the Notice of Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed.  Any lawsuit not filed 
within that 90-day period will be barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision 
to approve or deny a Zoning Adjustments Board decision, the issues and evidence will be limited to those 
raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public 
hearing on the project. 
 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33), via Internet 
accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx and KPFB 

Radio 89.3. 
 Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/CityCouncil. 

Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

2

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CityCouncil


 

Thursday, January 31, 2019 AGENDA Page 3 

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s 
electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, 
names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to the City Council, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-
mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via 
U.S. Postal Service or in person to the City Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the City 
Clerk at 981-6908 or clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further information. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/CityCouncil 

and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 
City Clerk Department Libraries: 
2180 Milvia Street Main - 2090 Kittredge Street 
Tel:  510-981-6900 Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue 
TDD:  510-981-6903 West Branch – 1125 University 
Fax:  510-981-6901 North Branch – 1170 The Alameda 
Email:  clerk@CityofBerkeley.info South Branch – 1901 Russell 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6346(V) or 981-7075 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. 
Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting.  

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.  In addition, assisted listening 
devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to be returned 
before the end of the meeting. 

Communications 
Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and 
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are 
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department 
and through Records Online. 

Item #1: ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue 
1. Susan Ellenbogen 
2. Pam Valois 
3. Lisa Titus 
4. Nancy Litton 
5. Tamia Marg 
6. Terry Kochi 
7. Eric Kotila 
8. Tom Wenrich 
9. Valerie Herr 
10. Summer Brenner 
11. Harry Delmer 
12. Marianne Calame-Berger 
13. R. Johnson 
14. Virginia Warheit (4) 
15. Ann Maria Celona 

3

mailto:clerk@cityofberkely.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CityCouncil


 

Thursday, January 31, 2019 AGENDA Page 4 

16. Cynthia Hanson 
17. Brenda Shank 
18. Ann May and Rodney Freeland 
19. Tobey Wiebe 
20. Bronwyn Hall 
21. Holly Smith 
22. Maggie Crowley 
23. Karen Cilman 
24. Nhu Miller 
25. Jane Larson 
26. Goetz Frank 
27. Ilene Philipson 
28. Roger Pritchard 
29. Kathy Kahn 
30. Laura Fujii 
31. Jack Phillips 
32. Jenny Harrison 
33. Elaine Seed 
34. Wendy Weikel 
35. Lisa Bruce 
36. Michael Yovino-Young 
37. Matt Ogburn 
38. Paul Newacheck 
39. Carole Cool 
40. Dean Metzer, on behalf of the Berkeley Neighborhoods Council 
41. Warren and Lorna Byrne 
42. Suzy Thompson 
43. Susan Chainey 
44. David Snippen 
45. Harvey Helfand 
46. William Peppin 
47. Ingrid Crickmore 
48. Emilie Strauss 
49. Jonathan Beck 
50. Judy Schwartz 
51. Laurie May Trippett 
52. Susan Felter 
53. Betsy Thagard 
54. Twenty-four “Reconsider ZAB approval” form letters 

4



Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Timothy Burroughs, Director, Department of Planning & Development

Subject: ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue

RECOMMENDATION
Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution affirming the Zoning 
Adjustments Board decision to approve Use Permit #ZP2016-0117 to redevelop a 
19,967 square-foot (0.46-acre) site at the northwest corner of Shattuck Avenue and 
Allston Way with a proposed 18-story building with 274 residential units above 
approximately 10,000 square feet of ground floor retail space; and dismissing the 
appeal.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
On October 25, 2018, the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) held a public hearing and 
adopted CEQA-associated findings, a statement of overriding considerations and a 
mitigation monitoring and reporting program, and approved Use Permit #ZP2016-0117 
by a vote of 6-2-0-0 (Yes: Clarke, Kahn, Kim, O’Keefe, Skjerping, Wright; No: Selawsky, 
Sheahan; Abstain: None; Absent: None). On October 31, 2018, staff issued the notice 
of the ZAB decision. On November 14, 2018, Shirley Dean, Dean Metzger, Steve 
Finacom, and Kelly Hammargren (“Appellants”) filed an appeal with the City Clerk. The 
Clerk set the matter for review by the Council on January 31, 2019.

BACKGROUND
The 19,967 square-foot (0.46-acre) project site, located at the northwest corner of 
Allston Way and Shattuck Avenue, is entirely covered by a two-story, approximately 
38,700-square-foot retail and office building currently occupied by a Walgreens store on 
the ground floor. On June 13, 2016, Mill Creek Residential (“Applicant”) submitted a Use 
Permit application to develop one of the three buildings allowed to exceed the 75-foot 
height limit (up to a 180-foot tall maximum) in the Downtown Mixed Use District Core.

The project involves demolition of the existing retail and office building and construction 
of an 18-story, approximately 211,590 square-foot mixed-use building. On the ground 
floor, the proposed building would have commercial retail space with a floor area of 

Page 1 of 162

5

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01



ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

Page 2

approximately 10,000 square feet, a residential lobby, and an adjacent 677 square-foot 
community art space that would be available for community events. On the upper floors, 
the building would have 274 apartment units, ranging in size from studio units to two-
bedroom units. Motor vehicle parking would be provided in a two-level underground 
garage with 103 parking spaces, including five car share spaces. Ninety-nine (99) 
bicycle parking spaces would be provided, including 94 spaces for residents and five for 
commercial users, along with a bicycle repair shop on the ground floor. The project 
would also include 21,952 square feet of residential open space on rooftop terraces and 
gardens and private balconies for residents, 449 square feet of public open space on 
the site’s Allston Way frontage adjacent to the driveway and residential lobby, and 252 
square feet of private commercial open space at the retail entrance.

Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.090.E and consistent with Option B of the July 14, 
2015 City Council Resolution (Resolution #67,172-N.S.) for determining significant 
community benefits in order to exceed the 75-foor height limit, the Applicant submitted a 
community benefit proposal summarized below:
 Project Labor Agreement. An agreement with all twenty-eight member trades of 

the Alameda County Building Trades Council, without any trade or work 
exclusions.  Value: $5,547,020. Based on 5% of estimated construction costs, as 
per the City Council Resolution.

 Community Space. A 677 square-foot community art space next to the 
residential lobby that would be available for community events.

Planning staff prepared an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act. The ZAB certified the Final EIR on January 25, 
2018. A certified Final EIR identifies any significant environmental impacts that would 
result from implementation of a project and, where feasible, recommends mitigation 
measures to reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level. The EIR for 2190 Shattuck 
Avenue identifies one significant and unavoidable impact from construction activity that 
would intermittently expose nearby residences and businesses to elevated noise levels. 
This impact is consistent with the Downtown Area Plan EIR’s determination that new 
development in the Downtown Area as a whole would have a significant and 
unavoidable impact from construction noise. Mitigation measures include conditions of 
approval to implement a project-specific noise reduction program, which requires time 
limits for constructions, the use of available control technology (e.g. equipment 
mufflers), locating stationary noise-generating equipment as far as possible from 
sensitive receptors, and other measures.

At the August 23, 2018 meeting, the ZAB adopted CEQA-associated findings, a 
statement of overriding considerations and a mitigation monitoring and reporting 
program, which is designed to implement measures that substantially lessen or avoid 
any significant effect the project would have on the environment, and approved the 
project.

Page 2 of 162

6



ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
The project approved by ZAB is in compliance with all state and local environmental 
requirements.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The issues raised in the Appellant’s letter, and staff’s responses, are as follows. For the 
sake of brevity, the appeal issues are not re-stated in their entirety; refer to the appeal 
letter (Attachment 2) for full text. 

Issue 1: “Impact of the Proposed Project at 2190 Shattuck Avenue Regarding the 
Historic Resource Campanile Way and its View Have Not Been 
Adequately Considered due to Misleading and Confusing Information.” 
[p. 1 of attached appeal letter]

Response 1: The Appellants list a series of statements from staff reports, appeals, 
and public hearings. The first six of the seven are related to the 
Landmark Preservation Commission (LPC) and the City Council in 
regards to decisions and appeals of the decisions of the LPC; some of 
which occurred prior to the June 13, 2016 submittal date of the subject 
application [p. 2-5 of the appeal letter]. 

The Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB), however, is the governing body 
that has the authority to review, scope, and certify the project EIR, as 
well as adopt CEQA-associated findings, a statement of overriding 
considerations and a mitigation monitoring and reporting program, and it 
is the ZAB that grants project Use Permit approval. 

ZAB held four separate duly noticed public hearings regarding the 
Project: an EIR scoping session on January 26, 2017; a Draft EIR 
comment hearing on September 14, 2017; a Final EIR certification 
hearing on January 25, 2018; and the Use Permit hearing on October 
25, 2018.  Potential impacts of the project on view corridors that 
contribute to the historical significance of surrounding development is 
included in the EIR discussion of cultural resources. Due to the 
importance of the view for the Berkeley community, staff specifically 
included an informational aesthetic discussion regarding the project’s 
effect on scenic vistas, which included numerous photo-simulations of 
the proposed projects as seen from various vantage points along the 
base of the Campanile and along Campanile Way (see Appendix 2 EIR). 
As noted by the Appellants, a summary of the EIR’s detailed view 
analysis is also included in the Use Permit staff report: 

“[T]he project would partially block views of the Bay, Alcatraz 
Island, and the Golden Gate Bridge from various points at the 

Page 3 of 162

7



ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

Page 4

base of the Campanile and along Campanile Way. Although the 
view would not be completely blocked from any viewpoint, 
obstruction would range from zero to approximately 75 percent 
of the view depending on the viewpoint location. Obstruction of 
views would be greatest from the upper portion of Campanile 
Way to the steps of the Campanile tower.

The westward view that would be altered is a character-defining 
feature of a historic resource (Campanile Way) that has been 
identified as a contributing element to the historic cultural 
landscape of the Classical Core of the UC Berkeley campus. 
Although the project would partially obstruct this view, it would 
not materially impair Campanile Way or the Classical Core of 
the UC Berkeley campus itself. Therefore, the obstruction of 
views would not significantly degrade the historic cultural 
landscape.”

The ZAB discussed project impacts to the viewshed from Campanile 
Way at each of the four hearings related to the project. Prior to granting 
Use Permit approval, ZAB deliberated and balanced the Project’s 
impacts on views with other competing and sometimes conflicting goals 
and policies of the General Plan, the Downtown Specific Plan, and the 
Climate Action Plan and cast their vote accordingly.

Issue 2: “The import of these letters from acknowledged experts [who have 
written letters contrary to the City’s position] seem to have been largely 
ignored […], they have not been included in Staff Reports.” [Page 8]

Response 2: During the review of an application to grant City Landmark status to 
Campanile Way (#LMIN 2017-0006), on September 20, 2018, the City 
maintained its established practice of studying and protecting scenic 
views as aesthetic resources rather than as historic resources, due to 
the indefinite size and broad scope of viewsheds.  This occurred during 
an appeal of LPC decision in front of City Council, which was unrelated 
to ZAB’s review of Use Permit #ZP2016-0117 and adoption of the EIR.

The Appellants provide excerpts from several letters written about how 
the View from Campanile Way is cherished by the community. The 
majority of the letters referenced however, were not submitted to the City 
in response to the subject application but to other discretionary permits: 
the Use Permit for 2211 Harold Way and the Landmark Application of 
the Campanile Way. Staff, therefore, had no opportunity to consider 
them during the processing of this application. Additionally, none of the 

Page 4 of 162

8



ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

Page 5

excerpts presented dispute the City’s practice of regulating scenic views 
as an aesthetic resource.

Contrary to the Appellants’ assertion, staff included all comments 
received during the DEIR comment period, whether submitted in written 
form or delivered verbally at public hearings, and included and 
responded to the comments in the Response to Comments (RTC) 
document. A list of commenters to the DEIR is provided on page 3 of the 
Final EIR RTC document, followed by detailed responses to the 
comments (pages 5 - 610 of the RTC). The Final EIR also included 
some changes to the text of the DEIR, based on the consideration of the 
comments (pages 611- 681). A hard copy of the RTC Document was 
provided to the ZAB members in conjunction with the January 25, 2018 
staff report. Due to the volume of the materials, staff included a link to 
the document within the staff report.  Staff also included correspondence 
received outside of the comment period as an attachment to the ZAB 
staff report. The allegation of the Appellants that staff ignored any 
correspondence submitted during the processing of the Project is, 
therefore, not true. Staff concludes that this appeal point is without merit 
and recommends that Council dismiss it.

Issue 3: The Appellants disagree with the statement that, “The Landmarks 
Preservation Ordinance (LPO), Berkeley Municipal Code 3.24.060, 
doesn’t allow landmarking of either Campanile Way or its View.” [page 9]

Response 3: This appeal point relates to the LPO and whether the action taken by the 
LPC to landmark the Campanile was “legal and appropriate;” it does not 
concern the activities or purview of ZAB or its action to approve Use 
Permit #ZP2016-0117.  The Landmark Preservation Commission 
decision is not subject to this appeal, but was subject to a separate 
appeal before Council, who overturned the Landmark designation of 
Campanile Way on September 20, 2018. This issue is, therefore, without 
merit.

Issue 4: The Appellants disagree with staff’s position that historic preservation is 
not a proper mechanism for view protection and questions the City’s 
action to protect certain views and not others. [page 9]

Response 4: The Appellants feel that City Council’s actions at the September 20, 
2018 meeting—one reversing the approval of the Campanile Way City 
Landmark designation and the other supporting a decision by ZAB to 
reduce the size of a proposed addition to an existing single-family 
dwelling to reduce view impacts to an uphill neighboring home—are 
contradictory or arbitrary. Although neither decision by Council is subject 

Page 5 of 162

9



ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

Page 6

to the current appeal, staff notes that the Appellants are conflating two 
separate issues. In recommending the reversal of the Landmark 
designation of the Campanile Way, staff supported the appellant’s 
assertion that historic preservation is not a proper mechanism for view 
protection. In reducing the size of an addition of a downhill dwelling to 
lessen view impacts of an uphill neighbor, the ZAB evaluated the 
benefits of the project (extra bedrooms in an existing dwelling) with the 
proposed impacts (partial impediment towards view of the Bay). Similarly 
and as previously stated in Response 1 above, during the hearing for 
Use Permit approval for the project, the ZAB deliberated and balanced 
the Project’s impacts on views with Project benefits that includes the 
creation of 274 dwelling units in transit oriented development and the 
provision of significant community benefits.

Issue 5: The Appellants are stating that a transit oriented development could be 
built on the Project site or on another site in the Downtown that would 
have less impact on the view toward the Bay from Campanile Way. 
[page 10-11]

Response 5: The appellants argue that there may be other potential development 
sites in the Downtown, and that they would prefer that the City consider 
those sites for high-density, transit-oriented development instead of the 
subject site at 2190 Shattuck because those sites are not directly within 
the view corridor of the Golden Gate from the base of the Campanile, or 
alternatively, the City should approve construction of a shorter building at 
the subject site.  

BMC 23E.68.070.B.2 expressly authorizes the construction of three 
buildings of up to 180 feet in the Downtown Core area, around where the 
project is located. Further, the ZAB made Findings that the project is 
both compatible with the purposes of the Downtown District and with the 
surrounding uses and buildings and that the project is consistent with 
myriad Downtown Area Goals in areas of Environmental Sustainability, 
Land Use, Access, Historic Preservation and Urban Design, Streets and 
Open Space, and Economic Development. The ZAB also found that the 
project would provide significant community benefits—including a project 
labor agreement—beyond what would otherwise be required by the City 
to permit a building of this height in this location. The Appellants have 
presented no evidence or new information to suggest that these findings 
are incorrect. Appellants’ preference for development at a different 
location or development of a shorter building cannot substitute for 
Findings that establish compliance with the standards set forth in the 
Downtown Plan. 

Page 6 of 162

10



ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

Page 7

For all of these reasons, staff concludes that Appeal Point #5 is without 
merit and that Council should dismiss it.

Issue 6: ZAB decision to approve the project at 2190 Shattuck and adopt the EIR 
was based on an incorrect assumption that the City had no discretionary 
authority to consider certain aesthetic impacts of the project.

Response 6: This appeal point appears to be based on prior statements in a 2015 EIR 
for a previously approved and unrelated entitlement for construction of a 
development at 2211 Harold Way. Appellants cite no evidence to 
support their contention that the ZAB misunderstood the extent of its 
discretionary authority with respect to this project, and in any event, ZAB 
was within its established authority to approve the project. Therefore, 
staff concludes that this appeal point is without merit, and recommends 
that Council dismiss it.

Issue 7: The proposed project barely meets the requirements to achieve a LEED 
Gold rating. [page 11]

Response 7: Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.085.A, construction of new buildings in 
the C-DMU are required to attain a LEED Gold rating or higher, or attain 
a building performance equivalent to this rating. The project is designed 
to achieve 61 points on the LEED checklist for New Construction and 
Major Renovations. Projects scoring between 60 and 110 point achieve 
a LEED Gold rating. Accordingly, the project meets the required 
certification level. The Appellants do not dispute this fact, and therefore 
this appeal point is without merit.

Additionally, as discussed by the ZAB, the project will be in compliance 
with Title 24 of California’s Building Standards Code. The project’s 
sustainability features include: roof gardens to reduce the heat island 
effect and delay stormwater runoff; solar shading for residential units; 
low emissivity glass to minimize need for building cooling; hot water 
generated by solar thermal power; and Transportation Demand 
Management features including AC Transit passes for each residential 
household and commercial employee, five car share parking spaces, 
four electric vehicle charging stations, and secure bicycle parking. The 
project is consistent with the City’s Climate Action Plan and General 
Plan Implementation Strategies.

Page 7 of 162

11



ZAB Appeal: 2190 Shattuck Avenue PUBLIC HEARING
January 31, 2019

Page 8

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.060.D, the Council may (1) continue the public 
hearing, (2) reverse, affirm, or modify the ZAB’s decision, or (3) remand the matter to 
the ZAB.

ACTION DEADLINE:
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.060.G, if the disposition of the appeal has not been 
determined within 30 days from the date the public hearing was closed by the Council 
(not including Council recess), then the decision of the Board shall be deemed affirmed 
and the appeal shall be deemed denied.

CONTACT PERSONS
Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning & Development Department, (510) 981-7437
Leslie Mendez, Senior Planner, Planning & Development Department, (510) 981-7426

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Exhibit A: Findings and Conditions
Exhibit Ai: Findings of Fact Regarding Environmental Impacts, Mitigation 

Measures, Alternatives and Overriding Considerations
Exhibit Aii: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting

Exhibit B: Project Plans dated October 25, 2018
2: Appeal Letter, dated November 14, 2018
3: ZAB Staff Report, dated October 25, 2018
4: Index to Administrative Record
5: Administrative Record
6: Public Hearing Notice

Page 8 of 162

12



RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

APPROVING USE PERMIT #ZP2016-0116 TO REDEVELOP A 19,967 SQUARE-FOOT 
(0.46-ACRE) SITE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SHATTUCK AVENUE AND 
ALLSTON WAY WITH A PROPOSED 18-STORY BUILDING WITH 274 RESIDENTIAL 
UNITS ABOVE APPROXIMATELY 10,000 SQUARE FEET OF GROUND FLOOR 
RETAIL SPACE IN THE DOWNTOWN MIXED-USE (C-DMU) CORE SUB-AREA 
ZONING DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2016, Don Peterson filed an application on behalf of Mill Creek 
Residential (“Applicant”) to redevelop a property located at 2190 Shattuck Avenue with 
an 18-story, mixed use building with 10,000 square feet of commercial space and 274 
dwelling units (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, on January 5, 2017, the City of Berkeley (“City”) released a Notice of 
Preparation (NOP) of an Environmental Impact Report and an Initial Study to Responsible 
Agencies, Agencies with Jurisdiction by Law, Trustee Agencies, Involved Federal 
Agencies, and Agencies/People Requesting Notice, and solicited public comment for 30-
days; and

WHEREAS, January 26, 2017, at a duly noticed meeting, the applicant presented a 
preview of the project to the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) and the ZAB conducted a 
scoping meeting to elicit public comment on the CEQA-required study areas identified by 
the NOP and the Initial Study; and

WHEREAS, on February 6, 2017, the 30-day NOP comment period terminated; and

WHEREAS, on August 10, 2017, the City of Berkeley (“City”) released for public review 
and comment a Draft Environmental Impact Report (“DEIR”) project, SCH No. 
2017012011, and the circulation period for the DEIR began; and

WHEREAS, on August 17, 2017, at a duly noticed meeting, the applicant presented a 
preview of the project to the Design Review Committee (DRC); and

WHEREAS, on September 7, 2107, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission (LPC) discussed the DEIR; and

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2017, at a duly noticed public hearing, the ZAB held a 
hearing, commented on the Draft EIR, and received public testimony; and

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2017, the 45-day Draft EIR comment period ended; and

WHEREAS, the City received comments on the Draft EIR and prepared responses to 
those comments as required by law; and

Page 9 of 162

13



WHEREAS, the City prepared and released on January 4, 2018 a Response to 
Comments (RTC) Document to provide responses to comments on the DEIR and to make 
revisions to the DEIR, as necessary, in response to these comments or to amplify and 
clarify material in the DEIR.  This RTC document, together with the DEIR, constitutes the 
Final EIR (FEIR) for the proposed project; and

WHEREAS, on January 25, 2018, at a duly noticed public hearing, the ZAB considered 
the Final EIR and the record, and in its independent judgment found it adequate and 
sufficient in all respects and Certified the EIR; and

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2018, at a duly noticed public hearing, the DRC reviewed 
and continued a vote for Preliminary Design Review on the Project; and

WHERES, on March 15, 2018, at a duly noticed public hearing, the DRC reviewed and 
continued a vote for Preliminary Design Review on the Project; and 

WHERES, on April 19, 2018, at a duly noticed public hearing, the DRC reviewed and 
forwarded to ZAB a favorable recommendation on Preliminary Design Review on the 
Project; and 

WHEREAS, on August 28, 2018, staff deemed this application complete; and

WHEREAS, on October 25, 2018, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Zoning 
Adjustments Board approved Use Permit #ZP2016-0117 for the reasons set forth in a 
notice of decision released on October 31, 2018; and

WHEREAS, on October 31, 2018, staff issued the notice of the ZAB decision; and

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2018, Shirley Dean, Dean Metzger, Steve Finacom, and 
Kelly Hammargren filed an appeal of the ZAB decision with the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, on January 31, 2019, the Council held a public hearing to consider the ZAB’s 
decision, and, in the opinion of this Council, the facts stated in or ascertainable from the 
public record, including comments made at the public hearing, warrant approving the 
project.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council hereby adopts the findings made by the ZAB in Exhibit A, affirms the decision of 
the ZAB to approve Use Permit #ZP 2016-0117, adopts the conditions in Exhibit A and the 
project plans in Exhibit B, and dismisses the appeal.

Page 10 of 162

14



Exhibits 
A: Findings and Conditions

Exhibit Ai: Findings of Fact Regarding Environmental Impacts, Mitigation Measures, 
Alternatives and Overriding Considerations

Exhibit Aii: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
B: Project Plans, dated October 25, 2018

Page 11 of 162

15



2190 Shattuck Avenue 
Use Permit #ZP2016-0117  to redevelop a 19,967 square-foot (0.46-acre) site at 
the northwest corner of Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way with a proposed 18-
story building with 274 residential units above approximately 10,000 square feet 
of ground floor retail space. One hundred and three (103) parking spaces would 
be provided in a two-level subterranean garage accessed from Allston Way. 

PERMITS REQUIRED 
 Use Permit for construction for demolition of a non-residential building, under BMC

23C.08.050.A
 Use Permit for construction of a new main building with mixed-use development, under BMC

23E.68.030;
 Use Permit for construction of >10,000 sq. ft. gross floor area, under BMC 23E.68.050
 Use Permit to allow a maximum height of up to 180 feet, under BMC 23E.68.070.B
 Use Permit to allow a reduction in the required 5 foot rear yard setback for the portion of the

building between 20 and 75 feet in height, under BMC 23E.26.070.C
 Use Permit to allow that portion of the building over 120 feet to be greater than 120 feet in width

when measured at the widest point on the diagonal in plan view, under BMC 23E.68.070.C
 Use Permit to allow a reduced vehicle parking space requirement, under BMC 23E.68.080.D
 Use Permit for reduction of required parking spaces through payment of an in-lieu fee to be

used to provide enhanced transit services, under BMC 23E.68.080.D
 Administrative Use Permit to allow architectural projections (e.g. elevator enclosures) to exceed

the height limit, under BMC 23E.04.020.C

I. FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL
1. As required by Section 23B.32.040.A of the Zoning Ordinance, the project, under the

circumstances of this particular case existing at the time at which the application is granted,
would not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of the
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use or be detrimental or
injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the surrounding area or
neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City because:

A. The project is a higher-density development in proximity to regional transit, shops and
amenities, consistent with the goals of the Downtown Area Plan (described in greater detail
in section IV.). The project site is located within the Downtown Mixed Use District (C-DMU),
Core Area, as identified in the DAP. It will provide 274 residential units and 10,000 square
feet of retail commercial space. The project is adjacent to the Downtown Berkeley BART
station and multiple AC Transit lines on Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way. Surrounding
land uses include a hotel, retail commercial space, offices, restaurants, and parking. The
project will add to surrounding commercial uses and add population to support these uses.

B. The project will contribute to Downtown as a thriving, livable, diverse residential
neighborhood with a mix of supportive uses, and play a significant role in meeting

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 1 of 22 

Page 12 of 162

16



Berkeley’s continuing need for additional housing. The project will provide 274 housing 
units, comprised of 57 micro units, 63 studio units, 93 one-bedroom units, and 61 two-
bedroom units. In addition, the project is subject to the City’s Affordable Housing Mitigation 
Fee (AHMF) Ordinance (BMC Section 22.20.065), which requires that the applicant either 
(1) pay an AHMF; (2) provide 55 below-market-rate (BMR) units in lieu of the AHMF; or (3) 
pay a reduced AHMF in combination with a reduced number of BMR units.  

 
C. Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.070.D, the project will enhance public open spaces and 

streets to benefit pedestrians, improve Downtown’s livability, and foster a sense of place. 
Street improvements will strengthen Allston Way as a destination and enhance pedestrian 
experiences. Improvements within and facing the public right-of-way on Allston Way will 
include enhanced stone paving, trees, planters, and benches on the sidewalk, and art 
vitrines with glass display cases at the building’s exterior. Sidewalks will be rebuilt 
consistent with the adopted Streets and Open Space Improvement Plan (SOSIP), and the 
project will pay its SOSIP fee, dedicated to public enhancement in the Downtown. In 
addition, the building will provide 21,952 square feet of private open space for residents, 
including rooftop terraces and gardens and private balconies. 

 
D. The project is designed to achieve a LEED Gold or equivalent rating, as required under 

BMC Section 23E.68.085.A, and will be in compliance with Title 24 of California’s Building 
Standards Code. The project’s sustainability features include: roof gardens to reduce the 
heat island effect and delay stormwater runoff; solar shading for residential units; low 
emissivity glass to minimize need for building cooling; hot water generated by solar thermal 
power; and Transportation Demand Management features including AC Transit passes for 
each residential household and commercial employee, five car share parking spaces, four 
electric vehicle charging stations, and secure bicycle parking. The project is consistent with 
the City’s Climate Action Plan and General Plan Implementation Strategies. 

 
 

E. The 18-story project will result in new shading patterns; however, it will not be detrimental 
to the solar access of the surrounding buildings and general neighborhood. DAP Policy ES-
3.15 directs that new structures in the plan area be designed and located in a manner that 
minimizes shading on public open spaces. Shadow studies of the project depicted 
increased shadowing during the summer and winter solstices. The building will not cast 
new shadows on Civic Center Park, open space and playing fields at Berkeley High School, 
or other public open spaces. During spring and fall afternoons, the building will increase 
existing shading of the BART plaza adjacent to the building’s eastern façade. However, the 
stepped massing of the building, with upper stories receded from Shattuck Avenue, will 
minimize eastward shading during afternoon hours.  
 

F. The 18-story project will redirect winds; however, the project will not create detrimental 
wind impacts on surrounding streets and pedestrians. A Wind and Comfort Impact Analysis 
was completed and summarized in the Infill Environmental Checklist. Based on prevailing 
winds and the building’s mass and location, and it was determined that the building will not 
significantly deflect downward drafts to ground level where pedestrian comfort could be 
affected. It should also be noted that the building’s design in relation to wind is consistent 
with the Downtown Design Guidelines, which call for articulation and stepbacks to reduce 
winds.  

 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 2 of 22 

Page 13 of 162

17



G. The Final Environmental Impact Report prepared for the proposed project found that 
impacts related to Transportation/Traffic would be less than significant with Mitigation 
Measures. Project construction and operation will increase traffic. Project construction will 
result in reduced capacity, temporary closure of portions of Allston Way including 
sidewalks, and relocation of AC Transit bus stops. Construction-related traffic impacts will 
be less than significant with mitigation. The proposed driveway will result in new potential 
conflicts on Allston Way between vehicles accessing the site and pedestrians and AC 
Transit buses within the public right-of-way. Pedestrian safety impacts along Allston Way 
will be less than significant with mitigation. Commercial and passenger loading activity 
associated with the project also will introduce potential conflicts with other automobiles, 
buses, bicyclists, and pedestrians. Loading conflicts will be less than significant with 
mitigation. 
 

H. The Final Environmental Impact Report prepared for the proposed project found that 
impacts related to Noise would be less than significant with Mitigation Measures. Project 
construction and operation will affect the acoustic environment. Noise impacts were 
analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report. Construction of the project over a 27-month 
period will intermittently generate high noise levels on and adjacent to the project site, 
exceeding the City’s standards for construction noise in commercial zones. Temporary 
construction noise will have a significant and unavoidable impact; nonetheless, this project-
level impact is consistent with the finding of the Downtown Area Plan Environmental Impact 
Report for the Plan Area as a whole. New residential units also will be subject to noise 
levels in excess of the City of Berkeley noise compatibility guidelines. However, the 
exposure of new residents to ambient noise will be less than significant with mitigation. 

 
I. The Final Environmental Impact Report prepared for the proposed project found that 

impacts related to Air Quality would be less than significant with Mitigation Measures. 
Project construction and operation will affect air quality in the San Francisco Bay Area Air 
Quality basin; associated air pollutant emissions will be less than significant with mitigation. 
 

J. The Final Environmental Impact Report prepared for the proposed project found that 
impacts related to Cultural/Historic Resources would be less than significant. The project 
includes demolition of an existing commercial building on the project site. An evaluation of 
this building concluded that it is not a historical resource under CEQA. In addition, the 
project will not result in significant impacts to nearby historic resources in the proposed 
Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. Consistent with mitigation measures CR-1a 
and CR-1b in the Final EIR, the applicant has modified the new building’s design to include 
exterior materials that are more visually compatible with the adjacent, historic Shattuck 
Hotel (i.e., rectilinear wall systems below the seventh floor and wall rhythm modifications). 
These design features protect the Shattuck Hotel’s integrity of setting. The new building 
also will partially obstruct scenic views of the Bay and the Golden Gate from the historic 
Campanile Way on the UC Berkeley campus. However, it will not have a direct material 
effect on the historic resource itself, and Campanile Way will substantially retain its integrity 
as a historic resource despite the view obstruction. 
 

K. The project is subject to the City’s standard conditions of approval regarding construction 
noise and air quality, waste diversion, toxics, and stormwater requirements, thereby 
ensuring the project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort or 
general welfare of persons residing or working in the area or neighborhood of such 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 3 of 22 

Page 14 of 162

18



proposed use or be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent 
properties, the surrounding area or neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City. 
 

 
III. DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS: 
Pursuant to BMC Section 23C.08.050.D, the City finds that the proposed demolition of the existing 
building will not be materially detrimental to the financial needs of the neighborhood or the City, 
because the proposed project will provide replacement floor area on-site and that the demolition is 
required in order to allow the proposed new project to be built.  
 
IV. OTHER REQUIRED FINDINGS: 

A. Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.090.B.1, the City finds that the proposed project is 
consistent with the purposes of the C-DMU District, because it is consistent with the goals 
and policies of the Downtown Area Plan as discussed in the project staff report dated October 
25, 2018. The project is a higher-density, mixed-use development in proximity to regional 
transit, shops and amenities. The 274 dwelling units will improve options to increase access to 
Downtown on foot, by bicycle and via transit, and promote transit as an efficient and attractive 
choice. It will contribute to Downtown as a thriving, diverse residential neighborhood with a mix 
of supportive uses. It will enhance public open spaces and streets to benefit pedestrians, 
improve Downtown’s livability, and foster an exceptional sense of place. The project will 
include 10,000 square feet of commercial space that will service the city and region, consistent 
with the Core Area of the C-DMU District. 

 
B. Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.090.B.2 and D, the City finds that the project design is 

compatible with the surrounding uses and buildings and is compatible with the visual 
character and form of the District. The project would maintain continuity with and respect for 
the surrounding urban environment. Street wall height, cornice lines, human-scaled openings, 
and material would complement downtown’s traditional fabric. The building’s wall treatments 
would complement those of the adjacent, historic Shattuck Hotel. The street-level scale of 
neighboring buildings would be respected, as the project would maintain a continuous street 
wall at the edge of the abutting streets up to where the building would step back toward the 
interior of the site. At a height of approximately 72 feet (seven stories) above street level, the 
building would step back 15 feet from Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way. Above the 12th floor, 
the building would step back an additional 65 feet from Shattuck Avenue. This stepped 
massing is intended to minimize sight lines of the proposed 18-story tower from the 
perspective of people on Shattuck Avenue. The project’s proposed retail and multi-family 
residential uses also are already found in Downtown Berkeley. The proposed project, which 
received a favorable recommendation by the DRC, will be designed with ground-floor 
storefronts and continuous building street walls except for architectural expression at the site’s 
southeast corner and for usable open space. These features would provide for greater 
compatibility with nearby historic buildings in the proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown 
Historic District. In addition, implementation of Final EIR Mitigation Measures CR-1a and CR-
1b would enhance the compatibility of the proposed building’s wall treatments with the 
adjacent, historic Shattuck Hotel.  
 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 4 of 22 

Page 15 of 162

19



C. Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.090.E, the applicant proposed the following as Significant 
Community Benefits:  

 Project Labor Agreement. An agreement with all twenty eight member trades of the 
Alameda County Building Trades Council, without any trade or work exclusions.  Value: 
$5,547,020. Based on 5% of estimated construction costs, as per City Council Resolution 
67,172 – N.S. 

 Community Space. A 677 square-foot community art space next to the residential lobby 
that would be available for community events. 

 
Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.090.E, the City finds the Project Labor Agreement complies 
with the Council Resolution #67,172 N.S.  In addition, the City finds that the provision of 
community space is above and beyond what would otherwise be required by the City because 
the Zoning Ordinance does not currently require such a benefit.  Thus, both of the above are 
Significant Community Benefits and satisfy the finding to approve a building of 180 feet in 
height.   
 

D. Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.090.F, the City finds that the modified rear yard setback for 
the portion of the building between 20 and 75 feet in height and to allow the portion of the 
building over 120 feet to be greater than 120 feet in width when measured at the widest point 
on the diagonal in plan view will not unreasonably limit solar access or create significant 
increases in wind experienced on the public sidewalk. Shadow diagrams presented in 
Appendix A of the Draft EIR indicate that the building will partially shade Allston Way at street 
level during summer mornings, while partially shading Allston Way, the north side of the 
Shattuck Hotel, and a retail commercial building east of the hotel during summer afternoons. 
Due to the minimal massing in the setback encroachments, they will have a minimal 
contribution to these shadows. Therefore, it would not unreasonably limit solar access. 
Additionally, the Wind and Comfort Impact Analysis prepared for the project found that wind 
accelerations generated by the building will be located over rooftops of adjacent buildings or at 
decks and terraces within the building itself. It is not expected that the building will significantly 
affect ground-level winds. Therefore, the building’s extension beyond setback standards will 
not significantly increase winds on the public sidewalk. 

 
E. Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.68.090.H, the City finds that the reduced vehicle parking 

spaces will not be detrimental to the neighborhood. The fee schedule adopted by the Council 
by resolution (66,178-N.S.) set the fee for reduced vehicle parking at $15,000 per space for 
spaces 1-5 waived or reduced, $20,000 per space for spaces 6-15 waived or reduced, $25,000 
per space for spaces 16-25 waived or reduced, and $30,000 per space for spaces 26 and 
greater waived or reduced.  A fee payment will be made to the City as a condition of this 
permit. 
 

F. Pursuant to BMC Section 23E.04.020.C, the City finds that the architectural projections that 
exceed the height limit are permissible as they represent no more than 15% of the average 
floor area of all of the building’s floors and no tower or similar structure will be used as 
habitable space or for any commercial purpose, other than that which may accommodate the 
mechanical needs of the building.  Rooftop elevator and stairwell enclosures and a parapet will 
exceed the District height limit of 180 feet. The elevator and stairwell enclosures will exceed 
the height limit by up to approximately 10 feet, while the parapet will exceed this limit by up to 
5 feet. In addition, solar hot water panels will be installed on top of the elevator enclosure and 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 5 of 22 

Page 16 of 162

20



a stairwell enclosure. These panels will not substantially exceed the height of enclosures. The 
elevator extension and stairwell enclosures are necessary to serve such a tall building. The 
solar hot water panels would reduce the building’s energy demand and assist in attainment of 
LEED Gold certification.  
 

 
 

  

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 6 of 22 

Page 17 of 162

21



V. STANDARD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR ALL PROJECTS
The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, apply to 
this Permit: 

1. Conditions and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program Shall be Printed on Plans
The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set submitted for
a building permit pursuant to this Use Permit, under the title ‘Use Permit Conditions.’ Additional
sheets may also be used if the second sheet is not of sufficient size to list all of the conditions.
The sheet(s) containing the conditions shall be of the same size as those sheets containing the
construction drawings; 8-1/2” by 11” sheets are not acceptable.

2. Applicant Responsible for Compliance with Conditions
The applicant shall ensure compliance with all of the following conditions, including submittal to
the project planner of required approval signatures at the times specified.  Failure to comply with
any condition may result in construction being stopped, issuance of a citation, and/or modification
or revocation of the Use Permit.

3. Uses Approved Deemed to Exclude Other Uses (Section 23B.56.010)
A. This Permit authorizes only those uses and activities actually proposed in the application, and

excludes other uses and activities.
B. Except as expressly specified herein, this Permit terminates all other uses at the location

subject to it.

4. Modification of Permits (Section 23B.56.020)
No change in the use or structure for which this Permit is issued is permitted unless the Permit is
modified by the Board, except that the Zoning Officer may approve changes that do not expand,
intensify, or substantially change the use or building.

Changes in the plans for the construction of a building or structure, may be modified prior to the 
completion of construction, in accordance with Section 23B.56.030.D.  The Zoning Officer may 
approve changes to plans approved by the Board, consistent with the Board’s policy adopted on 
May 24, 1978, which reduce the size of the project.   

5. Plans and Representations Become Conditions (Section 23B.56.030)
Except as specified herein, the site plan, floor plans, building elevations and/or any additional
information or representations, whether oral or written, indicating the proposed structure or
manner of operation submitted with an application or during the approval process are deemed
conditions of approval.

6. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations (Section 23B.56.040)
The approved use and/or construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable City
Ordinances and laws and regulations of other governmental agencies.  Prior to construction, the
applicant shall identify and secure all applicable permits from the Building and Safety Division,
Public Works Department and other affected City divisions and departments.

7. Exercised Permit for Use Survives Vacancy of Property (Section 23B.56.080)
Once a Permit for a use is exercised and the use is established, that use is legally recognized,
even if the property becomes vacant, except as set forth in Standard Condition #8, below.

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 7 of 22 

Page 18 of 162

22



8. Exercise and Lapse of Permits (Section 23B.56.100) 
A. A permit for the use of a building or a property is exercised when, if required, a valid City 

business license has been issued, and the permitted use has commenced on the property. 
B. A permit for the construction of a building or structure is deemed exercised when a valid City 

building permit, if required, is issued, and construction has lawfully commenced. 
C. A permit may be declared lapsed and of no further force and effect if it is not exercised within 

one year of its issuance, except that permits for construction or alteration of structures or 
buildings may not be declared lapsed if the permittee has:  (1) applied for a building permit; 
or, (2) made substantial good faith efforts to obtain a building permit and begin construction, 
even if a building permit has not been issued and/or construction has not begun. 
 

9. Indemnification Agreement 
The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and its officers, 
agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, demands, judgments or 
other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, expert witness and consultant fees and 
other litigation expenses), referendum or initiative relating to, resulting from or caused by, or 
alleged to have resulted from, or caused by, any action or approval associated with the 
project.  The indemnity includes without limitation, any legal or administrative challenge, 
referendum or initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, set aside, stay or otherwise rescind any or 
all approvals granted in connection with the Project, any environmental determination made for 
the project and granting any permit issued in accordance with the project.  This indemnity 
includes, without limitation, payment of all direct and indirect costs associated with any action 
specified herein.  Direct and indirect costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees, 
expert witness and consultant fees, court costs, and other litigation fees.  City shall have the right 
to select counsel to represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of any action 
specified in this condition of approval.  City shall take reasonable steps to promptly notify the 
Applicant of any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create a claim for indemnification under 
these conditions of approval.   

 
VI. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS 
Pursuant to BMC 23B.32.040.D, the City attaches the following additional conditions to this Permit: 
 
10. Pursuant to Section 23E.68.070.B.3.b, a) the applicant shall submit an application for a building 

permit no later than 180 days after this Use Permit is approved, b) shall respond to all plan check 
comments no later than 30 days after they are issued, and c) shall pay all building permit-related 
fees promptly when due, and shall commence construction no later than 180 days after being 
notified of approval of the first building permit. Any extension of any deadline in this condition 
shall be subject to approval by the Zoning Officer, except that no deadline for payment of any 
fees may be extended. 

 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 8 of 22 

Page 19 of 162

23



Prior to Submittal of Any Building Permit: 
11. Project Liaison. The applicant shall include in all building permit plans and post onsite the name 

and telephone number of an individual empowered to manage construction-related complaints 
generated from the project.  The individual’s name, telephone number, and responsibility for the 
project shall be posted at the project site for the duration of the project in a location easily visible 
to the public.  The individual shall record all complaints received and actions taken in response, 
and submit written reports of such complaints and actions to the project planner on a weekly 
basis. Please designate the name of this individual below: 

 
 Project Liaison ____________________________________________________ 

 Name       Phone # 
 
12. Final Design Review.  The Project requires approval of a Final Design Review application by the 

Design Review Committee.  
 

13. Compliance with Conditions and Environmental Mitigations.  The building permit application is 
subject to verification of compliance to the adopted Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program (Attachment 1- Exhibit B).  The applicant shall be responsible for demonstrating 
compliance with all conditions of approval and mitigation measures per the timeline set forth by 
this use permit.  The applicant shall deposit $10,000 with the City, or less with the approval of the 
Zoning Officer, to pay for the cost of monitoring compliance with these Conditions of Approval 
and other applicable conditions and regulations.  Should compliance-monitoring expenses 
exceed the initial deposit, the applicant shall deposit additional funds to cover such additional 
expenses upon the request of the Zoning Officer; any unused deposit will be refunded to the 
applicant. 

 
14. Address Assignment. The applicant shall file an “Address Assignment Request Application” with 

the Permit Service Center (1947 Center Street) for any address change or new address 
associated with this Use Permit. The new address(es) shall be assigned and entered into the 
City’s database prior to the applicant’s submittal of a building permit application. 

 
15. Construction Noise Reduction Program. The applicant shall develop a site specific noise 

reduction program prepared by a qualified acoustical consultant to reduce construction noise 
impacts to the maximum extent feasible, subject to review and approval of the Zoning Officer. 
The noise reduction program shall include the time limits for construction listed above, as 
measures needed to ensure that construction complies with BMC Section 13.40.070. The noise 
reduction program should include, but shall not be limited to, the following available controls to 
reduce construction noise levels as low as practical: 
A. Construction equipment should be well maintained and used judiciously to be as quiet as 

practical. 
B. Equip all internal combustion engine-driven equipment with mufflers, which are in good 

condition and appropriate for the equipment. 
C. Utilize “quiet” models of air compressors and other stationary noise sources where technology 

exists.  Select hydraulically or electrically powered equipment and avoid pneumatically 
powered equipment where feasible. 

D. Locate stationary noise-generating equipment as far as possible from sensitive receptors 
when adjoining construction sites.  Construct temporary noise barriers or partial enclosures to 
acoustically shield such equipment where feasible. 

E. Prohibit unnecessary idling of internal combustion engines. 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 9 of 22 

Page 20 of 162

24



F. If impact pile driving is required, pre-drill foundation pile holes to minimize the number of
impacts required to seat the pile.

G. Construct solid plywood fences around construction sites adjacent to operational business,
residences or other noise-sensitive land uses where the noise control plan analysis
determines that a barrier would be effective at reducing noise.

H. Erect temporary noise control blanket barriers, if necessary, along building facades facing
construction sites.  This mitigation would only be necessary if conflicts occurred which were
irresolvable by proper scheduling. Noise control blanket barriers can be rented and quickly
erected.

I. Route construction related traffic along major roadways and away from sensitive receptors
where feasible.

16. Damage Due to Construction Vibration. The project applicant shall submit screening level
analysis prior to, or concurrent with demolition building permit. If a screening level analysis shows
that the project has the potential to result in damage to structures, a structural engineer or other
appropriate professional shall be retained to prepare a vibration impact assessment
(assessment). The assessment shall take into account project specific information such as the
composition of the structures, location of the various types of equipment used during each phase
of the project, as well as the soil characteristics in the project area, in order to determine whether
project construction may cause damage to any of the structures identified as potentially impacted
in the screening level analysis. If the assessment finds that the project may cause damage to
nearby structures, the structural engineer or other appropriate professional shall recommend
design means and methods of construction that to avoid the potential damage, if feasible. The
assessment and its recommendations shall be reviewed and approved by the Building and Safety
Division and the Zoning Officer. If there are no feasible design means or methods to eliminate the
potential for damage, the structural engineer or other appropriate professional shall undertake an
existing conditions study (study) of any structures (or, in case of large buildings, of the portions of
the structures) that may experience damage. This study shall
 establish the baseline condition of these structures, including, but not limited to, the location

and extent of any visible cracks or spalls; and
 include written descriptions and photographs.

The study shall be reviewed and approved by the Building and Safety Division and the Zoning 
Officer prior to issuance of a grading permit. Upon completion of the project, the structures (or, in 
case of large buildings, of the portions of the structures) previously inspected will be resurveyed, 
and any new cracks or other changes shall be compared to pre-construction conditions and a 
determination shall be made as to whether the proposed project caused the damage. The 
findings shall be submitted to the Building and Safety Division and the Zoning Officer for review. 
If it is determined that project construction has resulted in damage to the structure, the damage 
shall be repaired to the pre-existing condition by the project sponsor, provided that the property 
owner approves of the repair. 

Prior to Issuance of Any Building Permit: 
17. Significant Community Benefits: As per City Council Resolution No. 67,172-N.S. all significant

community benefits agreed to by the applicant, and approved by the City, shall be included as
Conditions of Approval, and prior to issuance of a building permit, a community benefits
agreement shall be recorded as a notice of limitation on the title for the property. The significant
community benefits are as follows:

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 10 of 22 

Page 21 of 162

25



Project Labor Agreement. An agreement with all twenty eight member trades of the 
Alameda County Building Trades Council, without any trade or work exclusions.  Value: 
$5,547,020. Based on 5% of estimated construction costs, as per City Council Resolution 
67,172 – N.S. 
Community Space. A 677 square-foot community art space next to the residential lobby 
that will be available for community events. 

18. Percent for Public Art: Consistent with BMC §23C.23, the applicant shall either pay the required
in-lieu fee or provide the equivalent amount in a financial guarantee to be released after
installation of the On-Site Publicly Accessible Art.

19. Affordable Housing Mitigation Fee: Consistent with BMC §22.20.065, and fee resolution
applicable to this project, the applicant provide a schedule, consistent with a schedule approved
by the City Manager or her designee, outlining the timeframe for payment of the AHMF, and they
shall pay this fee prior to certificate of occupancy.

20. Construction Noise Management - Public Notice Required.  At least two weeks prior to initiating
any construction activities at the site, the applicant shall provide notice to businesses and
residents within 500 feet of the project site.  This notice shall at a minimum provide the following:
(1) project description, (2) description of construction activities, (3) daily construction schedule
(i.e., time of day) and expected duration (number of months), (4) the name and phone number of
the Project Liaison for the project that is responsible for responding to any local complaints, (5)
commitment to notify neighbors at least four days in advance of authorized extended work hours
and the reason for extended hours, and (6) that construction work is about to commence. The
liaison would determine the cause of all construction-related complaints (e.g., starting too early,
bad muffler, worker parking, etc.) and institute reasonable measures to correct the problem. A
copy of such notice and methodology for distributing the notice shall be provided in advance to
the City for review and approval.

21. Interior Noise Levels. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a report to
the Building and Safety Division and the Zoning Officer by a qualified acoustic engineer certifying
that the interior residential portions of the project will achieve interior noise levels of no more than
45 Ldn (Average Day-Night Levels). If the adopted Building Code imposes a more restrictive
standard for interior noise levels, the report shall certify compliance with this standard.

22. Construction Phases.  The applicant shall provide the Zoning Officer with a schedule of major
construction phases with start dates and expected duration, a description of the activities and
anticipated noise levels of each phase, and the name(s) and phone number(s) of the individual(s)
directly supervising each phase.  The Zoning Officer or his/her designee shall have the authority
to require an on-site meeting with these individuals as necessary to ensure compliance with
these conditions.  The applicant shall notify the Zoning Officer of any changes to this schedule as
soon as possible.

23. Demolition.  Demolition of the existing building cannot commence until a complete application is
submitted for the replacement building.  In addition, all plans presented to the City to obtain a
permit to allow the demolition are subject to these conditions.

24. Parking In-Lieu Fee.  Consistent with BMC 23E.28.080.D, the applicant shall pay a fee in lieu of
providing each required vehicle parking.  As set by the City Council, the graduated fee is as

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 11 of 22 

Page 22 of 162

26



follows: $15,000 for each space 1-5, $20,000 or each space 6-15, $25,000 for each space 16-25, 
and $30,000 for each space above 25. The in lieu fee will be deposited into a fund established by 
the City that provides enhanced transit services.  

 
25. Streets and Open Space Improvement Plan: Street Frontage Improvements.  Streets and Open 

Space Improvement Plan: Street Frontage Improvements. Consistent with the Downtown Streets 
and Open Space Improvement Plan (SOSIP) (or subsequent iterations as adopted by the City), 
the developer shall construct improvements along Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way to the 
centerline. Such improvements shall be included with the building permit submittal, designed and 
constructed as directed by the Public Works and Fire Departments, and constructed prior to 
certificate of occupancy. At the discretion of the City Engineer, the developer may be required to 
pay a fee in lieu of certain improvements as specified in the SOSIP Impact Fee COA below. 

 
26. Streets and Open Space Improvement Plan: Impact Fee:  As required by BMC Section 

23E.68.075, the project shall pay an impact fee to implement the Streets and Open Space 
Improvement Plan (SOSIP) per the fee schedule adopted by the Council by resolution. The City 
shall deposit this payment into the Downtown Streets and Open Space Improvement Fund 
(SOSIF), or its equivalent, to pay for the design and construction of the SOSIP Major Projects. 
The fee shall apply to the project’s “Gross Floor Area” as defined in BMC Section 23F.04.010, 
less any existing Gross Floor Area removed as part of the project. 

 
At the City's discretion, the City Manager or her designee may reduce the required SOSIP Impact 
Fee, on a $1 to $1 ratio, as a credit for constructing all or a portion of a Major SOSIP 
Improvement Project beyond the frontage improvements already required by this Permit. The first 
half of this fee shall be paid prior to issuance of a building permit, and the second half shall be 
paid prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

 
27. SOSIP Improvements: At the discretion of the City Engineer, the developer shall make an in-lieu 

payment for roadway improvements which are not constructed as part of the project, with a 
maximum payment of $400,000 for expected improvements. Maximum payment amount shall be 
increased annually (if applicable) based on the Engineering News Record’s construction prices 
for the San Francisco Bay Area. The first half of these payments shall be made prior to issuance 
of a building permit, and the second half shall be made prior to issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy. 

 
28. Green Building Certification. The applicant shall submit documentation demonstrating that the 

building will attain LEED Gold or higher, or attain a building performance equivalent to this rating 
that has been approved by the Zoning Officer for this project. Documentation shall include proof 
of payment of the registration/application fee to the organization administering the green building 
certification system (e.g. USGBC/GBCI for LEED, Build It Green for GreenPoint Rated, etc.), a 
copy of the updated green building checklist that reflects anticipated points, and a statement from 
the appropriate project team professional (e.g. LEED Accredited Professional, GreenPoint Rater, 
etc.) verifying that the project is on track for certification at the required level or above. The 
submitted green building checklist must be a type that is appropriate for the project and a version 
that is being accepted by the organization granting the green building certification at the time of 
building permit application. Whenever applicable, measures from the green building checklist 
shall be incorporated and noted on site plans. 

 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 12 of 22 

Page 23 of 162

27



29. Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging. At least 10% of the project parking spaces for residential parking 
and 3% of the parking spaces for non-residential parking shall be pre-wired to allow for future 
Level 2 (240 Volt/40 amp) plug-in electric vehicle (EV) charging system installation, as specified 
by the Office of Energy and Sustainable Development. Any Level 2 EV charging systems 
installed at parking spaces will be counted toward the applicable pre-wiring requirement. Pre-
wiring for EV charging and EV charging station installations shall be noted on site plans. 

 
30. Recycling and Organics Collection. Applicant shall provide recycling and organics collection 

areas for occupants, clearly marked on site plans, which comply with the Alameda County 
Mandatory Recycling Ordinance (ACWMA Ordinance 2012-01). 

 
31. Water Efficient Landscaping. Applicant shall provide an updated Bay-Friendly Basics Landscape 

Checklist that includes detailed notes of any measures that will not be fully met at the project. 
Landscape improvements shall be consistent with the current versions of the State’s Water 
Efficient Landscape Ordinance (WELO) and the East Bay Municipal Utility District’s Section 31: 
Water Efficiency Requirements.  

 
32. Construction and Demolition. Applicant shall submit a Waste Diversion Form and Waste 

Diversion Plan that meet the diversion requirements of BMC Chapters 19.24 and 19.37. 
 
33. Public Works ADA.  Plans submitted for building permit shall include replacement of sidewalk, 

curb, gutter, and other streetscape improvements, as necessary to comply with current City of 
Berkeley standards for accessibility. 

 
34. Parking for Disabled Persons.  Per BMC Section 23E.28.040.D of the Zoning Ordinance, 

“Notwithstanding any reduction in off-street parking spaces that may be granted for mixed-use 
projects in non-residential districts listed in Sub-title 23E, the requirement for off-street parking 
spaces for disabled persons in the project shall be calculated as if there had been no reduction in 
total parking spaces.” 

 
35. Toxics. The applicant shall contact the Toxics Management Division (TMD) at 1947 Center Street 

or (510) 981-7470 to determine which of the following documents are required and timing for their 
submittal:  
A. Environmental Site Assessments: 

1) Phase I & Phase II Environmental Site Assessments (latest ASTM 1527-13).  A recent 
Phase I ESA (less than 6 months old*) shall be submitted to TMD for developments for: 
 All new commercial, industrial and mixed use developments and all large improvement 

projects.  
 All new residential buildings with 5 or more dwelling units located in the Environmental 

Management Area (or EMA). 
 EMA is available online at:   
 http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf 

2) Phase II ESA is required to evaluate Recognized Environmental Conditions (REC) 
identified in the Phase I or other RECs identified by TMD staff.  The TMD may require a 
third party toxicologist to review human or ecological health risks that may be identified. 
The applicant may apply to the appropriate state, regional or county cleanup agency to 
evaluate the risks.   

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 13 of 22 

Page 24 of 162

28

http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E.html#23E
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/IT/Level_3_-_General/ema.pdf


3) If the Phase I is over 6 months old, it will require a new site reconnaissance and
interviews. If the facility was subject to regulation under Title 15 of the Berkeley Municipal
Code since the last Phase I was conducted, a new records review must be performed.

B. Soil and Groundwater Management Plan:
1) A Soil and Groundwater Management Plan (SGMP) shall be submitted to TMD for all non-

residential projects, and residential or mixed-use projects with five or more dwelling units,
that: (1) are in the Environmental Management Area (EMA) and (2) propose any
excavations deeper than 5 feet below grade. The SGMP shall be site specific and identify
procedures for soil and groundwater management including identification of pollutants and
disposal methods. The SGMP will identify permits required and comply with all applicable
local, state and regional requirements.

2) The SGMP shall require notification to TMD of any hazardous materials found in soils and
groundwater during development. The SGMP will provide guidance on managing odors
during excavation. The SGMP will provide the name and phone number of the individual
responsible for implementing the SGMP and post the name and phone number for the
person responding to community questions and complaints.

3) TMD may impose additional conditions as deemed necessary. All requirements of the
approved SGMP shall be deemed conditions of approval of this Use Permit.

C. Building Materials Survey:
1) Prior to approving any permit for partial or complete demolition and renovation activities

involving the removal of 20 square or lineal feet of interior or exterior walls, a building
materials survey shall be conducted by a qualified professional. The survey shall include,
but not be limited to, identification of any lead-based paint, asbestos, polychlorinated
biphenyl (PBC) containing equipment, hydraulic fluids in elevators or lifts, refrigeration
systems, treated wood and mercury containing devices (including fluorescent light bulbs
and mercury switches). The Survey shall include plans on hazardous waste or hazardous
materials removal, reuse or disposal procedures to be implemented that fully comply state
hazardous waste generator requirements (22 California Code of Regulations 66260 et
seq). The Survey becomes a condition of any building or demolition permit for the project.
Documentation evidencing disposal of hazardous waste in compliance with the survey
shall be submitted to TMD within 30 days of the completion of the demolition. If asbestos is
identified, Bay Area Air Quality Management District Regulation 11-2-401.3 a notification
must be made and the J number must be made available to the City of Berkeley Permit
Service Center.

D. Hazardous Materials Business Plan:
1) A Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP) in compliance with BMC Section 15.12.040

shall be submitted electronically at http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/  within 30 days if on-site
hazardous materials exceed BMC 15.20.040. HMBP requirement can be found at
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/

Prior to Demolition or Start of Construction: 
36. Construction Meeting. The applicant shall request of the Zoning Officer an on-site meeting with

City staff and key parties involved in the early phases of construction (e.g., applicant, general
contractor, foundation subcontractors) to review these conditions and the construction schedule.
The general contractor or applicant shall ensure that all subcontractors involved in subsequent
phases of construction aware of the conditions of approval.

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 14 of 22 

Page 25 of 162

29

http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/
http://ci.berkeley.ca.us/hmr/


During Construction: 
37. Construction Hours.  Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 7:00 AM and 

6:00 PM on Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 AM and 4:00 PM on Saturday. No 
construction-related activity shall occur on Sunday or any Federal Holiday.   

 
38. Construction Hours- Exceptions.  It is recognized that certain construction activities, such as the 

placement of concrete, must be performed in a continuous manner and may require an extension 
of these work hours.  Prior to initiating any activity that might require a longer period, the 
developer must notify the Zoning Officer and request an exception for a finite period of time.  If 
the Zoning Officer approves the request, then two weeks prior to the expanded schedule, the 
developer shall notify businesses and residents within 500 feet of the project site describing the 
expanded construction hours. A copy of such notice and methodology for distributing the notice 
shall be provided in advance to the City for review and approval. The project shall not be allowed 
more than 15 extended working days. 

 
39. Transportation Construction Plan.  The applicant and all persons associated with the project are 

hereby notified that a Transportation Construction Plan (TCP) is required for all phases of 
construction, particularly for the following activities: 
 Alterations, closures, or blockages to sidewalks, pedestrian paths or vehicle travel lanes 

(including bicycle lanes); 
 Storage of building materials, dumpsters, debris anywhere in the public ROW; 
 Provision of exclusive contractor parking on-street; or  
 Significant truck activity. 

 
The applicant shall secure the City Traffic Engineer’s approval of a TCP.  Please contact the 
Office of Transportation at 981-7010, or 1947 Center Street, and ask to speak to a traffic 
engineer.  In addition to other requirements of the Traffic Engineer, this plan shall include the 
locations of material and equipment storage, trailers, worker parking, a schedule of site 
operations that may block traffic, and provisions for traffic control.  The TCP shall be consistent 
with any other requirements of the construction phase.   
 
Contact the Permit Service Center (PSC) at 1947 Center Street or 981-7500 for details on 
obtaining Construction/No Parking Permits (and associated signs and accompanying dashboard 
permits).  Please note that the Zoning Officer and/or Traffic Engineer may limit off-site parking of 
construction-related vehicles if necessary to protect the health, safety or convenience of the 
surrounding neighborhood.  A current copy of this Plan shall be available at all times at the 
construction site for review by City Staff. 

 
40. Project Construction Website. The applicant shall establish a project construction website with 

the following information clearly accessible and updated monthly or more frequently as changes 
warrant: 
 Contact information (i.e. “hotline” phone number, and email address) for the project 

construction manager 
 Calendar and schedule of daily/weekly/monthly construction activities 
 The final Conditions of Approval, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, Transportation 

Construction Plan, Construction Noise Reduction Program, and any other reports or programs 
related to construction noise, air quality, and traffic.  

 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 15 of 22 

Page 26 of 162

30



41. Avoid Disturbance of Nesting Birds. Initial site disturbance activities, including vegetation and
concrete removal, shall be prohibited during the general avian nesting season (February 1 to
August 30), if feasible. If nesting season avoidance is not feasible, the applicant shall retain a
qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction nesting bird survey to determine the
presence/absence, location, and activity status of any active nests on or adjacent to the project
site. The extent of the survey buffer area surrounding the site shall be established by the qualified
biologist to ensure that direct and indirect effects to nesting birds are avoided. To avoid the
destruction of active nests and to protect the reproductive success of birds protected by the
MBTA and CFGC, nesting bird surveys shall be performed not more than 14 days prior to
scheduled vegetation and concrete removal. In the event that active nests are discovered, a
suitable buffer (typically a minimum buffer of 50 feet for passerines and a minimum buffer of 250
feet for raptors) shall be established around such active nests and no construction shall be
allowed inside the buffer areas until a qualified biologist has determined that the nest is no longer
active (e.g., the nestlings have fledged and are no longer reliant on the nest). No ground-
disturbing activities shall occur within this buffer until the qualified biologist has confirmed that
breeding/nesting is completed and the young have fledged the nest. Nesting bird surveys are not
required for construction activities occurring between August 31 and January 31.

42. Air Quality - Diesel Particulate Matter Controls during Construction. All off-road construction
equipment used for projects with construction lasting more than 2 months shall comply with one
of the following measures:
A. The project applicant shall prepare a health risk assessment that demonstrates the project’s

on-site emissions of diesel particulate matter during construction will not exceed health risk
screening criteria after a screening-level health risk assessment is conducted in accordance
with current guidance from BAAQMD and OEHHA. The health risk assessment shall be
submitted to the Public Works Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of
building permits.

B. All construction equipment shall be equipped with Tier 2 or higher engines and the most
effective Verified Diesel Emission Control Strategies (VDECS) available for the engine type
(Tier 4 engines automatically meet this requirement) as certified by the California Air
Resources Board (CARB). The equipment shall be properly maintained and tuned in
accordance with manufacturer specifications.

In addition, a Construction Emissions Minimization Plan (Emissions Plan) shall be prepared that 
includes the following: 
 An equipment inventory summarizing the type of off-road equipment required for each phase

of construction, including the equipment manufacturer, equipment identification number,
engine model year, engine certification (tier rating), horsepower, and engine serial number.
For all VDECS, the equipment inventory shall also include the technology type, serial number,
make, model, manufacturer, CARB verification number level, and installation date.

 A Certification Statement that the Contractor agrees to comply fully with the Emissions Plan
and acknowledges that a significant violation of the Emissions Plan shall constitute a material
breach of contract.  The Emissions Plan shall be submitted to the Public Works Department
for review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits.

43. Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction).
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique
archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted.
Therefore:

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 16 of 22 

Page 27 of 162

31



A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are discovered 
during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources shall be halted and 
the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a qualified archaeologist, historian 
or paleontologist to assess the significance of the find. 

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent and/or lead 
agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the appropriate avoidance 
measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate determination to be made by the 
City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials recovered shall be subject to scientific 
analysis, professional museum curation, and/or a report prepared by the qualified professional 
according to current professional standards. 

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the project 
applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of factors such 
as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other considerations. 

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data recovery) 
shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while mitigation 
measures for cultural resources is carried out. 

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report on the 
findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center. 

 
44. Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the event that 

human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-disturbing activities, all 
work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner shall be contacted to evaluate the 
remains, and following the procedures and protocols pursuant to Section 15064.5 (e)(1) of the 
CEQA Guidelines. If the County Coroner determines that the remains are Native American, the 
City shall contact the California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to 
subdivision (c) of Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, and all excavation and site 
preparation activities shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find until appropriate arrangements 
are made. If the agencies determine that avoidance is not feasible, then an alternative plan shall 
be prepared with specific steps and timeframe required to resume construction activities. 
Monitoring, data recovery, determination of significance and avoidance measures (if applicable) 
shall be completed expeditiously. 

 
45. Paleontological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the 

event of an unanticipated discovery of a paleontological resource during construction, 
excavations within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily halted or diverted until the discovery is 
examined by a qualified paleontologist (per Society of Vertebrate Paleontology standards [SVP 
1995,1996]). The qualified paleontologist shall document the discovery as needed, evaluate the 
potential resource, and assess the significance of the find. The paleontologist shall notify the 
appropriate agencies to determine procedures that would be followed before construction is 
allowed to resume at the location of the find. If the City determines that avoidance is not feasible, 
the paleontologist shall prepare an excavation plan for mitigating the effect of the project on the 
qualities that make the resource important, and such plan shall be implemented. The plan shall 
be submitted to the City for review and approval. 

 
46. Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the event that cultural 

resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, all work within 50 feet of 
the discovery shall be redirected. The project applicant and project construction contractor shall 
notify the City Planning Department within 24 hours.  The City will again contact any tribes who 
have requested consultation under AB 52, as well as contact a qualified archaeologist, to 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 17 of 22 

Page 28 of 162

32



evaluate the resources and situation and provide recommendations.  If it is determined that the 
resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be 
prepared and implemented in accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native 
American groups. If the resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce 
impacts to the resource and to address tribal concerns may be required.  

 
47. Stormwater Requirements. The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with the requirements of 

the City’s National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit as described in BMC 
Section 17.20.  The following conditions apply: 
A. The project plans shall identify and show site-specific Best Management Practices (BMPs) 

appropriate to activities conducted on-site to limit to the maximum extent practicable the 
discharge of pollutants to the City's storm drainage system, regardless of season or weather 
conditions. 

B. Trash enclosures and/or recycling area(s) shall be covered; no other area shall drain onto this 
area.  Drains in any wash or process area shall not discharge to the storm drain system; 
these drains should connect to the sanitary sewer.  Applicant shall contact the City of 
Berkeley and EBMUD for specific connection and discharge requirements.  Discharges to the 
sanitary sewer are subject to the review, approval and conditions of the City of Berkeley and 
EBMUD. 

C. Landscaping shall be designed with efficient irrigation to reduce runoff, promote surface 
infiltration and minimize the use of fertilizers and pesticides that contribute to stormwater 
pollution.  Where feasible, landscaping should be designed and operated to treat runoff.  
When and where possible, xeriscape and drought tolerant plants shall be incorporated into 
new development plans. 

D. Design, location and maintenance requirements and schedules for any stormwater quality 
treatment structural controls shall be submitted to the Department of Public Works for review 
with respect to reasonable adequacy of the controls.  The review does not relieve the property 
owner of the responsibility for complying with BMC Chapter 17.20 and future revisions to the 
City's overall stormwater quality ordinances.  This review shall be shall be conducted prior to 
the issuance of a Building Permit. 

E. All paved outdoor storage areas must be designed to reduce/limit the potential for runoff to 
contact pollutants. 

F. All on-site storm drain inlets/catch basins must be cleaned at least once a year immediately 
prior to the rainy season.  The property owner shall be responsible for all costs associated 
with proper operation and maintenance of all storm drainage facilities (pipelines, inlets, catch 
basins, outlets, etc.) associated with the project, unless the City accepts such facilities by 
Council action.  Additional cleaning may be required by City of Berkeley Public Works 
Engineering Dept. 

G. All private or public projects that create and/or replace 10,000 square feet or more of 
impervious surface must comply with Provision C.3 of the Alameda County NPDES permit 
and must incorporate stormwater controls to enhance water quality. Permit submittals shall 
include a Stormwater Requirement Checklist and detailed information showing how the 
proposed project will meet Provision C.3 stormwater requirements, including a) Site design 
measures to reduce impervious surfaces, promote infiltration, and reduce water quality 
impacts; b) Source Control Measures to keep pollutants out of stormwater runoff; c) 
Stormwater treatment measures that are hydraulically sized to remove pollutants from 
stormwater; d) an O & M (Operations and Maintenance) agreement for all stormwater 
treatment devices and installations; and e) Engineering calculations for all stormwater devices 
(both mechanical and biological).  

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 18 of 22 

Page 29 of 162

33

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Online_Service_Center/Planning/Stormwater%20Overview_10-23-13.pdf


H. All on-site storm drain inlets must be labeled “No Dumping – Drains to Bay” or equivalent 
using methods approved by the City. 

I. Most washing and/or steam cleaning must be done at an appropriately equipped facility that 
drains to the sanitary sewer.  Any outdoor washing or pressure washing must be managed in 
such a way that there is no discharge or soaps or other pollutants to the storm drain.  Sanitary 
connections are subject to the review, approval and conditions of the sanitary district with 
jurisdiction for receiving the discharge.   

J. Sidewalks and parking lots shall be swept regularly to prevent the accumulation of litter and 
debris.  If pressure washed, debris must be trapped and collected to prevent entry to the 
storm drain system.  If any cleaning agent or degreaser is used, wash water shall not 
discharge to the storm drains; wash waters should be collected and discharged to the sanitary 
sewer.  Discharges to the sanitary sewer are subject to the review, approval and conditions of 
the sanitary district with jurisdiction for receiving the discharge. 

K. The applicant is responsible for ensuring that all contractors and sub-contractors are aware of 
and implement all stormwater quality control measures.  Failure to comply with the approved 
construction BMPs shall result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or a project stop 
work order. 

 
48. Public Works - Implement BAAQMD-Recommended Measures during Construction.  For all 

proposed projects, BAAQMD recommends implementing all the Basic Construction Mitigation 
Measures, listed below to meet the best management practices threshold for fugitive dust: 
A. All exposed surfaces (e.g., parking areas, staging areas, soil piles, graded areas, and 

unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day. 
B. All haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material off-site shall be covered. 
C. All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet power 

vacuum street sweepers at least once per day. The use of dry power sweeping is prohibited. 
D. All vehicle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 mph. 
E. All roadways, driveways, and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as possible. 

Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders 
are used. 

F. Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing 
the maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California airborne toxics control 
measure Title 13, Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations [CCR]). Clear signage shall 
be provided for construction workers at all access points. 

G. All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance with 
manufacturer‘s specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified visible emissions 
evaluator. 

H. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the lead 
agency regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action within 
48 hours. The Air District‘s phone number shall also be visible to ensure compliance with 
applicable regulations.  

 
49. Public Works.  All piles of debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered at night and 

during rainy weather with plastic at least one-eighth millimeter thick and secured to the ground. 
 
50. Public Works.  The applicant shall ensure that all excavation takes into account surface and 

subsurface waters and underground streams so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties 
and rights-of-way. 

 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 19 of 22 

Page 30 of 162

34



51. Public Works.  The project sponsor shall maintain sandbags or other devices around the site 
perimeter during the rainy season to prevent on-site soils from being washed off-site and into the 
storm drain system.  The project sponsor shall comply with all City ordinances regarding 
construction and grading. 

 
52. Public Works.  Prior to any excavation, grading, clearing, or other activities involving soil 

disturbance during the rainy season the applicant shall obtain approval of an erosion prevention 
plan by the Building and Safety Division and the Public Works Department.  The applicant shall 
be responsible for following these and any other measures required by the Building and Safety 
Division and the Public Works Department. 

 
53. Public Works.  The removal or obstruction of any fire hydrant shall require the submission of a 

plan to the City’s Public Works Department for the relocation of the fire hydrant during 
construction.  

 
54. Public Works.  If underground utilities leading to adjacent properties are uncovered and/or 

broken, the contractor involved shall immediately notify the Public Works Department and the 
Building & Safety Division, and carry out any necessary corrective action to their satisfaction. 

 
Prior to Final Inspection or Issuance of Occupancy Permit: 
55. Compliance with Conditions and Environmental Mitigations.  The project shall conform to the 

plans and statements in the Use Permit. The developer is responsible for providing sufficient 
evidence to demonstrate compliance with the requirements throughout the implementation of this 
Use Permit.  Occupancy is subject to verification of compliance to the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program. 

 
56. Compliance with Approved Plan.  The project shall conform to the plans and statements in the 

Use Permit.  All landscape, site and architectural improvements shall be completed per the 
attached approved drawings dated October 25, 2018, except as modified by conditions of 
approval. 

 
57. Car Sharing Spaces.  At least five car share spaces shall be provided within the parking garage 

for the life of the building.  In addition, these car share spaces are subject to the following 
requirements: 
A. At least 90 days prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the property owner shall do 

one of the following if necessary to ensure that car share spaces are provided at this site: 1) 
purchase 2 cars for the use of a vehicle sharing service provider, or VSSP (e.g., City 
CarShare or Zipcar), or 2) provide a monthly subsidy to offset the costs to a VSSP to provide 
for the management of the cars at this site. 

B. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the property owner shall provide one of the 
following: 1) a signed agreement with a VSSP to manage shared vehicles at the site, or 2) a 
plan to provide on-site management.  If the vehicle sharing spaces are managed by a VSSP, 
these spaces shall be accessible to all VSSP members in the same manner and during the 
same hours as other vehicles offered by the VSSP. 

 
58. Construction and Demolition Diversion.  A Waste Diversion Report, with receipts or weigh slips 

documenting debris disposal or recycling during all phases of the project, must be completed and 
submitted for approval to the City’s Building and Safety Division. The Zoning Officer may request 
summary reports at more frequent intervals, as necessary to ensure compliance with this 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 20 of 22 

Page 31 of 162

35



requirement. A copy of the Waste Diversion Plan shall be available at all times at the construction 
site for review by City Staff. 

 
59. Green Building Certification. The applicant shall submit updated documentation demonstrating 

that the building will attain LEED Gold or higher, or attain a building performance equivalent to 
this rating that has been approved by the Zoning Officer for this project. Documentation expected 
at this stage includes proof of submission of the final application materials and payment of the 
certification fee. If this submission has not yet occurred, a detailed explanation and timeline 
indicating when it will it happen must be submitted to the Zoning Officer for review and approval. 
Once awarded by the organization administering the green building certification system, the 
applicant shall forward a copy of the certification award to the Zoning Officer.    

 
 
At All Times: 
60. Exterior Lighting. All exterior lighting shall be energy efficient where feasible; and shielded and 

directed downward and away from property lines to prevent excessive glare beyond the subject 
property. 

 
61. Rooftop Projections.  No additional rooftop or elevator equipment shall be added to exceed the 

approved maximum roof height without submission of an application for a Use Permit 
Modification, subject to Board review and approval. 

 
62. Design Review. Signage and any other exterior modifications, including but not limited to 

landscaping and lighting, shall be subject to Design Review approval. 
 
63. Drainage Patterns. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do not 

adversely affect adjacent properties and rights-of-way.  Drainage plans shall be submitted for 
approval of the Building & Safety Division and Public Works Department, if required. 

 
64. Electrical Meter. Only one electrical meter fixture may be installed per dwelling unit. 
 
65. Loading.  All loading/unloading activities associated with deliveries to all uses shall be restricted 

to the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. daily. 
 
66. Residential Permit Parking. No Residential Permit Parking (RPP) permits shall be issued to 

project residents, nor shall commercial placards be issued to non-residential occupants and/or 
users of the site. The project planner shall notify the Finance Department, Customer Service 
Center, to add these addresses to the list of addresses ineligible for RPP permits. The property 
owner shall notify all tenants of rental units, and/or buyers of condominium units, of this restriction 
in leases and/or contracts, and shall provide sample leases and/or contracts including such 
notification to the project planner prior to issuance of an occupancy permit or final inspection. 

 
67. Parking to be Leased or Sold Separately.  All residential parking spaces shall be leased or sold 

separate from the rental or purchase of dwelling units. 
 
68. Bike Parking.  Secure and on-site bike parking for at least 99 bicycles shall be provided for the 

life of the building.   
 

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 21 of 22 

Page 32 of 162

36



69. Tenant Notification. The developer shall provide tenant notification, via a lease rider or deed
covenant, that each dwelling unit is located in a mixed-use area that includes commercial, food
service and entertainment uses, and that each occupant shall not seek to impede their lawful
operation.

Exhibit A 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 22 of 22 

Page 33 of 162

37



2190 Shattuck Avenue Mixed-Use Project 

Pursuant to Sections 15091 and 15093 of the 
State CEQA Guidelines and Section 21081 of the Public Resources Code 

The Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) prepared by the City of Berkeley (City) for the 
2190 Shattuck Avenue Mixed-Use Project (project) consists of the Draft Environmental Impact Report 
and the Final Environmental Impact Report Response to Comments Document. The Final EIR 
identifies significant environmental impacts that will result from implementation of the project. The City 
finds that the inclusion of certain mitigation measures as part of project approval will reduce all but 
one significant impact to levels that are less than significant. The significant and unavoidable impact 
will result from the exposure of nearby sensitive land uses to temporary noise during construction of 
the project. No feasible mitigation measures have been identified to reduce this impact to a less-than-
significant level; therefore, construction noise will remain a significant and unavoidable impact of the 
project. However, this impact is consistent with the Downtown Area Plan (DAP) EIR’s finding for 
construction noise during the development of projects in the Plan Area as a whole. Furthermore, the 
impact is subject to a Statement of Overriding Considerations described in section 7 below. 

As required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City, in adopting these CEQA 
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations, is also adopting a Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program (MMRP) for the project. The City finds that the MMRP, which is incorporated by 
reference, meets the requirements of Public Resources Code Section 21081.6 by providing for the 
implementation and monitoring of measures intended to mitigate potentially significant effects of the 
project. In accordance with CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, the City adopts these findings as part of 
the project approval. Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21082.1(c)(3), the City also finds 
that the Final EIR reflects the City’s independent judgment as the lead agency for the project. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................ 2 

SECTION 2: THE 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE MIXED-USE PROJECT .......................................................... 5 

SECTION 3: EFFECTS DETERMINED TO BE LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT OR NOT SIGNIFICANT ............. 8 

SECTION 4: EFFECTS DETERMINED TO BE MITIGATED TO LESS-THAN-SIGNIFICANT LEVELS ......... 13 

SECTION 5: SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS THAT CANNOT BE MITIGATED TO A LESS-THAN-SIGNIFICANT 
LEVEL ...................................................................................................................................... 24 

SECTION 7: STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS .............................................................. 30 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 1 of 31 

Page 34 of 162

38



SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION 
1.1 Statutory Requirements for Findings 
Section 15091 of the CEQA Guidelines states that:  
 

(a) No public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an EIR has been certified which 
identifies one or more significant environmental effects of the project unless the public agency 
makes one or more written findings for each of those significant effects, accompanied by a brief 
explanation of the rationale for each finding. The possible findings are: 
 

(1)  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or 
substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in the final EIR. 

 
(2)  Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public 

agency and not the agency making the finding. Such changes have been adopted by such 
other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency. 

 
(3)  Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of 

employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible the mitigation measures 
or project alternatives identified in the final EIR. 

 
In short, CEQA requires that the lead agency adopt mitigation measures or alternatives, where feasible, to 
avoid or mitigate significant environmental impacts that will otherwise occur with implementation of the project. 
Project mitigation or alternatives are not required, however, where they are infeasible or where the 
responsibility for modifying the project lies with another agency.1   
 
For those significant effects that cannot be mitigated to a less-than-significant level, the public agency is 
required to find that specific overriding economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits of the project 
outweigh the significant effects on the environment.2 The CEQA Guidelines state in section 15093 that: 
 

“If the specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits of a propos[ed] project 
outweigh the unavoidable adverse environmental effects, the adverse environmental effects may 
be considered ‘acceptable.” 

  
1.2 Record of Proceedings 
For purposes of CEQA and the findings set forth herein, the record of proceedings for the City’s decision on 
the project consists of:  a) matters of common knowledge to the City, including, but not limited to, federal, State 
and local laws and regulations; and b) the following documents which are in the custody of the City:  

 The Notice of Preparation and other public notices issued by the City in conjunction with the project (see 
Appendix A of the Draft EIR for the Notice of Preparation); 

 The Draft Infill Environmental Checklist and supporting documentation prepared for the proposed project, 
dated August 2017 (see Appendix A of the Draft EIR for the Draft Infill Environmental Checklist); 

 The Public Review Draft EIR, dated August 2017; 

 All written and verbal comments submitted by agencies, organizations and members of the public during the 
public comment period and at public hearings on the Draft EIR and responses to those comments (see 
Response to Comments Document in Final EIR, dated January 2018); 

1 CEQA Guidelines, 2017. Section 15091(a). 
2 Public Resources Code Section 21081(b). 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 2 of 31 

Page 35 of 162

39



 The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; 

 All findings and resolutions adopted by the City in connection with the project, and all documents cited or 
referred therein; 

 Relevant final reports, studies, memoranda, maps, correspondence, and all planning documents prepared 
by the applicant, the City or their consultants, or responsible or trustee agencies with respect to: a) the 
City’s compliance with CEQA; b) development of the project site; or c) the City’s action on the project; and 

 Relevant documents submitted to the City by agencies or members of the public in connection with 
development of the project. 

 
1.3 Infill EIR 
The EIR is a Project EIR pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15161 and an Infill EIR pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15183.3. Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.3(b), to be eligible for streamlined 
review, an infill project must:  
 

(1) Be located in an urban area on a site that either has been previously developed or that adjoins 
existing qualified urban uses on at least seventy-five percent of the site's perimeter. For the 
purpose of this subdivision "adjoin" means the infill project is immediately adjacent to qualified 
urban uses, or is only separated from such uses by an improved public right-of-way;  

(2) Satisfy the performance standards provided in Appendix M; and  
(3) Be consistent with the general use designation, density, building intensity, and applicable 

policies specified for the project area in either a sustainable communities strategy or an 
alternative planning strategy...  

 
In addition, Public Resources Code section 21099 of CEQA states that aesthetic and parking impacts of a 
residential, mixed-use residential, or employment center project on an infill site within a transit priority area 
are not to be considered significant environmental impacts. 
 
As discussed in the Infill Environmental Checklist (Appendix A to the EIR), the proposed project qualifies 
as an infill project under CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.3. It is located in an urban area on a site that 
has been previously developed. In order to be eligible for streamlined review under Section 15183.3, a 
project must meet criteria in Appendix M of the CEQA Guidelines. Information and analysis demonstrating 
that this project satisfies the Appendix M performance standards is provided in the Infill Environmental 
Checklist in a section titled “Satisfaction of Appendix M Performance Standards.”  
 
The project is consistent with the general use designation, density, building intensity and applicable 
policies specified for the project area in the City’s DAP EIR. As documented in the Infill Environmental 
Checklist, potential development on the project site was within the DAP vision and is included in all 
aspects of the DAP EIR. 
 

Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.3(c), for eligible infill projects (such as the 2190 Shattuck Avenue 
Mixed use project) CEQA does not require certain analyses that would otherwise be required:  
 

 If a significant environmental effect was analyzed in a prior EIR for a planning level decision, 
then, with some exceptions, that effect need not be analyzed again for an individual infill project 
even when that effect was not reduced to a less than significant level in the prior EIR. 

 
 An effect need not be analyzed, even if it was not analyzed in a prior EIR or is more significant 

than previously analyzed, if the lead agency makes a finding that uniformly applicable 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 3 of 31 

Page 36 of 162

40



development policies or standards, adopted by the lead agency or a city or county, apply to the 
infill project and would substantially mitigate that effect. 

 
The EIR references pertinent City policies and guidelines, certified EIRs and adopted CEQA documents, 
and background documents prepared or relied upon by the City in preparing the CEQA analysis. A full 
reference list is contained in the EIR in Section 7, References and Report Preparers. The Infill 
Environmental Checklist makes reference to the uniformly applicable development policies or standards 
that would mitigate certain impacts identified in the Checklist, and also lists the mitigation measures from 
the DAP EIR (the prior EIR for a planning level decision) that would apply to the proposed project and 
address certain identified impacts. Those uniformly applicable development policies or standards and 
DAP EIR mitigation measures are discussed in the Infill Environmental Checklist and are listed with the 
project-specific mitigation measures discussed in sections 3 and 4 below. 
 
1.4 Organization/Format of Findings 
Section 2 of these findings sets forth the objectives of the project and contains a summary description of the 
project and project alternatives. Section 3 identifies the project’s potential environmental effects that were 
determined not to be significant, and do not require mitigation. Section 4 identifies the potentially significant 
effects of the project that have been determined to be mitigated to a less-than-significant level. All numbered 
references identifying specific mitigation measures refer to numbered mitigation measures found in the Infill 
Environmental Checklist or Draft EIR and Response to Comments Document.  Section 5 identifies the 
significant impacts of the project, including cumulative impacts, that cannot be mitigated to a less-than-
significant level even though feasible mitigation measures have been identified and incorporated into the 
project. Section 6 discusses the feasibility of project alternatives. Section 7 includes the City’s Statement of 
Overriding Considerations. 
 
 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 4 of 31 

Page 37 of 162

41



SECTION 2: THE 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE MIXED-USE PROJECT  
This section lists the objectives of the proposed project, provides a brief description of the project, and lists the 
alternatives evaluated in the Draft EIR and Final EIR. 
 
2.1 Project Objectives 
The objectives of the applicant for the proposed 2190 Shattuck Avenue Mixed-Use Project are to: 
 

1. Implement the Downtown Area Plan and Street & Open Space Improvement Plan by taking advantage 
of the full development potential under Zoning Ordinance standards and in turn, generating the revenue 
necessary to support the amenities and community benefits envisioned in the Downtown Area Plan, 
and maintaining the financial feasibility of the Project.  

2. Generate much-needed, highly livable, transit-oriented, and sustainable market rate housing; and 
contribute substantial affordable housing (and/or fees to support development of such housing) as 
required by Berkeley Municipal Code Section 22.20.065. 

3. Assist the State, region and the City to achieve established housing production goals. 
4. Design a project that is feasible and contributes positively to the economic, social, and environmental 

goals of the City. 
5. Establish a thriving, livable and diverse residential neighborhood that maximizes transit-oriented density 

and establish an environmentally sustainable community with 400-450 new residents.  
6. Stimulate and activate the pedestrian environment along Allston Way by replacing the existing 

structure, with vibrant, walkable retail and pedestrian amenities and offering diverse, walk-to 
destinations.  

7. Upgrade and revitalize an important urban block in Downtown Berkeley into a walkable, retail-centered, 
transit-friendly, residential block with active, safe and visually engaging pedestrian amenities consistent 
with the Downtown Area Plan and the Streets and Open Space Improvement Plan, while respecting 
key historic resources on adjacent blocks.  

8. Develop a superior building, integrating environmentally sustainable development practices in design, 
development, and construction. 

9. Utilize ecologically beneficial landscaping techniques that complement and enhance the local 
environment and reinforce the City’s commitment to environmental sustainability, promote watershed 
health and create safe, comfortable, and inviting open spaces.  

10. Actively encourage alternative modes of transportation by foot, by bicycle and via transit, for residents, 
employees, and retail customers by providing residents and employees with a range of Transportation 
Demand Management measures that are made possible by the income generated by the project’s size 
and scale, and prioritizing the safety, attractiveness and convenience of the pedestrian experience.  

11. Generate significant new revenue streams for the City of Berkeley through increased property taxes 
and property-based revenues, economically sensitive revenues such as sales taxes and business 
license taxes, jobs creation, gross receipts taxes, and a new residential population that supports a 
successful mix of retail businesses, institutions and other attractions in Downtown Berkeley. 

 
2.2   Project Description 
The project is a proposed 211,590 square-foot residential and commercial mixed-use development in 
Downtown Berkeley. The project would involve demolition of an existing two-story commercial building that 
covers the entire project site and construction of an 18-story building with retail commercial ground-floor uses, 
residential upper-floor uses, and a two-level subterranean parking garage with 103 parking spaces. The 
completed project would include 274 residential units and 10,000 square feet of commercial space. The 
commercial storefronts would front on the Shattuck Avenue BART Plaza and wrap around to Allston Way on 
the south. A 677 square-foot community art space next to the residential lobby would be available for 
community events.  

The proposed building would have components of various heights, with the highest portion reaching 180 feet, 
excluding rooftop architectural projections (a parapet and elevator enclosures) that would extend up to 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 5 of 31 

Page 38 of 162

42



approximately 190 feet. The project would maintain a continuous street wall at the edge of the abutting streets 
up to where the building would step back toward the interior of the site. At a height of approximately 72 feet 
(seven stories) above street level, the building would step back 15 feet from Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way. 
Above the 12th floor, the building would step back an additional 65 feet from Shattuck Avenue. 

A more detailed description of the proposed project is provided in Section 2, Project Description, of the Draft 
EIR. 
 
2.3   Alternatives 
Based on the project objectives and anticipated environmental consequences, and pursuant to Section 
15126.6 of the CEQA Guidelines, the following project alternatives were selected for analysis:   

 No Project Alternative. This alternative assumes that the proposed project is not implemented and the 
existing two-story commercial building is left intact. This alternative assumes that the building occupancy 
would remain as is, including the Walgreens drug store and pharmacy on the ground floor and office uses 
on the second floor, while the basement would remain vacant. 

 Reduced Parking Alternative. This alternative assumes that the proposed building would provide fewer 
off-street parking spaces for vehicles than would the proposed project but the same intensity of residential 
and commercial development (274 residential units and 10,000 square feet of retail commercial space). 
The garage would include 58 parking spaces as compared to 103 parking spaces under the proposed 
project. The 58 parking spaces would consist of the following: 

 48 parking spaces in a three-tiered mechanical lift system 

 4 independently accessible (non-tiered) parking spaces 

 3 parking spaces accessible to persons with disabilities 

 3 vehicle share parking spaces 

While the proposed project would include a two-level subterranean parking garage, this alternative would 
provide either a one- or two-level garage to accommodate 58 parking spaces and building support 
systems. 

 14-Story Building Alternative. This alternative would reduce the proposed building’s height from 18 to 14 
stories and the number of dwelling units from 274 to approximately 250, for the purpose of minimizing the 
obstruction of scenic views from Campanile Way on the UC Berkeley campus. The building would have a 
maximum height of 142 feet, 2 inches, plus an additional 4 feet of rooftop architectural projections above 
rooftop residential units. Relative to the proposed project, the 14-Story Building Alternative would reduce 
the building’s maximum height by approximately 38 feet. Similar to the proposed project, this alternative 
would provide 10,000 square feet of commercial space and 103 parking spaces in a two-level underground 
garage. 

This alternative would require several additional use permits compared to the proposed project pursuant to 
the City’s C-DMU Downtown Mixed Use District standards: to exceed the bulk height limit at 120 feet by 22 
feet, 1 inch; to reduce usable open space below the amount required; and to reduce the front, rear, and 
interior side setbacks below the distance required. However, while the project would require an 
administrative use permit to allow architectural projections to exceed the maximum building height of 180 
feet, this permit would be unnecessary for the reduced-height alternative. With approval of the additional 
use permits, the 14-Story Building Alternative would be consistent with zoning standards.  

 15-Story Building Alternative. This alternative would reduce the proposed building’s height from 18 to 15 
stories, for the purpose of reducing the obstruction of views from Campanile Way, while still maintaining the 
same number of dwelling units (274). The building would have a maximum height of 151 feet, 4 inches, 
plus an additional 14 feet of rooftop architectural projections. Relative to the proposed project, the 15-Story 
Building Alternative would reduce the building’s maximum height by approximately 29 feet. To provide the 
same residential density as the proposed project in fewer stories, the alternative would widen the proposed 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 6 of 31 

Page 39 of 162

43



upper floors. While the project’s upper tier would step back an additional 65 feet from Shattuck Avenue 
above the 12th floor, this alternative would eliminate that setback. Similar to the proposed project, this 
alternative would provide 10,000 square feet of commercial space and 103 parking spaces in a two-level 
underground garage. 
This alternative would require several additional use permits to the proposed project pursuant to the City’s 
C-DMU Downtown Mixed Use District standards: to exceed the bulk height limit at 120 feet by 31 feet, 3 
inches; and to reduce the rear and interior side setbacks below the distance required. However, while the 
project would require an administrative use permit to allow architectural projections to exceed the 
maximum building height of 180 feet, this permit would be unnecessary for the reduced-height alternative. 
With approval of the additional use permits, the 15-Story Building Alternative would be consistent with 
zoning standards. 
 

A more detailed description of these alternatives, and required findings, are set forth in Section 6: Feasibility of 
Project Alternatives. 
 
 
  

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 7 of 31 

Page 40 of 162

44



SECTION 3: EFFECTS DETERMINED TO BE LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT OR NOT 
SIGNIFICANT 
The City finds that, based upon substantial evidence in the record, as discussed below, the following impacts 
associated with the project are not significant or are less than significant. The Infill Environmental Checklist 
included as Appendix A of the Draft EIR and Section 4.0 of the Draft EIR provide a detailed analysis of the 
less-than-significant impacts of the proposed project.  

3.1 Agricultural and Forestry Resources 
The project site and vicinity are located within an urban area in the city of Berkeley. There are no agricultural 
resources, Williamson Act-contracted land, or forest land located on or near the project site. The California 
Department of Conservation classifies the site and all surrounding properties classified as “Urban and Built-Up 
Land” (2014). The project would not convert agricultural land to non-agricultural uses or result in the loss of 
forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use. The site’s urban zoning designation would not 
change. Although there are seven street trees on Allston Way that would be removed during site preparation 
and construction, those ornamental trees are not considered forestry resources, and the project includes 
replacing them with approximately seven street trees of species acceptable to the City’s Street Trees and 
Urban Forestry Management Program. Therefore, the City finds that the proposed project will have no impact 
on agricultural or forestry resources. 

3.2 Air Quality 
The City of Berkeley and the project site are located in the San Francisco Bay air basin and are within the 
jurisdiction of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). The latest air quality plan, the 2017 
Clean Air Plan, is a roadmap showing how the San Francisco Bay Area will achieve compliance with the state 
standard for atmospheric ozone levels over a one-hour period as expeditiously as practicable, and how the 
region will reduce transport of ozone and ozone precursors to neighboring air basins. A project’s consistency 
with BAAQMD quantitative thresholds demonstrates support for the CAP goals. The short-term and long-term 
emissions of the project are not anticipated to exceed BAAQMD thresholds. Furthermore, the project would be 
consistent with the growth assumptions in the Clean Air Plan. Therefore, the project would be consistent with 
the Clean Air Plan. Although construction emissions would be below BAAQMD project-level thresholds, the 
project would be subject to Mitigation Measure AIR-3 from the DAP EIR to minimize PM10 and PM2.5 
construction emissions. Implementation of this measure would reduce air quality impacts to a less-than-
significant level. On-site sensitive receptors would not be exposed to substantial levels of TACs that would 
significantly impact human health. In addition, the project would not generate substantial odors and its site is 
not located near any land uses considered by the 2012 BAAQMD CEQA Guidelines to have greater potential 
for offensive odors. Therefore, the project will have a less-than-significant impact on air quality.  

3.3 Biological Resources 
The project site and vicinity are located within an urban area in the city of Berkeley and within the DAP area. 
The setting information for the project site is the same as that described for the DAP area in the DAP EIR; 
there is virtually no vegetation on-site or adjacent other than non-native street trees on Allston Way and 
Shattuck Avenue, and no wetlands or riparian or other habitat on site or nearby. There is no suitable habitat for 
special status wildlife on site or adjacent. The project site does not provide a suitable corridor for wildlife 
movement, as it is completely developed with an existing building and not adjacent to habitat or wildlife 
movement areas. As existing street trees affected by the project would be replaced with an equal or greater 
number of street trees of species acceptable to the City’s Street Trees and Urban Forestry Management 
Program, no conflict with local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, including trees, would 
occur. No adopted Habitat Conservation Plans, Natural Community Conservation Plans or other approved 
local, regional, or state habitat conservation plans apply to the project site. 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 8 of 31 

Page 41 of 162

45



The City of Berkeley has adopted bird-safe building standards that are “uniformly applicable development 
policies for multi-story buildings with the potential for significant bird strikes (City of Berkeley, Additional 
Amendments to the Master Use Permit Process, West Berkeley Project EIR, 2012). Pursuant to these 
standards, new buildings with the potential for significant bird strikes must adhere to specific design measures, 
which would be included in the conditions of approval for the proposed project, as applicable. Therefore, the 
City finds that the proposed project will have a less-than-significant impact on biological resources. 
 

3.4 Cultural Resources 
As discussed in the DAP EIR, no archaeological or paleontological resources are currently known to exist in 
the Downtown Area, which includes the project site. Nevertheless, the DAP EIR identified impacts to 
unrecorded subsurface archaeological and paleontological resources, and to human remains, as potentially 
significant but mitigable. The proposed excavation to a maximum depth of 41 feet below the existing street-
level for the foundation beneath the elevator shaft could uncover previously undisturbed resources, if they are 
located on the site. The site is not known to have greater likelihood of containing subsurface archaeological 
and paleontological resources or human remains than the DAP area as a whole. Therefore, mitigation 
measures CUL-3 through CUL-5 would apply to the project, and would reduce impacts to less than significant 
levels. Therefore, the City finds that the proposed project will not result in significant impacts related to cultural 
resources beyond those described in Section 4 of this document with regard to historic resources. 
 

3.5 Geology and Soils 
As stated in the DAP EIR, the Downtown Area is not in an Alquist Priolo fault zone and is therefore not an area 
where structures are at significant risk from fault rupture; however, it is, like all of the East Bay, in an area at 
high risk from seismic shaking. However, the 2016 California Building Code (CBC), as adopted in Chapter 
19.28 of the Berkeley Municipal Code, contains requirements for structural design, including seismic design 
specifications. Compliance with the mandatory building code structural specifications would result in a building 
that resists adverse effects from seismic ground-shaking. In addition, building design in compliance with the 
2016 CBC would result in result in a building that resists adverse effects from seismic-related liquefaction. As 
stated in the DAP EIR, the Downtown Area is relatively flat and not subject to landslides. The use of standard 
soil erosion control measures during demolition and construction associated with the project would be 
expected to minimize erosion from exposed surfaces and reduce soil erosion impacts to a less than significant 
level. As stated in the DAP EIR, expansive soils may be present within the Downtown Area. However, the 
Geotechnical Feasibility Report prepared for the project did not identify expansive soils as a potential hazard at 
this site. Excavation to a maximum depth of 41 feet below the surface grade and removal of existing soil for the 
construction of building foundations would further reduce the risk of expansive soils to structural stability. The 
project also would not involve the use of septic systems. Therefore, the City finds that the proposed project will 
not result in significant impacts related to geologic and soil hazards beyond those described in Section 4 of this 
document. 
 
3.6 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
The combined annual emissions from new development on the project site would total approximately 1,085 
metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e) per year, which does not exceed the BAAQMD threshold of 
1,100 metric tons per year. The project’s GHG efficiency was calculated by dividing the project’s GHG 
emissions (1,085 MT CO2e per year) by the service population (573), which equals 1.9 MT CO2e per service 
population per year. This emissions rate would be 1.0 MT CO2e below the region-specific efficiency metric of 
2.9 MT CO2e per service population per year. Therefore, the project would be consistent with the most recent 
State emissions goals. The project also would not conflict with California’s commitment to GHG reduction 
under AB 32, SB 32, or any other plan, policy or regulation intended to reduce GHG emissions. Therefore, the 
City finds that the proposed project will have a less-than-significant impact on greenhouse gas emissions. 
 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 9 of 31 

Page 42 of 162

46



3.7 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
As stated in the DAP EIR, the type of proposed commercial and residential uses can involve the use of 
hazardous materials associated with motor vehicle use and storage, and with periodic cleaning, repair, and 
maintenance or for landscape maintenance or pest control. The DAP EIR’s conclusion remains valid that, with 
existing regulations and normal standards of use, use of hazardous materials at commercial and residential 
land uses in the Downtown Area would not pose a significant risk to human health or the environment. While 
the project site is within roughly 490 feet (0.09 miles) of Berkeley High School, it would not emit hazardous 
emissions or pose a significant risk to this or any other school from hazardous materials releases. The existing 
commercial building that was constructed on the project site in 1958 would be demolished to accommodate the 
proposed mixed-use building. Based on the building’s age, it may contain Asbestos-Containing Material (ACM) 
and lead-based paint (LBP). Adherence to BAAQMD rules would ensure the proper handling and disposal of 
ACM.  
 
The project site is not included on any list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 
of the Government Code, and active sites in the vicinity does not pose a threat to people on the project site. 
The proposed excavation at the project site to a depth of up to 41 feet below street level could, however 
unlikely, disturb contaminated soils from the sources discussed above or other. However, standard conditions 
of the City of Berkeley’s Toxics Management Division (TMD) require that a Soil and Groundwater Management 
Plan (SGMP) be submitted to the TMD with the Project’s building permit application and be approved by TMD 
prior to issuance of the building permit. Compliance with these standard City conditions would reduce these 
potential impacts. As stated in the DAP EIR, the Downtown Area is not near any airports or airstrips and 
therefore is not subject to substantial airport-related hazards. In the vicinity of the project site, the City has 
designated Allston Way and Shattuck Avenue as Emergency Access and Evacuation Routes. While the project 
would involve improvements to the pedestrian environment on Allston Way and Shattuck Avenue, these offsite 
actions would not result in any street closures that could impede emergency access or evacuation. Therefore, 
the City finds that the proposed project will have a less-than-significant impact related to hazards. 
 

3.8 Hydrology and Water Quality 
Construction activities on-site would have the potential to cause soil erosion from exposed soil, an accidental 
release of hazardous materials such as vehicle fuels and lubricant, or temporary siltation from stormwater 
runoff. In addition, the proposed building would have landscaping on terraces and the rooftop that could 
produce minor quantities of polluted runoff from sources such as chemical fertilizers. However, as stated in the 
DAP EIR, in order to prevent significant adverse impacts to water quality, construction contractors are 
responsible for implementing and monitoring erosion and sedimentation control/drainage plans to ensure that 
the above requirements are being met, and that contaminants are not released into urban runoff. Because the 
project site is already fully developed with impervious surfaces, the proposed mixed-use building would not 
increase the amount of impervious surfaces on-site or increase runoff. Therefore, the project would not create 
or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems 
or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff. No portion of the Downtown Area, including the 
project site, is located within a 100-year flood hazard area or an area subject to inundation in the event of a 
dam or levee failure. Any risk of inundation by seiche, tsunami or mudflow at the project site would be remote, 
and would not be increased as a result of project development. Therefore, the City finds that the proposed 
project will not result in significant impacts related to hydrology and water quality beyond those described in 
Section 4 of this document with regard to groundwater dewatering and stability of the Strawberry Creek culvert. 
 

3.9 Land Use and Planning 
The project would have no impact regarding division of an established community, as identified in the DAP EIR 
for the Plan as a whole. The Project would have no impact regarding Habitat Conservation Plans or Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, also as identified in the DAP EIR for the Plan as a whole. The proposed 180-
foot-tall mixed-use building also would be within the overall buildout assumptions for both use and scale within 
the Core Area, which includes development on several Core sites with buildings of 120 to 180 feet in height. In 
addition, the proposed mixed-use building, with retail space and a high residential density near transit 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 10 of 31 

Page 43 of 162

47



opportunities, would be consistent with the Berkeley General Plan’s Downtown land use classification and with 
the DAP’s assumptions of development potential for 180-foot buildings in the Core Area. Although the project 
would be potentially inconsistent with General Plan policy to protect scenic views from the UC Berkeley 
campus, the aesthetic impacts of a mixed-use project on an infill site within a transit priority area may not be 
considered significant impacts on the environment. Therefore, the City finds that the project will not result in 
significant land use conflicts beyond those described in Section 4 of this document with regard to DAP policies 
for historic resource preservation and pedestrian safety. 
 

3.10 Mineral Resources 
The DAP EIR identified no known mineral deposits of local importance or value to the region or residents of the 
State, or locally-important mineral resource recovery sites, within the Downtown Area. The project site is 
located within an urban area on a developed site and impacts would remain as identified in the DAP EIR. 
Therefore, the City finds that the proposed project will result in a less-than-significant impact to mineral 
resources. 
 
3.11 Noise 
During operation of the project, on-site activities would generate noise that may periodically be audible to 
noise-sensitive receptors near the project site. On-site noise sources would include stationary equipment, such 
as rooftop ventilation and heating systems, and delivery and trash hauling trucks. However, on-site operational 
noise would not exceed ambient noise levels at nearby noise-sensitive receptors. Vehicle trips associated with 
operation of the project also would increase traffic volumes on Downtown Area roadways, resulting in greater 
traffic noise audible to existing noise-sensitive uses. However, the increase of vehicle trips from the project 
would be incremental and would not result in a substantial traffic noise increase. In addition, the project is not 
located within an airport land use plan, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, or within the 
vicinity of a private airstrip. No impacts associated with airport noise would occur. Therefore, the City finds that 
the project will not result in significant noise or vibration impacts beyond those described in Section 4 and 
Section 5 of this document with regard to construction noise, vibration, and the exposure of new residents to 
ambient noise. 
 
3.12 Population and Housing 
The project would directly increase Berkeley’s population by adding 274 residential units to the project site. 
Based on the City’s average household size for rental units, this addition of residential units would result in an 
increase in the local population by an estimated 573 persons. The estimated population growth of 573 persons 
would not be considered substantial in the context of existing population in Berkeley, and would be within the 
DAP EIR’s projected population increase of 3,252 new residents under buildout of the Downtown Area Plan. In 
addition, the project does not include infrastructure improvements that would extend roadways or infrastructure 
into areas which do not currently support residential or other urban uses. Therefore, the project would neither 
directly nor indirectly increase population growth in Berkeley beyond that planned for by the City in the DAP. 
No occupied or vacant residential structures would be demolished to accommodate the project, so the project 
would not result in displace existing housing or people. Therefore, the City finds that the project will have a 
less-than-significant impact related to population and housing.  
 

3.13 Public Services  
Because the project would increase the local population by an estimated 573 persons, which is well within the 
projected total population growth attributed to the DAP of 3,252 new residents during the planning period, it 
would not result in substantial population or housing growth beyond that already anticipated under the DAP 
EIR. Therefore, like the DAP EIR itself, the project’s increase in demand for police, fire, school, recreational 
services, library services, and health and human services would not require the construction of new facilities. 
Therefore, the City finds that the project will have a less-than-significant impact on public services.  
 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 11 of 31 

Page 44 of 162

48



3.14 Recreation  
Although the project would incrementally increase use of community and regional parks and recreation 
facilities, the City exceeds its goal of two park acres per 1,000 people, and the increase in use would be within 
that anticipated by the DAP EIR, and is not expected to result in substantial physical deterioration of these 
facilities. In addition, the project would include on-site outdoor common areas at terraces for use by project 
residents. The project would involve the redevelopment of the existing project site with residential and 
commercial uses. As discussed above, the project does not require the construction or expansion of off-site 
public recreational facilities; therefore, development of the project would not result in additional environmental 
effects beyond those described in this document. Therefore, the City finds that the project will have a less-
than-significant impact on recreation. 
 

3.15 Transportation and Traffic 
Operation of the project would generate an estimated 33 net vehicle-trips (7 inbound, 26 outbound) during the 
weekday AM peak hour and 40 net vehicle trips (26 inbound, 14 outbound) during the weekday PM peak hour. 
With the addition of vehicle trips from the project, all intersections near the project site would continue to 
operate at an acceptable level of service of LOS D or better. In addition, the project would incorporate 
transportation demand management strategies that would help reduce vehicle trips associated with project 
operations. The project would generate vehicle trips in an area of Berkeley with low existing vehicle miles 
traveled relative to surrounding areas in Alameda County, and public transit would accommodate a substantial 
portion of the project’s travel demand. Therefore, the project will not have an adverse effect on vehicle miles 
traveled. Garbage, recycling, and green waste generated by the project would be placed curbside on Allston 
Way for periodic collection. Zero Waste trucks would have direct access to the curbside collection area. While 
storage bins would present a minor and temporary obstacle for pedestrians, they would not substantially affect 
pedestrian circulation on Allston Way. In addition, the project would not result in any change in air traffic 
patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety 
risks. As determined in the DAP EIR for the Plan as a whole, the project would have no impact from 
interference with air traffic patterns. Therefore, the City finds that the project will not result in significant impacts 
8on transportation and traffic beyond those described in Section 4 of this document with regard to construction 
traffic, traffic conflicts, emergency access, transit operations, and pedestrian and bicycle circulation. 
 
3.16 Utilities and Service Systems 
The DAP EIR demonstrates that anticipated water demand in this area has been accounted for in EBMUD’s 
water demand projections and that development occurring under the DAP would not require any changes to 
those projections. Because the project would be within the maximum buildout as anticipated under the DAP, it 
is not anticipated that EBMUD would need new or expanded entitlements to serve the project. The project also 
would reduce water use relative to standard building practices by attaining a LEED Gold (or equivalent) rating. 
Construction of a lateral connection to the sewer main on Allston Way would result in noise and pollutant 
emissions from the operation of construction vehicles. These secondary impacts would be short-term, would 
occur within paved rights-of-way with previously disturbed soils. Given the already developed nature of the site, 
the project would not result in an increase in impervious surface. Moreover, the project would include features 
that slow the rate of stormwater runoff and improve water quality. As discussed in the DAP EIR, although 
construction could result in physical damage to streets and sidewalks, the City would require pre- and post-
construction surveys of street conditions and repair or replacement of any damage to sidewalks at the property 
owner’s expense. Service by and consumption of gas, telecommunication, and electricity utilities would also be 
within the ranges considered in the DAP EIR. In addition, solid waste from the project site would be disposed 
of at the Vasco Road Landfill, which the DAP EIR found to have sufficient capacity to accommodate solid 
waste from the Downtown Area through the year 2024 including assumed buildout under the DAP. Therefore, 
the City finds that the project will have a less-than-significant impact on utilities and service systems. 
 
 
  

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 12 of 31 

Page 45 of 162

49



SECTION 4: EFFECTS DETERMINED TO BE MITIGATED TO LESS-THAN-SIGNIFICANT 
LEVELS 
The Infill Environmental Checklist and Draft EIR identified certain potentially significant effects that could result 
from the project. However, the City finds for each of the significant or potentially significant impacts identified in 
this section (Section 4) that based upon substantial evidence in the record, changes or alterations have been 
required or incorporated into the project; or mitigation measures from the DAP EIR would apply to the project; 
which avoid or substantially lessen the significant effects as identified in the Final EIR3 and, thus, that adoption 
of the mitigation measures set forth below will reduce these significant or potentially significant effects to less-
than-significant levels. Adoption of the recommended mitigation measures will effectively make the mitigation 
measures part of the project. In addition, City Conditions of Approval and compliance with City and other 
regulations will further reduce project impacts. Impacts and mitigation measures identified in the Final EIR and 
the Infill Environmental Checklist are listed below. 
 
4.1 Cultural Resources 
Impact CR-1: Although the proposed demolition of the existing commercial building on-site would not directly 
affect an eligible historical resource, the proposed building design would adversely affect the setting of nearby 
historical resources, including the adjacent Shattuck Hotel and the greater proposed Shattuck Avenue 
Downtown Historic District. Impacts on the integrity of historical resources would be less than significant with 
incorporation of mitigation to enhance the compatibility of the proposed building’s design with surrounding 
historical resources. 
 

Mitigation Measure CR-1a Slanted Wall Modifications. The project applicant shall modify the proposed 
design of the slanted walls composed of slotted aluminum panels at stories two through six along 
Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way to make them more compatible with the Shattuck Hotel and other 
contributors to the proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. Specifically, these slanted 
walls shall be replaced with a rectilinear wall system, i.e., one with predominant wall surfaces below the 
seventh-floor loggia being either parallel or perpendicular to the abutting property line.  
 
Mitigation Measure CR-1b Wall Rhythm Modifications. The proportion and pattern of void to wall in the 
proposed wall treatments of the project shall be modified to more closely match that exhibited in the 
Shattuck Hotel. Potential ways to achieve this include, but are not necessarily limited to, replacing the 
window wall systems with punched curtain wall systems or breaking up the window wall systems with 
windowless bays. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-1c Wall Cladding Material Modifications. The project applicant shall modify the 
proposed design so as to incorporate wall cladding materials that are compatible with the Shattuck Hotel 
and other contributors to the proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. Such materials 
include brick, concrete, stucco, marble, granite, tile and terra cotta, and could be used in conjunction with 
the proposed glass fiber reinforced concrete (GFRC), glass panels, and metal screens. 
 
Mitigation Measure CR-1d Roofline Modifications. The project applicant shall modify the proposed design 
so as to incorporate elements that more prominently accentuate the building’s roofline by differentiating it 
from the walls below. Potential ways to achieve this include, but are not necessarily limited to, adding a 
cornice element or employing a change in material, color or finish at the uppermost portions of the wall 
façades.  
 
Mitigation Measure CR-1e Ground Floor Modifications. The project applicant shall modify the proposed 
design of the storefront along Shattuck Avenue and the ground-floor wall along Allston Way in a manner 

3 CEQA Guidelines, 2012. Section 15091. 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 13 of 31 

Page 46 of 162

50



that visually divides the uninterrupted expanse of glazing at the ground floor into distinct bays that are 
between 15 and 30 feet in width.  
 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measures have been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: With implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1a through CR-1e, the 
project would substantially conform to the City’s Downtown Design Guidelines intended to preserve the 
integrity of contexts for historic resources. These measures would modify the building’s slanted walls, 
wall rhythm, wall cladding, roofline design, and the ground-floor storefront for improved compatibility with 
nearby historic buildings. Therefore, implementation of the foregoing mitigation measures will reduce the 
project’s compatibility impacts on historical resources to a less-than-significant level.  The design has 
been substantially modified over several Design Review Committee (DRC) Meetings in early 2018 in 
response to the Design Mitigation Measures CR-1a through CR-1e, as well as design recommendations 
from the DRC.    
 

Impact CR-2: The proposed demolition of the existing building on-site and construction of an 18-story mixed-
use building with two levels of underground parking would produce ground vibration in the vicinity of existing 
historical resources. The levels of vibration that would be generated by project construction activities could 
potentially exceed thresholds for physical damage to historic structures. However, implementation of Mitigation 
Measure NOI-6 in the DAP EIR would be required to monitor and reduce vibration levels at the Shattuck Hotel 
from construction activity. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant with mitigation.   
 

DAP EIR Mitigation Measure NOI-6. Avoidance of Pile-Driving/Site-Specific Vibration 
Studies/Monitoring/Contingency Planning. The following measures are recommended to reduce vibration 
from construction activities: 
 
 Avoid impact pile-driving where possible. Drilled piles causes lower vibration levels where geological 

conditions permit their use. 
 Avoid using vibratory rollers and tampers near sensitive areas. 
 In areas where project construction is anticipated to include vibration-generating activities, such as 

pile-driving in close proximity to existing structures, site-specific vibration studies should be 
conducted to determine the area of impact and to present appropriate mitigation measures that may 
include the following: 
 Identification of sites that would include vibration compaction activities such as pile-driving and 

that have the potential to generate groundborne vibration, and the sensitivity of nearby structures 
to groundborne vibration. Vibration limits should be applied to all vibration-sensitive structures 
located within 200 feet of the project. A qualified structural engineer should conduct this task. 

 Development of a vibration monitoring and construction contingency plan to identify structures 
where monitoring would be conducted, set up a vibration monitoring schedule, define structure-
specific vibration limits, and address the need to conduct photo, elevation, and crack surveys to 
document before and after construction conditions. 

 Construction contingencies would be identified for when vibration levels approached the limits. 
 At a minimum, vibration monitoring should be conducted during initial demolition activities and 

during pile-driving activities. Monitoring results may indicate the need for more or less intensive 
measurements. 

 When vibration levels approach limits, suspend construction and implement contingencies to 
either lower vibration levels or secure the affected structures. 

 Conduct post-survey on structure where either monitoring has indicated high levels or complaints 
of damage has been made. Make appropriate repairs or compensation where damage has 
occurred as a result of vibration. 

 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 14 of 31 

Page 47 of 162

51



Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure from the DAP EIR has been incorporated 
into the project to avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final 
EIR to a less-than-significant level.  

Facts in Support of Finding: Mitigation Measure NOI-6 from the DAP EIR would require monitoring at the 
historic Shattuck Hotel of vibration levels generated by construction equipment on the project site and, if 
necessary, implementation of actions to reduce excessive vibration levels. Therefore, implementation of 
the foregoing mitigation measures will reduce the project’s potential impact on historical resources from 
vibration to a less-than-significant level. 

4.2 Geology and Soils 
Impact GEO-1: Construction of the project would occur within 25 feet of the centerline of the Strawberry Creek 
culvert. The presence of the culvert in proximity to the proposed building’s foundations could potentially result 
in instability of the proposed building’s foundations. Required compliance with Berkeley Municipal Code and 
California Building Code standards would reduce the potential for excavation, shoring and foundations to 
cause instability. However, improper installation of temporary shoring and tiebacks could result in damage to 
the culvert during project construction. 

Mitigation Measure GEO-1 Temporary Shoring and Tieback Design Review. Prior to the issuance of a 
grading permit, the project applicant shall submit to the City of Berkeley Department of Planning & 
Development – Building and Safety Division for review and approval the results of a site-specific 
geotechnical investigation as well as final engineering and design plans for excavation, temporary 
shoring, tiebacks, and tieback anchors. The final engineering and design plans for the project shall 
demonstrate the precise location of the Strawberry Creek culvert, the location of all tiebacks and tieback 
anchors, the shoring design pressures, the bearing strength of the soil between the project and the 
culvert, and the construction sequencing. Excavation and temporary shoring shall be designed to limit 
horizontal and vertical ground deformations such that the stability of the adjacent culvert would not be 
affected. The installation of tiebacks and tieback anchors shall be designed to prevent damage to the 
adjacent culvert. The final design shall locate work as far from the edge of culvert as practicable at a 
distance equal to depth of culvert bottom. 

Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure has been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  

Facts in Support of Finding: Implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-1 above would provide for City 
review and approval of final engineering and design plans in accordance with performance standards, 
prior to commencement of construction activities. This would eliminate or substantially reduce the 
potential for project activities to adversely affect the Strawberry Creek culvert. Therefore, implementation 
of the foregoing mitigation measure will reduce the project’s potential impacts on structural stability 
related to the Strawberry Creek culvert to a less-than-significant level. 

Impact GEO-2: Construction of the project would occur within the zone of influence of the adjacent BART 
station and tunnels. Improper construction within this zone could result in damage to, or destabilization of, the 
proposed project and the BART subway tunnel and station. Mitigation would be required to ensure that the 
construction design meets all applicable BART standards. With implementation of mitigation, the project would 
have a less than significant impact related to the structural integrity of BART substructures. 

Mitigation Measure GEO-2 BART Zone of Influence Design Review: Prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit, the project applicant shall submit to the City of Berkeley Department of Planning & Development – 
Building and Safety Division for review and approval the results of a site-specific geotechnical 
investigation as well as final engineering and design plans for the building, including all subsurface and 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 15 of 31 

Page 48 of 162

52



above-ground elements of the project. The final engineering and design plans for the project shall 
demonstrate adherence to BART’s General Guidelines for Design and Construction Over or Adjacent to 
BART’s Subway Structures. Applicable elements of the General Guidelines may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

 Minimum clearance of 7’6” between new construction and BART substructures
 Shoring for excavations in the Zone of Influence
 Monitoring of shoring to ensure that it maintains at-rest soil condition
 Monitoring of dewatering and recharging if the existing groundwater level is expected to drop by more

than two feet
 Predrilling of piles to a minimum of 10 feet below the Line of Influence, which is a line from the critical

point of a BART substructure at a slope of 1.5 horizontal to 1.0 vertical towards ground level

Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure has been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  

Facts in Support of Finding: Implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-2 above would eliminate or 
substantially reduce the potential for improper construction within BART’s zone of influence to adversely 
affect the stability of the proposed building and the subway tunnel and station.  Therefore, 
implementation of the foregoing mitigation measure will reduce the project’s potential impacts on stability 
related to BART structures to a less-than-significant level. 

4.3 Noise 
Impact N-2: Project construction would temporarily generate high vibration levels on and adjacent to the 
project site. Because construction would occur inside the hours allowed in the Berkeley Municipal Code, it 
would not generate vibration when people normally sleep. While vibration in excess of FTA thresholds may 
temporarily disturb daytime educational activities at Berkeley City College, the use of administrative controls 
including notification of neighbors and appropriate scheduling of vibrating-generating activities would minimize 
exposure to perceptible vibration. Vibration levels at the Shattuck Hotel could potentially exceed Caltrans 
thresholds for structure damage, but vibration monitoring pursuant to Mitigation Measure NOI-6 from the DAP 
EIR would reduce the likelihood of structure damage. Therefore, the project would have a less than significant 
vibration impact with mitigation. 

DAP EIR Mitigation Measure NOI-6 (see above) 

Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure from the DAP EIR has been incorporated 
into the project to avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final 
EIR to a less-than-significant level.  

Facts in Support of Finding: Because vibration from construction activity could potentially exceed 
Caltrans thresholds for structure damage to historic structures in the Downtown Area including the 
Shattuck Hotel, Mitigation Measure NOI-6 in the DAP EIR requires measures to monitor and reduce 
vibration levels. Consistent with this measure, the applicant would develop a vibration monitoring and 
contingency plan for the Shattuck Hotel; set up a vibration monitoring schedule; define structure-specific 
monitoring limits; and address the need to conduct photo, elevation, and crack surveys to document 
before- and after-construction conditions. In addition, the applicant would identify contingencies for when 
vibration levels approach monitoring limits, in order to lower vibration levels or secure the affected 
structures. Mitigation Measure NOI-6 also requires the applicant to survey structures where monitoring 
has indicated high levels, and make appropriate repairs or compensation for damage. Therefore, 
implementation of the foregoing mitigation measure will reduce the project’s potential impact from 
construction-period vibration to a less-than-significant level. 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 16 of 31 

Page 49 of 162

53



 
Impact N-5: New residential units on the project site would be subject to noise levels in excess of the City of 
Berkeley noise compatibility guidelines. However, sound attenuation techniques would reduce ambient noise in 
the residential units to below the City’s standard of 45 dBA Ldn, ensuring that this impact would be less than 
significant with mitigation. 
 

Mitigation Measure N-5 Sound Insulation: The applicant shall install exterior building materials with 
sufficient Sound Transmission Class (STC) ratings to reduce interior noise levels in habitable rooms to 
below 45 dBA Ldn, as required by California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Section 1207.4. All residential 
windows, exterior doors, and exterior wall assemblies shall meet the STC 30 rating to ensure the 
adequate attenuation of noise at a range of frequencies. 
 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure has been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: Mitigation Measure N-5 above would implement the programmatic 
performance standards in the DAP EIR Mitigation Measure NOI-1 for reducing noise transmission by 
exterior building materials. This mitigation measure would require the applicant to install exterior building 
materials with sufficient noise-attenuating qualities to reduce interior noise levels in habitable rooms to 
below the State standard of 45 dBA Ldn. After implementation of Mitigation Measure N-5, new residents 
in the proposed building would be exposed to acceptable interior noise levels. Therefore, implementation 
of the foregoing measure will reduce the project’s potential impacts from the exposure of new residents to 
ambient noise to a less-than-significant level. In addition, DAP EIR Mitigation Measure N-1 requires 
forced-air ventilation where ambient noise exceeds 70 dBA Ldn. 

 

4.4 Transportation/Traffic 
Impact T-3: Construction of the project, based on its expected duration and intensity, would result in a 
temporary reduction in roadway capacity, closure of portions of Allston Way, and relocation of AC Transit bus 
stops. These physical changes would have temporary adverse effects on vehicle, pedestrian, bicycle, and 
transit circulation. The project would have a less than significant impact with mitigation during construction.  
  

Mitigation Measure T-3 Development and Implementation of a Construction Traffic Management Plan: 
Prior to the issuance of demolition permits, a construction traffic management plan shall be prepared and 
implemented during construction and shall include, but not be limited to, the following strategies to the 
satisfaction of the City’s Zoning Officer and Public Works staff: 
 
1) Temporary Traffic Control Strategies 

 Coordinate with the City of Berkeley Public Works Department and construction 
manager(s)/contractor(s) for nearby developments, and with AC Transit, Bear Transit, and Alta 
Bates Shuttle, as applicable, to develop construction phasing and operations and detour plans 
that would result in the least amount of disruption that is feasible to transit operations, pedestrian 
and bicycle activity, and vehicular traffic. 

 Establish construction phasing/staging schedule and sequence that minimize impacts of a work 
zone on traffic by using operationally sensitive phasing and staging throughout the life of the 
project. 

 Coordinate and schedule utilities work to minimize potential work disruptions or interruptions and 
reduce overall construction duration. 

 Identify optimal delivery and haul routes to and from the site to minimize impacts to traffic, transit, 
pedestrians, and bicyclists. 

 Conduct monitoring for pavement damage and timing/coordination for completing repairs along 
construction truck routes 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 17 of 31 

Page 50 of 162

54



 Identify arrival/departure times for trucks and construction workers to avoid peak periods of 
adjacent street traffic and minimize traffic affects 

 Specify timing, signage, location, and duration of necessary partial/complete sidewalk closures 
and identification of detour routes for pedestrians, bicyclists, and vehicles, as needed 

 Preserve safe and convenient passage for pedestrians and bicyclists around construction areas. 
Provide alternate facilities for bicyclists and pedestrians (including those with disabilities) in places 
where the work zone impacts accessibility 

 Provide for relocation of bus stops and ensure adequate wayfinding and signage to notify transit 
users 

 Establish criteria for use of flaggers and other temporary traffic controls 
 Preserve emergency vehicle access 
 As necessary, obtain a transportation permit from Caltrans for transportation of heavy 

construction equipment and/or materials which requires the use of oversized transport vehicles on 
State highways 

 
2) Transportation Operations and Transportation Demand Management Measures 

 Encourage construction workers to use transit, carpool and other sustainable transportation 
modes when commuting to and from the site. 

 Specify locations of construction worker employee parking. 
 

3) Public Information Strategies 
 Provide advance notification to affected property owners, businesses, residents, etc. of possible 

driveway blockages or other access obstructions and implement alternate access and parking 
provisions where necessary. 

 Implement public awareness strategies to educate and reach out to the public, businesses, and 
the community concerning the project and work zone (e.g., brochures and mailers, press 
releases/media alerts). 

 Provide a point of contact for residents, employees, property owners, and visitors to obtain 
construction information, and provide comments and questions. 

 Provide current and/or real‐time information to road users regarding the project work zone (e.g., 
changeable message sign to notify road users of lane and road closures and work activities, 
temporary conventional signs to guide motorists through the work zone). 

 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure has been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: With implementation of the transportation construction plan required under 
Mitigation Measure T‐3, the applicant would disseminate appropriate information to contractors and 
affected agencies with respect to coordinating construction activities to minimize overall disruptions and 
ensure that overall circulation in the project vicinity is maintained to the extent possible, with particular 
focus on ensuring transit, pedestrian, and bicycle connectivity. This would ensure that the project would 
be consistent with DAP Policies AC 2.1 and 2.2 to provide safe and accessible access to Downtown 
streets and Policies AC-4.2 to improve transit options and give transit priority over personal vehicles. 
Therefore, implementation of the foregoing mitigation measure will reduce the impact associated with 
construction traffic to a less-than-significant level. 
 

Impact T-4: The proposed project driveway would introduce potential conflicts between vehicles accessing the 
site and pedestrians using the north-side sidewalk of Allston Way. Use of the proposed driveway within 
approximately 25 feet of a bus layover zone on Allston Way also could introduce conflicts between vehicles 
accessing the site and buses. These conflicts would cause a potentially significant impact without adequate 
sight distance provided at the project driveway and appropriate technology to minimize conflicts associated 
with the driveway. The project would result in a less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 18 of 31 

Page 51 of 162

55



 
Mitigation Measure T‐4 Driveway Safety Measures: Prior to obtaining a certificate of occupancy, the 
applicant shall implement the following traffic safety measures to the satisfaction of the City’s Zoning 
Officer and Public Works staff: 
 
 Per City of Berkeley guidelines, maintain a minimum five foot by five foot sight distance triangle at 

the driveway entrance/exit; 
 Install “STOP” pavement markings and signage for exiting drivers to look both ways at the exit, prior 

to crossing the sidewalk; 
 Install convex mirrors at the project driveway to improve the visibility of exiting vehicles from the 

sidewalk; 
 Provide visual and/or audio warning devices that alert pedestrians when vehicles are exiting the 

driveway; 
 
The typical and standard treatments identified above should be sufficient to address potential conflicts. In 
addition, the following non-standard treatments may be considered and implemented at the determination 
of the City: 
 
 Provide visual warning devices that alert drivers when pedestrians are present on the sidewalk; and 
 Utilize a different surface treatment or special paving to define and highlight the driveway entrance 

within the public right-of-way. 
 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure has been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: Mitigation Measure T-4 would require the implementation of several traffic 
safety measures to minimize potential conflicts between motorists accessing the driveway to the 
proposed garage and pedestrians and AC Transit buses on Allston Way. In addition, this measure would 
ensure that the project complies with DAP Policy AC-3.3, Action b) to locate, design, and size entrances 
and exits to parking  through traffic management, exit mirrors, and warning lights in order to minimize 
impacts on pedestrians. Therefore, implementation of the foregoing mitigation measure will reduce the 
impact associated with traffic safety hazards at the proposed driveway to a less-than-significant level. 
 

Impact T-5: Commercial and passenger loading activity associated with the project would introduce potential 
conflicts with other automobiles, buses, bicyclists, and pedestrians. If demand exceeds available space at the 
proposed commercial loading zone on the north side of Allston Way or at the existing passenger loading zone 
on the south side of the street, spillover loading activity could lead to illegal parking in red curb zones or 
double-parking. Large trucks parked in the proposed loading zone also could temporarily block access to and 
from the proposed garage. The project would have a less than significant impact with mitigation incorporated to 
minimize traffic conflicts associated with loading activity. 
 

Mitigation Measure T-5(a) Commercial Loading Management Strategies: It shall be the responsibility of 
building management to monitor and report on on-street commercial loading activity. Building 
management shall assign an inspector who will be responsible for field monitoring and documenting 
observations on a monitoring report worksheet. The inspector will be responsible for the following 
activities: 
 
 On-site, day-to-day monitoring of commercial loading activities; 
 Recording instances of illegal stopping, double-parking, blockage of adjacent travel lanes, and 

conflicts with transit vehicles; 
 Acting in the role of contact for property owners or other affected persons who wish to register 

observations of commercial loading conflicts. The inspector shall be responsible for verifying any 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 19 of 31 

Page 52 of 162

56



such observations and for developing any necessary corrective actions in consultation with City 
staff; 

 Maintaining a log of all significant interactions and enforceable violations and submitting a monthly 
monitoring report worksheet to the City’s Traffic Engineer for a period of one-year; and, 

 Obtaining assistance as necessary from technical experts in order to identify appropriate strategies 
to minimize conflicts. 

 
The City’s Traffic Engineer shall review the monitoring reports and identify recurring issues. If recurring 
issues are identified, for example, if commercial loading demand exceeds available supply and loading 
activity results in illegal stopping in red zones, blockage of adjacent travel lanes, or conflicts with transit 
vehicles on a regular basis (e.g., more than once per day), it shall be the responsibility of the building 
management to implement strategies to minimize conflicts. Strategies may also be required to be 
implemented at discretion of City staff, depending on the number and nature of conflicts observed. 
Appropriate strategies will vary depending on the characteristics and causes of the conflicts. Suggested 
strategies include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
 Coordinate with AC Transit and the City for additional loading space; 
 Coordinate with AC Transit and the City to determine if the transit stop can be used for loading 

during certain hours; 
 Restrict size of freight and delivery/service vehicles to no more than 25 feet in length;  
 Limit deliveries to certain times of day, such as the early morning or late evening; 
 Prohibit trucks with more than two axles from parking during peak hours; 
 Limit duration of loading activity in the curbside commercial truck loading zone to 30 minutes or 

less; 
 Install meters and increase parking enforcement; 
 Encourage deliveries during off-peak times; 
 Establish nearby delivery areas or delivery stations to consolidate deliveries for a variety of users 

and utilize smaller vehicles and/or non-motorized modes for last-mile delivery; 
 Install a reception desk, delivery lockers, and/or other delivery-supportive amenities on-site; 
 Install delivery lockers and delivery-supportive amenities on-site; 
 Schedule and coordinate loading activities through building management to ensure that any freight 

loading/service vehicles can be accommodated either in existing on-street loading spaces in the 
vicinity of the Project; and 

 Actively manage the loading zone through use of attendants to direct freight and delivery/service 
vehicles to available spaces when the loading zone is in use. 

 
Mitigation Measure T-5(b) Passenger Loading Management Strategies: It shall be the responsibility of 
building management to monitor and report on on-street passenger loading activity. Building 
management shall assign an inspector who will be responsible for field monitoring and documenting 
observations on a monitoring report worksheet. The inspector will be responsible for the following 
activities: 
 
 On-site, day-to-day monitoring of passenger loading activities during the weekday AM peak hour 

(7:00 AM to 9:00 AM), midday (11:00 AM to 1:00 PM), and PM peak hour (4:00 PM to 6:00 PM) 
periods, or other time periods determined by the City; 

 Recording instances of illegal stopping, double-parking, blockage of adjacent travel lanes, and 
conflicts with transit vehicles over a 20-minute period within the identified time periods; 

 Acting in the role of contact for property owners or other affected persons who wish to register 
observations of commercial loading conflicts. The inspector shall be responsible for verifying any 
such observations and for developing any necessary corrective actions in consultation with City 
staff; 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 20 of 31 

Page 53 of 162

57



 Maintaining a log of all significant interactions and enforceable violations and submitting a monthly 
monitoring report worksheet to the City’s Traffic Engineer for a period of one year; and, 

 Obtaining assistance as necessary from technical experts in order to identify appropriate strategies 
to minimize conflicts. 

 
The City’s Traffic Engineer shall review the monitoring report and identify any recurring issues. If 
recurring issues are identified, for example, if passenger loading demand exceeds available supply and 
loading activity results in illegal stopping in red zones, blockage of adjacent travel lanes, or conflicts with 
transit vehicles on a regular basis (e.g., more than once per day), it shall be the responsibility of the 
building management to implement strategies to minimize conflicts. Strategies may also be required to be 
implemented at discretion of City staff, depending on the number and nature of conflicts observed. 
Appropriate strategies will vary depending on the characteristics and causes of the conflicts. Suggested 
strategies include but are not limited to the following: 
 
 Create a combined commercial/passenger loading zone on the Project frontage (e.g., through 

signage and use of alternating white and yellow color curb) in conjunction with implementation of 
time of day restrictions for delivery/service vehicle use of the proposed commercial truck loading 
zone; and, 

 Coordinate with owners of nearby buildings to increase the amount of passenger loading (white 
curb) space available. 

 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measures have been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: Mitigation Measures T-5(a) and T-5(b) would re quire implementation of 
measures to reduce traffic conflicts associated with the project’s commercial and passenger loading 
activity. These strategies, such as reducing the size of commercial loading vehicles allowed and limiting 
the timing of deliveries, would minimize illegal parking in red curb zones and double-parking to the extent 
feasible. Therefore, implementation of the foregoing mitigation measures will reduce the impact 
associated with loading conflicts to a less-than-significant level. 
 

Impact T-7: All streets and intersections on the route from the nearest fire stations to the project site are 
sufficiently wide enough to provide adequate emergency vehicle access to the site. Operation of the project 
would not substantially increase delays on emergency access routes. However, project construction would 
temporarily impede emergency access to the project site during construction. The project would have a less 
than significant impact related to emergency access with mitigation incorporated during construction. 

 
Mitigation Measure T-3 (see above). 
 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure has been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 

Facts in Support of Finding: The temporary traffic control strategies and transportation operations and demand 
management measures as required in Mitigation Measure T‐3 would minimize delays to emergency access. 
Therefore, implementation of the foregoing mitigation measure will reduce the impact on emergency access 
during construction activities to a less-than-significant level. 

 
Impact T-8: The project would not generate a substantial increase in transit ridership that results in result in 
overcrowding on local or regional transit systems. However, the temporary closure of an AC Transit bus stop 
and layover zone would impede transit access during construction. Traffic conflicts with vehicles entering and 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 21 of 31 

Page 54 of 162

58



leaving the proposed driveway and with loading activity also could delay buses on Allston Way. The project 
would have a less than significant impact on the performance of local and regional transit operations with 
mitigation incorporated to preserve local bus access during construction and to minimize traffic and loading 
conflicts with buses during operation. 

 
Mitigation Measures T-3, T-4, T-5(a), T-5(b) (see above). 
 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measures have been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: The temporary traffic control strategies required in Mitigation Measure T‐3 
would ensure a temporary relocation of the AC Transit bus layover zone next the project site during 
construction, preserving bus access in the project vicinity. This mitigation measure also would ensure 
consistency with DAP Policy AC-4.2, Actions c) and d) to work with AC Transit and shuttle providers to 
identify suitable bus stops and layover locations and avoid bus stop and layover locations that interrupt 
pedestrian movement or block clear views of sidewalks, plazas or storefronts. In addition, Mitigation 
Measure T-4 would require the installation of convex mirrors at the proposed driveway to improve the 
visibility of exiting vehicles and the maintenance of adequate sight distance, which would minimize 
vehicle/bus conflicts on Allston Way. Mitigation Measure T-5 also would minimize adverse effects on bus 
movement from loading activities including illegal parking in red curb zones and double-parking. 
Therefore, implementation of the foregoing mitigation measures will reduce the impact on transit 
operations during construction and operation of the project to a less-than-significant level. 

 
Impact T-9: The project would not involve features that would result in permanent or substantial operational 
impacts to alternative modes of transportation. However, construction of the project would temporarily impact 
pedestrian and bicycle circulation. The project would have a less than significant impact with mitigation 
incorporated on local pedestrian and bicycle circulation. 

 
Mitigation Measures T-3, T-4 (see above). 
 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measures have been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-
significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: Mitigation Measure T-3 would require the implementation of temporary traffic 
control and public information strategies to maintain safe pedestrian and bicyclist access during 
construction of the project. In addition, Mitigation Measure T-4 would require driveway safety measures to 
protect pedestrians on the north side of Allston Way from vehicles entering and exiting the proposed 
garage. These measures would ensure project consistency with DAP Policy DAP Policies AC-2.1 and 
AC-2.2 regarding pedestrian safety and access to the Downtown and DAP Goal AC-5 promote bicycling 
in Downtown. Therefore, implementation of the foregoing mitigation measures will reduce the impact on 
pedestrian and bicyclist circulation from construction and operation of the project to a less-than-significant 
level. 
 

4.5 Tribal Cultural Resources 
As discussed in the Infill Environmental Checklist (Appendix A of the EIR), the City of Berkeley prepared and 
mailed formal notification letter in accordance with the provisions of AB 52 to the Native American Heritage 
Commission on February 17, 2017. No responses have been received and no tribal cultural resources have 
been identified on-site. However, proposed excavation of the project site could potentially result in adverse 
effects on unanticipated tribal cultural resources. Impacts from the unanticipated discovery of tribal cultural 
resources during construction would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated. 
 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 22 of 31 

Page 55 of 162

59



Mitigation Measure TCR-1 Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources: In the event that cultural 
resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, the City shall consult with a 
qualified archaeologist and begin or continue Native American consultation procedures. If the City 
determines that the resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus significant under CEQA, a mitigation 
plan shall be prepared and implemented in accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with 
Native American groups. If the resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce 
impacts to the resource and to address tribal concerns may be required.  
 
Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure has been incorporated into the project to 
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the Infill Environmental 
Checklist to a less-than-significant level.  
 
Facts in Support of Finding: Consistent with the State requirements of AB 52, Mitigation Measure TCR-1 
would require consultation with Native American groups and implementation of measures to protect tribal 
cultural resources in the event of their discovery during construction on the project site. Therefore, 
implementation of the foregoing mitigation measure will reduce the potential impact on tribal cultural 
resources to a less-than-significant level. 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 23 of 31 

Page 56 of 162

60



SECTION 5: SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS THAT CANNOT BE MITIGATED TO A LESS-THAN-
SIGNIFICANT LEVEL 
The project would result in a significant unavoidable impact related to noise. Although mitigation from the DAP 
EIR would be imposed to lessen the exposure of sensitive land uses to construction noise, this would not 
reduce the impact to a less-than-significant level.  

5.1 Noise (from EIR) 
Impact N-1: Project construction would temporarily generate high noise levels on and near the project site. 
Construction noise levels would intermittently exceed City standards for construction noise in commercial 
zones, particularly in the first months of construction during excavation and construction of the foundation 
system. 

Mitigation Measures: The project developer would be required to implement a project-specific noise 
reduction program as described in Mitigation Measure NOI-5 of the DAP EIR, which requires appropriate 
time limits for construction (7:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. on weekdays and between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 
8:00 P.M. on weekends or holidays), the use of available control technology such as equipment mufflers 
and temporary noise barriers, locating stationary noise-generating equipment as far as possible from 
adjoining sensitive receptors, notification of neighbors, and other measures.  

Finding: The City finds that the foregoing mitigation measure from the DAP EIR has been incorporated 
into the project; however, implementation of this measure would not avoid or substantially lessen the 
significant environmental effect identified in the Final EIR to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, 
impacts to sensitive receptors from temporary noise generated by construction of the project will remain 
significant and unavoidable.  

Facts in Support of Finding: Implementation of a noise reduction program as required by DAP EIR 
Mitigation NOI-5 would reduce the exposure of nearby sensitive receptors to construction noise. 
However, as found in the DAP EIR for new construction in the entire Downtown Area, the impact would 
remain significant and unavoidable as a result of the extended duration of construction (27-months), 
during which adjacent sensitive receptors would be exposed to construction noise that may exceed 
Berkeley noise standards for commercial zones. 

5.2 Cumulative Impacts 
As discussed in the Infill Environmental Checklist (Appendix A of the EIR), the project analyzed in the Draft EIR 
would not have cumulatively considerable impacts in the following environmental issue areas: Agricultural and 
Forest Resources, Biological Resources, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, 
Hydrology and Water Quality, Land Use and Planning, Mineral Resources, Population and Housing, Public 
Services, Recreation, Tribal Cultural Resources, and Utilities and Service Systems. Therefore, the project 
would also not have cumulative considerable impacts in these environmental issue areas. The Project’s 
potential cumulatively considerable impacts in several other issue areas were analyzed in the Draft EIR in 
Section 4.1, Air Quality; Section 4.2, Cultural Resources; Section 4.3, Geology and Soils; Section 4.4, Noise 
and Vibration; and Section 4.5, Transportation/Traffic.  

Section 4.1, Air Quality, found that the project would not result in long-term emissions which exceed 
BAAQMD’s operational emissions thresholds. Therefore, the project would not conflict with or obstruct 
continued implementation of BAAQMD’s 2017 Clean Air Plan, which means that the project would not have a 
cumulatively considerable contribution to regional air quality, according to the agency’s guidance for Clean Air 
Plan consistency. Therefore, cumulative impacts to air quality would be less than significant. 

Section 4.2, Cultural Resources, found that the project would not contribute to a significant and unavoidable 
cumulative impacts identified in the DAP EIR from the demolition of historic resources, since the project would 
not involve demolition of a historic building. As discussed in the Noise/Vibration section of the DAP EIR, the 
use of vibration-generation equipment during construction of projects in the Downtown Area could cause 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 24 of 31 

Page 57 of 162

61



structural damage of nearby historic buildings, resulting in a significant and unavoidable cumulative impact. 
However, vibration generated by construction of the project would not degrade the structural integrity of nearby 
historic buildings such as the Shattuck Hotel. Therefore, the project would not make a considerable 
contribution to this significant cumulative impact. The project also would adhere to the Downtown Berkeley 
Design Guidelines with mitigation incorporated to enhance the proposed building’s visual compatibility with the 
style of the Shattuck Hotel. Additionally, the project would not materially impair the eligibility of nearby 
resources such as Campanile Way for historic designation. Therefore, the project would not make a 
considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact to historical resources. 

Section 4.3, Geology and Soils, found that cumulative projects would involve excavation and construction in 
the Downtown Area that could destabilize the underlying geology and soils and potentially result in damage to 
nearby BART structures. If cumulative projects are located within BART’s zone of influence, then those 
projects would also be subject to BART review and approval of final design and engineering plans. Also, all 
cumulative projects would be subject to the requirements of the California Building Code, which would ensure 
that structures and foundations are designed and constructed in a manner that does not destabilize underlying 
or adjacent structures or soil. Compliance with the California Building Code and adherence to BART’s General 
Guidelines would reduce potential cumulative impacts related to the stability of BART substructures to a less 
than significant level. With implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-2, project-specific impacts to BART 
substructure stability from construction of the project would be less than significant, and the project’s 
contribution to the already less than significant cumulative impact would not be cumulatively considerable. 
 
Section 4.4, Noise and Vibration, found that construction noise and vibration are localized and rapidly 
attenuate within an urban environment. It is anticipated that construction of other projects would not be 
occurring at the same time and sufficiently close to the project site to result in a cumulative impact. In addition, 
all projects in the Downtown Area would need to comply with construction noise mitigation included in the DAP 
EIR, which would lessen cumulative construction noise in the project vicinity. Therefore, the project would not 
contribute considerably to temporary cumulative construction noise and vibration impacts. Traffic noise impacts 
associated with cumulative development through the year 2040 would incrementally increase noise levels 
along roadways. However, cumulative growth in traffic would not generate noise levels exceeding the DAP 
EIR’s cumulative threshold of 4 dBA Ldn or more over existing conditions. Therefore, the cumulative traffic 
noise impact would be less than significant, and the project would not contribute considerably to a significant 
cumulative impact. Cumulative development would also add sources of on-site operational (non-traffic) noise in 
the project vicinity. Although the operation of mechanical equipment such as HVAC units would have the 
potential to expose Downtown Area residents to excessive noise, the implementation of Mitigation Measure 
NOI-2 from the DAP EIR would ensure that commercial development complies with the City’s noise standards. 
Therefore, cumulative development would have a less than significant impact from on-site operational noise 
after mitigation. 
 
The City finds that the proposed project, in conjunction with other foreseeable projects, will not result in any 
cumulatively considerable impacts beyond those identified in the DAP EIR. 
  

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 25 of 31 

Page 58 of 162

62



SECTION 6: PROJECT ALTERNATIVES  
 
6.1 Project Alternatives 
The Final EIR included two alternatives: the No Project Alternative and the Reduced Parking Alternative. The 
City hereby concludes that the Final EIR sets forth a reasonable range of alternatives to the 2190 Shattuck 
Avenue Mixed-Use Project that address the significant impacts of the project, so as to foster informed public 
participation and informed decision making. The City finds that the alternatives identified and described in the 
Final EIR were considered and further finds them to be infeasible for the specific economic, social, or other 
considerations set forth below pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21081(c).  
 
6.1.1  No Project Alternative. This alternative assumes that the proposed project is not implemented and the 
existing two-story commercial building is left intact. This alternative assumes that the building occupancy would 
remain as is, including the Walgreens drug store and pharmacy on the ground floor and office uses on the 
second floor, while the basement would remain vacant. 
 
Findings. Because the No Project Alternative would retain the existing building, it would not involve 
construction activities and would avoid the proposed project’s significant and unavoidable impact from 
construction noise. The alternative would also reduce the project’s less than significant impacts with mitigation 
from the emission of air pollutants and disturbance of the BART substructure during construction. By retaining 
the existing building on-site, this alternative would avoid the project’s less than significant impact with 
mitigation from introducing a new building whose design could be incompatible with nearby historic buildings. 
In addition, by retaining existing retail commercial and office uses, this alternative would avoid the project’s 
increase in vehicle trips and further reduce the project’s less than significant impact on traffic congestion. No 
mitigation measures would be required for the No Project alternative. Overall impacts would be lower than 
those of the proposed project. Nonetheless, the No Project Alternative would not achieve any of the objectives 
of the proposed project, including the most basic objectives to develop market-rate housing in a transit-oriented 
area, help achieve housing production goals, revitalize a block in Downtown Berkeley, and generate increased 
revenue streams for the City. For these reasons, the City rejects the No Project Alternative. 
 
6.1.2  Reduced Parking Alternative. This alternative assumes that the proposed building would provide fewer 
off-street parking spaces for vehicles than would the proposed project but the same intensity of residential and 
commercial development (274 residential units and 10,000 square feet of retail commercial space). The garage 
would include 58 parking spaces as compared to 103 parking spaces under the proposed project. The 58 
parking spaces would consist of the following: 
 
 48 parking spaces in a three-tiered mechanical lift system 
 independently accessible (non-tiered) parking spaces 
 3 parking spaces accessible to persons with disabilities 
 3 vehicle share parking spaces 
 
While the proposed project would include a two-level subterranean parking garage, this alternative would 
provide either a one- or two-level garage to accommodate 58 parking spaces and building support systems. 
 
Findings. While this alternative would involve construction of a mixed-use building the same size as the 
proposed project, it would provide fewer parking spaces and may reduce the proposed subterranean parking 
garage from one to two levels. Therefore, the amount of grading and excavation could be less than for the 
proposed project and construction-related emissions may be reduced. Similar to the proposed project, the 
impact on air quality during construction would be less than significant with mitigation. The Reduced Parking 
Alternative also would reduce the number of on-site parking spaces by 44%. As a result, this alternative would 
decrease the mode share of automotive trips by 35% relative to the proposed project and would generate 
fewer auto person-trips and vehicle-trips. Conversely, this alternative would increase the mode share of public 
transit and walking, thereby increasing transit users and reducing mobile emissions. Therefore, the Reduced 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 26 of 31 

Page 59 of 162

63



Park Alternative would further reduce the project’s already less than significant impact related to operational air 
pollution.  
 
Relative to the project, the alternative would contribute fewer trips to the surrounding roadway network. Like 
the proposed project, traffic volumes with the project under Baseline and Cumulative Conditions would not 
exceed the traffic load and capacity thresholds for the surrounding roadway network. Therefore, this alternative 
would further reduce the proposed project’s already less than significant impact to vehicle intersection 
operating conditions.  
 
Aside from incrementally lessening the project’s already less-than-significant impacts related to air quality and 
traffic congestion, the Reduced Parking Alternative would have similar environmental impacts to those of the 
proposed project. All mitigation measures to reduce the project’s impacts would also apply to this alternative. 
 
This alternative would generally achieve all of the objectives of the proposed project. Although the substantial 
reduction in off-street parking spaces would be consistent with objectives to generate transit-oriented housing 
and to encourage alternative modes of transportation, it may not fully achieve Objective #4 to design a feasible 
project. Instead of the proposed 103 parking spaces, this alternative would provide substantially fewer (58) 
parking spaces for 274 residential units, which could arguably be inadequate to meet residential parking 
demand. Because this alternative would fully realize all of the project objectives to the same extent as the 
proposed project, and could be infeasible with regard to meeting residential parking demand, the City rejects 
the Reduced Parking Alternative. 
 
6.1.3  14-Story Building Alternative. This alternative would reduce the proposed building’s height from 18 to 
14 stories and the number of dwelling units from 274 to approximately 250, for the purpose of minimizing the 
obstruction of scenic views from Campanile Way on the UC Berkeley campus. The building would have a 
maximum height of 142 feet, 2 inches, plus an additional 4 feet of rooftop architectural projections above 
rooftop residential units. Relative to the proposed project, the 14-Story Building Alternative would reduce the 
building’s maximum height by approximately 38 feet. Similar to the proposed project, this alternative would 
provide 10,000 square feet of commercial space and 103 parking spaces in a two-level underground garage. 
 
This alternative would require several additional use permits compared to the proposed project pursuant to the 
City’s C-DMU Downtown Mixed Use District standards: to exceed the bulk height limit at 120 feet by 22 feet, 1 
inch; to reduce usable open space below the amount required; and to reduce the front, rear, and interior side 
setbacks below the distance required. However, while the project would require an administrative use permit to 
allow architectural projections to exceed the maximum building height of 180 feet, this permit would be 
unnecessary for the reduced-height alternative. With approval of the additional use permits, the 14-Story 
Building Alternative would be consistent with zoning standards.  
 
Findings. In decreasing the number of dwelling units by approximately 9 percent, this alternative would result in 
an estimated 9 percent reduction in vehicle miles traveled by residents on the project site. Therefore, the 14-
Story Building Alternative would incrementally reduce mobile emissions of air pollutants and would further 
reduce the project’s already less than significant impact related to operational air pollution. For similar reasons, 
the project could generate incrementally fewer vehicle trips during peak hours. Therefore, this alternative would 
further reduce the proposed project’s already less than significant impact to vehicle intersection operating 
conditions. 
 
The 14-Story Building Alternative would obstruct scenic Bay views from the Campanile Way corridor to a 
similar extent as the proposed project. However, the reduced building height would result in less vertical 
intrusion on airspace above the Bay waters. For example, from the perspective of the steps at the base of the 
Campanile tower, the alternative would preserve existing views of the span of the Golden Gate Bridge. Similar 
to the proposed project, it would not result in a substantial adverse change to the cultural landscape of UC 
Berkeley’s Classical Core. Similar to the proposed project, the design of the new 14-story building’s 
commercial storefront, exterior wall cladding, and roof under this alternative could be incompatible with nearby 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 27 of 31 

Page 60 of 162

64



historic buildings. Implementation of mitigation measures CR-1a through CR-1e to modify slanted walls, the 
proportion of void to wall, wall cladding materials, and the storefront and rooftop design would reduce this 
alternative’s impact on the integrity of historical resources, including the adjacent Shattuck Hotel and the 
greater proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. Nonetheless, conceptual massing diagrams 
prepared for the alternative indicate that the building would have long, uninterrupted horizontal surfaces that 
are incompatible with historic buildings and inconsistent with the Downtown Berkeley Design Guidelines. 
Therefore, additional mitigation would be required for this alternative (Mitigation Measure CR-1f), modifying the 
building’s massing to avoid long, uninterrupted horizontal surfaces. Like the proposed project, impacts to 
cultural resources would be less than significant with mitigation. All other impacts would be similar to those of 
the proposed project.  

Although the 14-Story Building Alternative would achieve most of the objectives of the proposed project, it 
would not fully achieve Objective #1 to take advantage of the site’s full development potential under the DAP. 
In addition, this alternative would not maximize transit-oriented density, per Objective #5. As a result, the 
alternative would not fully achieve the social and environmental benefits of meeting housing needs in a transit-
oriented location. Furthermore, it would respect the historic character of the Shattuck Avenue corridor to a 
lesser extent, by eliminating the proposed stepbacks in building massing from the perspective of adjacent 
streets. As discussed above, additional mitigation and modifications to the building’s massing would be 
necessary to protect the setting of nearby historic resources.  

The 14-story Alternative would not be financially feasible. Strategic Economics was commissioned by the City 
to peer review the applicant’s community benefits proposal and this review found that the return on investment 
for the proposed project is below that considered by other developers. The 14-story Alternative would result in 
fewer units and/or square footage which would have a direct, negative impact to project economics, as land 
and other project costs remain fixed. In addition, there would be considerably fewer units that could capture 
higher rents for their views. For the reasons listed above, the City rejects the 14-Story Building Alternative. 

6.1.4  15-Story Building Alternative. This alternative would reduce the proposed building’s height from 18 to 
15 stories, for the purpose of reducing the obstruction of views from Campanile Way, while still maintaining the 
same number of dwelling units (274). The building would have a maximum height of 151 feet, 4 inches, plus an 
additional 14 feet of rooftop architectural projections. Relative to the proposed project, the 15-Story Building 
Alternative would reduce the building’s maximum height by approximately 29 feet. To provide the same 
residential density as the proposed project in fewer stories, the alternative would widen the proposed upper 
floors. While the project’s upper tier would step back an additional 65 feet from Shattuck Avenue above the 
12th floor, this alternative would eliminate that setback. Similar to the proposed project, this alternative would 
provide 10,000 square feet of commercial space and 103 parking spaces in a two-level underground garage. 

This alternative would require several additional use permits to the proposed project pursuant to the City’s C-
DMU Downtown Mixed Use District standards: to exceed the bulk height limit at 120 feet by 31 feet, 3 inches; 
and to reduce the rear and interior side setbacks below the distance required. However, while the project 
would require an administrative use permit to allow architectural projections to exceed the maximum building 
height of 180 feet, this permit would be unnecessary for the reduced-height alternative. With approval of the 
additional use permits, the 15-Story Building Alternative would be consistent with zoning standards. 

Findings. The 15-Story Building Alternative would obstruct scenic Bay views from the Campanile Way corridor 
to a similar extent as the proposed project. While the reduced building height would result in less vertical 
intrusion on airspace above the Bay waters, the wider upper stories would obstruct slightly more of the Golden 
Gate Bridge from view. Similar to the proposed project, the alternative would not result in a substantial adverse 
change to the cultural landscape of UC Berkeley’s Classical Core. Similar to the proposed project, the design 
of the new 15-story building’s commercial storefront, exterior wall cladding, and roof under this alternative 
could be incompatible with nearby historic buildings. Implementation of mitigation measures CR-1a through 
CR-1e to modify slanted walls, the proportion of void to wall, wall cladding materials, and the storefront and 
rooftop design would reduce this alternative’s impact on the integrity of historical resources, including the 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 28 of 31 

Page 61 of 162

65



adjacent Shattuck Hotel and the greater proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. Nonetheless, 
conceptual massing diagrams prepared for the alternative indicate that the building may have long, 
uninterrupted horizontal surfaces that are incompatible with historic buildings and inconsistent with the 
Downtown Berkeley Design Guidelines. Therefore, additional mitigation would be required for this alternative 
(Mitigation Measure CR-1f), modifying the building’s massing to avoid long, uninterrupted horizontal surfaces. 
Like the proposed project, impacts to cultural resources would be less than significant with mitigation.  
 
Although the 15-Story Alternative would generally achieve all of the objectives of the proposed project, it would 
respect the historic character of the Shattuck Avenue corridor to a lesser extent, by eliminating the proposed 
stepbacks in building massing from the perspective of adjacent streets. As discussed above, additional 
mitigation and modifications to the building’s massing would be necessary to protect the setting of nearby 
historic resources.  
 
The 15-story Alternative would not be financially feasible. Strategic Economics was commissioned by the City 
to peer review the applicant’s community benefits proposal and this review found that the return on investment 
for the proposed project is below that considered by other developers. The 15-story Alternative would result in 
fewer units and/or square footage which would have a direct, negative impact to project economics, as land 
and other project costs remain fixed. In addition, there would be considerably fewer units that could capture 
higher rents for their views. For the reasons listed above, the City rejects the 15-Story Building Alternative. 
 
6.2 Environmentally Superior Alternative. Section 15126.6(e)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines requires that an 
environmentally superior alternative be identified among the selected alternatives. While the No Project 
Alternative would be environmentally superior in the technical sense that contribution to the afore-mentioned 
impacts would not occur, the No Project Alternative would also fail to achieve all of the project’s objectives. 
 
Among the development options, Alternative 2 (Reduced Parking) would be environmentally superior to the 
proposed project, as it would substantially reduce vehicle trips such that air quality, traffic noise, and circulation 
impacts would be reduced. However, impacts related to air quality, traffic noise, and circulation were all found 
to be less than significant or less than significant with mitigation. The Reduced Parking Alternative would not 
change any impact conclusions. This alternative would still require mitigation for air pollutant emissions during 
construction, design compatibility with historic buildings, structural stability of the Strawberry Creek culvert and 
BART substructure, construction noise, vibration, construction-related impacts to circulation, and pedestrian 
safety.  
 
Findings. The City finds that out of the development options, the Reduced Parking Alternative is the 
environmentally superior alternative. However, as discussed above, the City finds that this alternative would fail 
to fully realize all of the project objectives, particularly those related to designing a feasible project, to the same 
extent as the proposed project. Therefore, the City rejects the Reduced Parking Alternative. 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 29 of 31 

Page 62 of 162

66



SECTION 7: STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 
CEQA requires the decision-making agency to balance the benefits of a project against its significant 
unavoidable impacts when determining whether to approve a project. If the benefits of the project outweigh its 
unavoidable adverse environmental effects, those effects may be considered acceptable.4 CEQA requires the 
agency to state in writing the specific reasons for considering a project acceptable when significant impacts are 
not avoided or substantially lessened. Those reasons must be based on substantial evidence in the Final EIR 
or elsewhere in the administrative record.5 The proposed project will result in a significant unavoidable impact 
related to noise, even after incorporation of all feasible mitigation measures. This significant unavoidable 
impact is identified and discussed in Section 5 of these Findings. The City further finds that this impact is 
outweighed by the project’s benefits, each of which, independently of the others, constitutes overriding 
consideration warranting approval of the proposed project. Those benefits are as follows: 
 
 The project will upgrade and revitalize an important urban block in Downtown Berkeley into a walkable, 

retail-centered, transit-friendly, residential block with active, safe and visually engaging pedestrian 
amenities consistent with the Downtown Area Plan and the Streets and Open Space Improvement Plan, 
while respecting key historic resources on adjacent blocks 

 The project advances DAP Environmental Sustainability Goal ES-3 and Land Use Goal LU-1, which 
encourage high intensity development near transit, by introducing high-quality, transit-oriented, and 
sustainable market rate housing and contributing substantial affordable housing (and/or fees to support 
development of such housing) as required by Section 22.20.065 of the Berkeley Municipal Code. High 
intensity development near transit will reduce regional vehicle miles traveled and associated greenhouse 
gas emissions from transportation, by reducing development pressure in outlying parts of the Bay Area and 
beyond. 

 The project will assist the State, region, and the City to achieve established housing production goals. 

 The project advances DAP Environmental Sustainability Goal ES-4, which promotes sustainable building 
practices, by constructing a building that integrates environmentally sustainable development practices in 
design, development, and construction, and uses ecologically beneficial landscaping techniques. 

 The project activates the pedestrian environment along Allston Way, adjacent to the Downtown Berkeley 
BART Station, by replacing the existing commercial building which has limited openings and visual 
permeability/activity with a new building that offers pedestrian amenities such as art vitrines with glass 
display cases as well as streetscape upgrades. This advances DAP Goal ES-3, Historic Preservation and 
Urban Design Goal HD-4, which emphasizes pedestrian environments that are active, safe, and visually 
engaging, and Policy HD-4.1, which emphasizes improving the pedestrian experience.  

 The project will complement Downtown’s traditional character by maintaining a continuous street wall, 
except for architectural expression at the site’s southeast corner and for usable open space, which is 
consistent with DAP Economic Development Goal ED-3; building wall treatments that complement those of 
the historic Shattuck Hotel; and stepped massing to minimize sight lines of the building from the 
perspective of people on Shattuck Avenue.  

 The project will encourage alternative modes of transportation by foot, by bicycle and via transit, for 
residents, employees, and retail customers by providing residents and employees with a range of 
Transportation Demand Management measures that are made possible by the income generated by the 
project’s size and scale, and prioritizing the safety, attractiveness and convenience of the pedestrian 
experience. 

 The Project will significant new revenue streams for the City of Berkeley through increased property taxes 
and property-based revenues, economically sensitive revenues such as sales taxes and business license 

4 CEQA Guidelines, 2017. Section 15093(a) 
5 CEQA Guidelines, 2017. Section 15093(b) 

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 30 of 31 

Page 63 of 162

67



taxes, jobs creation, gross receipts taxes, and a new residential population that supports a successful mix 
of retail businesses, institutions and other attractions in Downtown Berkeley. 

 The Project will be required to provide Significant Community Benefits as per Berkeley Municipal Code
Section 23.E.68.090.E, and will contribute to affordable housing, street and open space improvements or
fees, school mitigation fees, bicycle parking, and other improvements required by the Berkeley Municipal
Code.

On balance, the City finds that there are specific considerations associated with the project that serve to 
override and outweigh the project’s significant unavoidable effect. Therefore, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15093(b), this adverse effect is considered acceptable.  

EXHIBIT A.i 
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 31 of 31 

Page 64 of 162

68



A t t a c h m e n t  1  –  E x h i b i t  B

Mitigation Monitoring & Reporting Program 

OCTOBER 25, 2018 

1 

This Draft Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) was formulated based upon the findings of the Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) and Infill Environmental Checklist (IEC) prepared for the 2190 Shattuck Avenue Mixed-Use Project. The MMRP, which is 
provided in Table 1 of this section, lists mitigation measures recommended in the EIR for the proposed project and identifies mitigation 
monitoring requirements. The Final MMRP must be adopted when the City makes a final decision on the project.  

This MMRP has been prepared to comply with the requirements of State law (Public Resources Code Section 21081.6). State law 
requires the adoption of an MMRP when mitigation measures are required to avoid significant impacts. The MMRP is intended to 
ensure compliance during implementation of the project. 

The MMRP is organized in a matrix format. The first column identifies the impact and the second column identifies the mitigation 
measure that will be implemented for each project impact. The third column, entitled “Monitoring Responsibility,” refers to the agency 
responsible for oversight or ensuring that the mitigation measure is implemented. The fourth column, entitled “Monitoring Timing,” refers 
to when the monitoring will occur to ensure that the mitigation action is completed. The lead agency will provide verification that the 
measures have been implemented. These mitigation measures include any minor revisions made as a result of the Response to 
Comments Document. 

EXHIBIT A.ii
from ZAB 10-25-18 

Page 1 of 16 

Page 65 of 162

69



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 2 of 16 
 

 

Table 1:  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 
AIR QUALITY    
AIR-1: Project construction would 
generate increases in localized air 
pollutant emissions. While these 
emissions may result in 
temporary adverse impacts to 
local air quality, they would not 
exceed BAAQMD thresholds. 
Nevertheless, the project would 
be required to comply with 
BAAQMD regulations and 
Mitigation Measure AIR-3 from 
the DAP EIR to minimize 
emissions that could pose a 
health and nuisance impact to 
nearby sensitive receptors. 
Therefore, air quality impacts 
associated with construction 
activities would be less than 
significant with mitigation. 

Implement DAP EIR Mitigation Measure AIR-3 (see below). 
 
AIR-3: Implement BAAQMD-Recommended Measures to Control PM10 
Emissions during Construction. Measures to reduce diesel particulate 
matter and PM10 from construction are recommended to ensure that short-
term health impacts to nearby sensitive receptors are avoided. 
Dust (PM10) Control Measures: 
 Water all active construction areas at least twice daily and more often 

during windy periods. Active areas adjacent to residences should be kept 
damp at all times. 

 Cover all hauling trucks or maintain at least two feet of freeboard. 
 Pave, apply water at least twice daily, or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers 

on all unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging areas. 
 Sweep daily (with water sweepers) all paved access roads, parking areas, 

and staging areas and sweep streets daily (with water sweepers) if visible 
soil material is deposited onto the adjacent roads. 

 Hydroseed or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers to inactive construction 
areas (i.e., previously-graded areas that are inactive for 10 days or more). 

 Enclose, cover, water twice daily, or apply (non-toxic_ soil binders to 
exposed stockpiles. 

 Limit traffic speeds on any unpaved roads to 15 mph. 
 Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible. 
 Suspend construction activities that cause visible dust plumes to extend 

beyond the construction site. 
Measures to Reduce Diesel Particulate Matter and PM2.5: 
 Clear signage at all construction sites will be posted indicating that diesel 

equipment standing idle for more than five minutes shall be turned off. 
This would include trucks waiting to deliver or receive soil, aggregate, or 
other bulk materials. Rotating drum concrete trucks could keep their 
engines running continuously as long as they were onsite or adjacent to 
the construction site. 

 Opacity is an indicator of exhaust particulate emissions from off-road 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development and 
Public Works 
Departments 
 
The City of 
Berkeley Building 
Official or their 
designee shall 
verify compliance 
that these 
measures have 
been 
implemented 
during normal 
construction site 
inspections. 

During 
demolition, 
site 
preparation, 
and project 
construction 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 2 of 16 

Page 66 of 162

70



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 3 of 16 
 

 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

diesel-powered equipment. The project shall ensure that emissions from 
all construction diesel powered equipment used on the project site do not 
exceed 40 percent opacity for more than three minutes in any one hour. 
Any equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or Ringelmann 2.0) 
shall be repaired immediately. 

 The contractor shall install temporary electrical service whenever possible 
to avoid the need for independently powered equipment (e.g., 
compressors). 

 Properly tune and maintain equipment for low emissions. 
CULTURAL RESOURCES 
CR-1: Although the proposed 
demolition of the existing 
commercial building on-site would 
not directly affect an eligible 
historical resource, the proposed 
building design would adversely 
affect the setting of nearby 
historical resources, including the 
adjacent Shattuck Hotel and the 
greater proposed Shattuck 
Avenue Downtown Historic 
District. Impacts on the integrity of 
historical resources would be less 
than significant with incorporation 
of mitigation to enhance the 
compatibility of the proposed 
building’s design with surrounding 
historical resources. 

CR-1a: Slanted Wall Modifications. The project applicant shall modify the 
proposed design of the slanted walls composed of slotted aluminum panels at 
stories two through six along Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way to make them 
more compatible with the Shattuck Hotel and other contributors to the 
proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. Specifically, these 
slanted walls shall be replaced with a rectilinear wall system, i.e., one with 
predominant wall surfaces below the seventh-floor loggia being either parallel 
or perpendicular to the abutting property line. 
CR-1b: Wall Rhythm Modifications. The proportion and pattern of void to 
wall in the proposed wall treatments of the project shall be modified to more 
closely match that exhibited in the Shattuck Hotel. Potential ways to achieve 
this include, but are not necessarily limited to, replacing the window wall 
systems with punched curtain wall systems or breaking up the window wall 
systems with windowless bays. 
CR-1c: Wall Cladding Material Modifications. The project applicant shall 
modify the proposed design so as to incorporate wall cladding materials that 
are compatible with the Shattuck Hotel and other contributors to the proposed 
Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. Such materials include brick, 
concrete, stucco, marble, granite, tile and terra cotta, and could be used in 
conjunction with the proposed glass fiber reinforced concrete (GFRC), glass 
panels, and metal screens. 
CR-1d: Roofline Modifications. The project applicant shall modify the 
proposed design so as to incorporate elements that more prominently 
accentuate the building’s roofline by differentiating it from the walls below. 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development 
Department, Land 
Use Division 

Prior to 
issuance of 
demolition, 
grading, or 
construction 
permits 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 3 of 16 

Page 67 of 162

71



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 4 of 16 
 

 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

Potential ways to achieve this include, but are not necessarily limited to, 
adding a cornice element or employing a change in material, color or finish at 
the uppermost portions of the wall façades. 
CR-1e: Ground Floor Modifications. The project applicant shall modify the 
proposed design of the storefront along Shattuck Avenue and the ground-floor 
wall along Allston Way in a manner that visually divides the uninterrupted 
expanse of glazing at the ground floor into distinct bays that are between 15 
and 30 feet in width. 

CR-2: The proposed demolition of 
the existing building on-site and 
construction of an 18-story mixed-
use building with two levels of 
underground parking would 
produce ground vibration in the 
vicinity of existing historical 
resources. The levels of vibration 
that would be generated by project 
construction activities could 
potentially exceed thresholds for 
physical damage to historic 
structures. However, 
implementation of Mitigation 
Measure NOI-6 in the DAP EIR 
would be required to monitor and 
reduce vibration levels at the 
Shattuck Hotel from construction 
activity. Therefore, impacts would 
be less than significant with 
mitigation. 

Implement DAP EIR Mitigation Measure NOI-6 (see below). 
 
NOI-6: Avoidance of Pile-Driving/Site-Specific Vibration Studies/ 
Monitoring/Contingency Planning. The following measures are 
recommended to reduce vibration from construction activities: 
 Avoid impact pile-driving where possible. Drilled piles causes lower 

vibration levels where geological conditions permit their use. 
 Avoid using vibratory rollers and tampers near sensitive areas. 
 In areas where project construction is anticipated to include vibration-

generating activities, such as pile-driving in close proximity to existing 
structures, site-specific vibration studies should be conducted to 
determine the area of impact and to present appropriate mitigation 
measures that may include the following: 

o Identification of sites that would include vibration compaction 
activities such as pile-driving and that have the potential to 
generate groundborne vibration, and the sensitivity of nearby 
structures to groundborne vibration. Vibration limits should be 
applied to all vibration-sensitive structures located within 200 feet 
of the project. A qualified structural engineer should conduct this 
task. 
o Development of a vibration monitoring and construction 
contingency plan to identify structures where monitoring would be 
conducted, set up a vibration monitoring schedule, define 
structure-specific vibration limits, and address the need to conduct 
photo, elevation, and crack surveys to document before and after 
construction conditions. 
o Construction contingencies would be identified for when vibration 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development 
Department, Land 
Use Division 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading 
permit (for 
review of 
vibration 
monitoring 
and 
construction 
contingency 
plan) 
 
During 
construction 
period (for 
on-site 
monitoring) 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 4 of 16 

Page 68 of 162

72



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 5 of 16 
 

 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

levels approached the limits. 
o At a minimum, vibration monitoring should be conducted during 
initial demolition activities and during pile driving activities. 
Monitoring results may indicate the need for more or less intensive 
measurements. 
o When vibration levels approach limits, suspend construction and 
implement contingencies to either lower vibration levels or secure 
the affected structures.  
o Conduct post-survey on structures where either monitoring has 
indicated high levels or complaints of damage has been made. 
Make appropriate repairs or compensation where damage has 
occurred as a result of construction activities. 

GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
GEO-1: Construction of the 
project would occur within 25 feet 
of the centerline of the Strawberry 
Creek culvert. The presence of 
the culvert in proximity to the 
proposed building’s foundations 
could potentially result in 
instability of the proposed 
building’s foundations. Required 
compliance with Berkeley 
Municipal Code and California 
Building Code standards would 
reduce the potential for 
excavation, shoring and 
foundations to cause instability. 
However, improper installation of 
temporary shoring and tiebacks 
could result in damage to the 
culvert during project 
construction. 

GEO-1: Temporary Shoring and Tieback Design Review. Prior to the 
issuance of a grading permit, the project applicant shall submit to the City of 
Berkeley Department of Planning & Development – Building and Safety 
Division for review and approval the results of a site-specific geotechnical 
investigation as well as final engineering and design plans for excavation, 
temporary shoring, tiebacks, and tieback anchors. The final engineering and 
design plans for the project shall demonstrate the precise location of the 
Strawberry Creek culvert, the location of all tiebacks and tieback anchors, the 
shoring design pressures, the bearing strength of the soil between the project 
and the culvert, and the construction sequencing. Excavation and temporary 
shoring shall be designed to limit horizontal and vertical ground deformations 
such that the stability of the adjacent culvert would not be affected. The 
installation of tiebacks and tieback anchors shall be designed to prevent 
damage to the adjacent culvert. The final design shall locate work as far from 
the edge of culvert as practicable at a distance equal to depth of culvert 
bottom. 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development 
Department, 
Building and 
Safety Division  
 

Prior to 
issuance of a 
grading 
permit 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 5 of 16 

Page 69 of 162

73



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 6 of 16 
 

 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 
GEO-2: Construction of the 
project would occur within the 
zone of influence of the adjacent 
BART station and tunnels. 
Improper construction within this 
zone could result in damage to, or 
destabilization of, the proposed 
project and the BART subway 
tunnel and station. Mitigation 
would be required to ensure that 
the construction design meets all 
applicable BART standards. With 
implementation of mitigation, the 
project would have a less than 
significant impact related to the 
structural integrity of BART 
substructures. 
 
 

GEO-2:  BART Zone of Influence Design Review. Prior to the issuance of a 
grading permit, the project applicant shall submit to the City of Berkeley 
Department of Planning & Development – Building and Safety Division for 
review and approval the results of a site-specific geotechnical investigation as 
well as final engineering and design plans for the building, including all 
subsurface and above-ground elements of the project. The final engineering 
and design plans for the project shall demonstrate adherence to BART’s 
General Guidelines for Design and Construction Over or Adjacent to BART’s 
Subway Structures. Applicable elements of the General Guidelines may 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 Minimum clearance of 7’6” between new construction and BART 

substructures  
 Shoring for excavations in the Zone of Influence 
 Monitoring of shoring to ensure that it maintains at-rest soil condition  
 Monitoring of dewatering and recharging if the existing groundwater level 

is expected to drop by more than two feet 
 Predrilling of piles to a minimum of 10 feet below the Line of Influence, 

which is a line from the critical point of a BART substructure at a slope of 
1.5 horizontal to 1.0 vertical towards ground level 

 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development 
Department, 
Building and 
Safety Division  
 

Prior to 
issuance of a 
grading 
permit 

NOISE AND VIBRATION 
N-1: Project construction would 
temporarily generate high noise 
levels on and near the project 
site. Construction noise levels 
would intermittently exceed City 
standards for construction noise 
in commercial zones, particularly 
in the first months of construction 
during excavation and 
construction of the foundation 
system. Therefore, construction 
noise impacts would be significant 
and unavoidable. 

Implement DAP EIR Mitigation Measure NOI-5 (see below). 
 
NOI-5: Develop Site-Specific Noise Reduction Programs and Implement 
Noise Abatement Measures during Construction. Prior to the issuance of 
building permits, the applicant shall develop a site-specific noise reduction 
program prepared by a qualified acoustical consultant to reduce construction 
noise impacts to the maximum extent feasible, subject to review and approval 
of the Zoning Officer. The noise reduction program shall include appropriate 
time limits for construction (7:00 AM to 7:00 PM on weekdays and between 
the hours of 9:00 AM and 8:00 PM on weekends or holidays) as well as 
technically and economically feasible controls to meet the requirements of the 
Berkeley Municipal Code. The noise reduction program should include, but 
shall not be limited to, the following available controls to reduce construction 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development and 
Public Works 
Departments 
 
Construction 
Contractor 
 
 
 

Prior to 
issuance of 
demolition, 
grading or 
building 
permits 
 
Throughout 
the 
construction 
period 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 6 of 16 

Page 70 of 162

74



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 7 of 16 
 

 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

noise levels as low as practical: 
 Construction equipment should be well maintained and used judiciously to 

be as quiet as practical. 
 Equip all internal combustion engine-driven equipment with mufflers, 

which are in good condition and appropriate for the 
equipment. 

 Utilize “quiet” models of air compressors and other stationary noise 
sources where technology exists. Select hydraulically or electrically 
powered equipment and avoid pneumatically powered equipment where 
feasible. 

 Locate stationary noise-generating equipment as far as possible from 
sensitive receptors when adjoining construction sites. Construct 
temporary noise barriers or partial enclosures to acoustically shield such 
equipment where feasible. 

 Prohibit unnecessary idling of internal combustion engines. 
 If impact pile driving is required, pre-drill foundation pile holes to minimize 

the number of impacts required to seat the pile. 
 Construct solid plywood fences around construction sites adjacent to 

operational business, residences or other noise sensitive land uses where 
the noise control plan analysis determines that a barrier would be 
effective at reducing noise. 

 Erect temporary noise control blanket barriers, if necessary, along 
building facades facing construction sites. This mitigation would only be 
necessary if conflicts occurred which were irresolvable by proper 
scheduling. Noise control blanket barriers can be rented and quickly 
erected. 

 Route construction related traffic along major roadways and away from 
sensitive receptors where feasible. 

 Businesses, residences or other noise-sensitive land uses within 500 feet 
of construction sites should be notified of the construction schedule in 
writing prior to the beginning of construction. Designate a “construction 
liaison” that would be responsible for responding to any local complaints 
about construction noise. The liaison would determine the cause of the 
noise complaints (e.g., starting too early, bad muffler, etc.) and institute 
reasonable measures to correct the problem.  

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 7 of 16 

Page 71 of 162

75



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 8 of 16 
 

 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

Conspicuously post a telephone number for the liaison at the 
construction site. 

N-2: Project construction would 
temporarily generate high 
vibration levels on and adjacent to 
the project site. Because 
construction would occur inside 
the hours allowed in the Berkeley 
Municipal Code, it would not 
generate vibration when people 
normally sleep. While vibration in 
excess of FTA thresholds may 
temporarily disturb daytime 
educational activities at Berkeley 
City College, the use of 
administrative controls including 
notification of neighbors and 
appropriate scheduling of 
vibrating-generating activities 
would minimize exposure to 
perceptible vibration. Vibration 
levels at the Shattuck Hotel could 
potentially exceed Caltrans 
thresholds for structure damage, 
but vibration monitoring pursuant 
to Mitigation Measure NOI-6 from 
the DAP EIR would reduce the 
likelihood of structure damage. 
Therefore, the project would have 
a less than significant vibration 
impact with mitigation. 

Implement DAP EIR Mitigation Measure NOI-6 (see MM for Impact CR-2). City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development 
Department, Land 
Use Division 

Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading 
permit 

N-5: New residential units on the 
project site would be subject to 
noise levels in excess of the City 

Implement DAP EIR Mitigation Measure NOI-1 (see below). 
 
NOI-1: Site-Specific Noise Studies/Site Planning/Noise Control 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development and 

Prior to 
issuance of 
demolition, 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 8 of 16 

Page 72 of 162

76



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 9 of 16 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 
of Berkeley noise compatibility 
guidelines. However, sound 
attenuation techniques would 
reduce ambient noise in the 
residential units to below the 
City’s standard of 45 dBA Ldn, 
ensuring that this impact would be 
less than significant with 
mitigation. 

Treatments. Future residential units proposed under the DAP would be 
exposed to outdoor noise levels in excess of 60 dBA Ldn and indoor noise 
levels in excess of 45 dBA Ldn, which would exceed the City’s and state’s 
established land use compatibility thresholds. In areas where residential 
development would be exposed to an Ldn of greater than 60 dBA, site-
specific noise studies should be conducted to determine the area of impact 
and to present appropriate mitigation measures, which may include the 
following: 
 Utilize site planning to minimize noise in shared residential outdoor activity

areas by locating these areas behind the buildings, in courtyards, or
orienting the terraces to alleyways rather than streets, whenever possible.

 The California Building Code and the City of Berkeley require project-
specific acoustical analyses to achieve interior noise levels of 45 dBA Ldn
or lower in residential units exposed to exterior noise levels greater than
60 dBA Ldn. Building sound insulation requirements would need to include
the provision of forced-air mechanical ventilation in noise environments
exceeding 70 dBA Ldn so that windows could be kept closed at the
occupant’s discretion to control noise. Special building construction
techniques (e.g., sound-rated windows and building façade treatments)
may be required where exterior noise levels exceed 65 dBA Ldn. These
treatments include, but are not limited to, sound rated windows and doors,
sound rated exterior wall assemblies, acoustical caulking, etc. The specific
determination of what treatments are necessary will be conducted on a
unit-by-unit basis during project design. Result of the analysis, including
the description of the necessary noise control treatments, will be
submitted to the City along with the building plans and approved prior to
issuance of a building permit. Feasible construction techniques such as
these would adequately reduce interior noise levels to 45 dBA Ldn or
lower.

N-5: Sound Insulation. The applicant shall install exterior building materials
with sufficient Sound Transmission Class (STC) ratings to reduce interior
noise levels in habitable rooms to below 45 dBA Ldn, as required by
California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Section 1207.4. All residential
windows, exterior doors, and exterior wall assemblies shall meet the STC 30

Public Works 
Departments 

Construction 
Contractor 

grading or 
building 
permits 

Throughout 
the 
construction 
period 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 9 of 16 

Page 73 of 162

77



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 10 of 16 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

rating to ensure the adequate attenuation of noise at a range of frequencies. 
TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC 
T-3: Construction of the project,
based on its expected duration
and intensity, would result in a
temporary reduction in roadway
capacity, closure of portions of
Allston Way, and relocation of AC
Transit bus stops. These physical
changes would have temporary
adverse effects on vehicle,
pedestrian, bicycle, and transit
circulation. The project would
have a less than significant
impact with mitigation during
construction.

T-3: Development and Implementation of a Construction Traffic
Management Plan. Prior to the issuance of demolition permits, a construction
traffic management plan shall be prepared and implemented during
construction and shall include, but not be limited to, the following strategies to
the satisfaction of the City’s Zoning Officer and Public Works staff:
1) Temporary Traffic Control Strategies
 Coordinate with the City of Berkeley Public Works Department and

construction manager(s)/contractor(s) for nearby developments, and with
AC Transit, Bear Transit, and Alta Bates Shuttle, as applicable, to develop
construction phasing and operations and detour plans that would result in
the least amount of disruption that is feasible to transit operations,
pedestrian and bicycle activity, and vehicular traffic.

 Establish construction phasing/staging schedule and sequence that
minimize impacts of a work zone on traffic by using operationally sensitive
phasing and staging throughout the life of the project.

 Coordinate and schedule utilities work to minimize potential work
disruptions or interruptions and reduce overall construction duration.

 Identify optimal delivery and haul routes to and from the site to minimize
impacts to traffic, transit, pedestrians, and bicyclists.

 Conduct monitoring for pavement damage and timing/coordination for
completing repairs along construction truck routes.

 Identify arrival/departure times for trucks and construction workers to
avoid peak periods of adjacent street traffic and minimize traffic affects

 Specify timing, signage, location, and duration of necessary.
partial/complete sidewalk closures and identification of detour routes for
pedestrians, bicyclists, and vehicles, as needed.

 Preserve safe and convenient passage for pedestrians and bicyclists
around construction areas. Provide alternate facilities for bicyclists and
pedestrians (including those with disabilities) in places where the work
zone impacts accessibility.

 Provide for relocation of bus stops and ensure adequate wayfinding and
signage to notify transit users.

Project Applicant 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development and 
Public Works 
Departments, 
Transportation 
Division 

Prior to 
issuance of a 
demolition 
permit 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 10 of 16 

Page 74 of 162

78



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 11 of 16 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

 Establish criteria for use of flaggers and other temporary traffic controls.
 Preserve emergency vehicle access.
 As necessary, obtain a transportation permit from Caltrans for

transportation of heavy construction equipment and/or materials which
requires the use of oversized transport vehicles on State highways.

2) Transportation Operations and Transportation Demand Management
Measures
 Encourage construction workers to use transit, carpool and other

sustainable transportation modes when commuting to and from the site.
 Specify locations of construction worker employee parking.
3) Public Information Strategies
 Provide advance notification to affected property owners, businesses,

residents, etc. of possible driveway blockages or other access
obstructions and implement alternate access and parking provisions
where necessary.

 Implement public awareness strategies to educate and reach out to the
public, businesses, and the community concerning the project and work
zone (e.g., brochures and mailers, press releases/media alerts).

 Provide a point of contact for residents, employees, property owners, and
visitors to obtain construction information, and provide comments and
questions.

 Provide current and/or real‐time information to road users regarding the
project work zone (e.g., changeable message sign to notify road users of
lane and road closures and work activities, temporary conventional signs
to guide motorists through the work zone).

T-4: The proposed project
driveway would introduce
potential conflicts between
vehicles accessing the site and
pedestrians using the north-side
sidewalk of Allston Way. Use of
the proposed driveway within
approximately 25 feet of a bus
layover zone on Allston Way also

T-4:  Driveway Safety Measures. Prior to obtaining a certificate of
occupancy, the applicant shall implement the following traffic safety measures
to the satisfaction of the City’s Zoning Officer and Public Works staff:
 Per City of Berkeley guidelines, maintain a minimum five foot by five foot

sight distance triangle at the driveway entrance/exit;
 Install “STOP” pavement markings and signage for exiting drivers to look

both ways at the exit, prior to crossing the sidewalk;
 Install convex mirrors at the project driveway to improve the visibility of

exiting vehicles from the sidewalk;

City of Berkeley 
Zoning Officer 
and Public Works 
Department 

Prior to 
issuance of a 
certificate of 
occupancy 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 11 of 16 

Page 75 of 162

79



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 12 of 16 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 
could introduce conflicts between 
vehicles accessing the site and 
buses. These conflicts would 
cause a potentially significant 
impact without adequate sight 
distance provided at the project 
driveway and appropriate 
technology to minimize conflicts 
associated with the driveway. The 
project would result in a less than 
significant impact with mitigation 
incorporated. 

 Provide visual and/or audio warning devices that alert pedestrians when
vehicles are exiting the driveway;

The typical and standard treatments identified above should be sufficient to 
address potential conflicts. In addition, the following non-standard treatments 
may be considered and implemented at the determination of the City: 
 Provide visual warning devices that alert drivers when pedestrians are

present on the sidewalk; and
 Utilize a different surface treatment or special paving to define and

highlight the driveway entrance within the public right-of-way.

T-5: Commercial and passenger
loading activity associated with
the project would introduce
potential conflicts with other
automobiles, buses, bicyclists,
and pedestrians. If demand
exceeds available space at the
proposed commercial loading
zone on the north side of Allston
Way or at the existing passenger
loading zone on the south side of
the street, spillover loading
activity could lead to illegal
parking in red curb zones or
double-parking. Large trucks
parked in the proposed loading
zone also could temporarily block
access to and from the proposed
garage. The project would have a
less than significant impact with
mitigation incorporated to
minimize traffic conflicts
associated with loading activity.

T-5a: Commercial Loading Management Strategies. It shall be the
responsibility of building management to monitor and report on on-street
commercial loading activity. Building management shall assign an inspector
who will be responsible for field monitoring and documenting observations on
a monitoring report worksheet. The inspector will be responsible for the
following activities:
 On-site, day-to-day monitoring of commercial loading activities;
 Recording instances of illegal stopping, double-parking, blockage of

adjacent travel lanes, and conflicts with transit vehicles;
 Acting in the role of contact for property owners or other affected persons

who wish to register observations of commercial loading conflicts. The
inspector shall be responsible for verifying any such observations and for
developing any necessary corrective actions in consultation with City staff;

 Maintaining a log of all significant interactions and enforceable violations
and submitting a monthly monitoring report worksheet to the City’s Traffic
Engineer for a period of one-year; and,

 Obtaining assistance as necessary from technical experts in order to
identify appropriate strategies to minimize conflicts.

The City’s Traffic Engineer shall review the monitoring reports and identify 
recurring issues. If recurring issues are identified, for example, if commercial 
loading demand exceeds available supply and loading activity results in illegal 
stopping in red zones, blockage of adjacent travel lanes, or conflicts with 
transit vehicles on a regular basis (e.g., more than once per day), it shall be 

Project Applicant 
and designated 
inspector 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development 
Department and 
Public Works 
Department, 
Transportation 
Division 

For a period 
of one year 
after 
construction 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 12 of 16 

Page 76 of 162

80



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 13 of 16 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

the responsibility of the building management to implement strategies to 
minimize conflicts. Strategies may also be required to be implemented at 
discretion of City staff, depending on the number and nature of conflicts 
observed. Appropriate strategies will vary depending on the characteristics 
and causes of the conflicts. Suggested strategies include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 
 Coordinate with AC Transit and the City for additional loading space;
 Coordinate with AC Transit and the City to determine if the transit stop

can be used for loading during certain hours;
 Restrict size of freight and delivery/service vehicles to no more than 25

feet in length;
 Limit deliveries to certain times of day, such as the early morning or late

evening;
 Install meters and increase parking enforcement;
 Encourage deliveries during off-peak times;
 Establish nearby delivery areas or delivery stations to consolidate

deliveries for a variety of users and utilize smaller vehicles and/or non-
motorized modes for last-mile delivery;

 Install a reception desk, delivery lockers, and/or other delivery-supportive
amenities on-site;

 Install delivery lockers and delivery-supportive amenities on-site;
 Schedule and coordinate loading activities through building management

to ensure that any freight loading/service vehicles can be accommodated
either in existing on-street loading spaces in the vicinity of the Project;
and,

 Actively manage the loading zone through use of attendants to direct
freight and delivery/service vehicles to available spaces when the loading
zone is in use.

T-5b: Passenger Loading Management Strategies. It shall be the
responsibility of building management to monitor and report on on-street
passenger loading activity. Building management shall assign an inspector
who will be responsible for field monitoring and documenting observations on
a monitoring report worksheet. The inspector will be responsible for the
following activities:
 On-site, day-to-day monitoring of passenger loading activities during the

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 13 of 16 

Page 77 of 162

81



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 14 of 16 
 

 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring  

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 

weekday AM peak hour (7:00 AM to 9:00 AM), midday (11:00 AM to 1:00 
PM), and PM peak hour (4:00 PM to 6:00 PM) periods, or other time 
periods determined by the City; 

 Recording instances of illegal stopping, double-parking, blockage of 
adjacent travel lanes, and conflicts with transit vehicles over a 20-minute 
period within the identified time periods; 

 Acting in the role of contact for property owners or other affected persons 
who wish to register observations of commercial loading conflicts. The 
inspector shall be responsible for verifying any such observations and for 
developing any necessary corrective actions in consultation with City 
staff; 

 Maintaining a log of all significant interactions and enforceable violations 
and submitting a monthly monitoring report worksheet to the City’s Traffic 
Engineer for a period of one year; and, 

 Obtaining assistance as necessary from technical experts in order to 
identify appropriate strategies to minimize conflicts. 

The City’s Traffic Engineer shall review the monitoring report and identify any 
recurring issues. If recurring issues are identified, for example, if passenger 
loading demand exceeds available supply and loading activity results in 
illegal stopping in red zones, blockage of adjacent travel lanes, or conflicts 
with transit vehicles on a regular basis (e.g., more than once per day), it shall 
be the responsibility of the building management to implement strategies to 
minimize conflicts. Strategies may also be required to be implemented at 
discretion of City staff, depending on the number and nature of conflicts 
observed. Appropriate strategies will vary depending on the characteristics 
and causes of the conflicts. Suggested strategies include but are not limited 
to the following: 
 Create a combined commercial/passenger loading zone on the Project 

frontage (e.g., through signage and use of alternating white and yellow 
color curb) in conjunction with implementation of time of day restrictions 
for delivery/service vehicle use of the proposed commercial truck loading 
zone; and, 

 Coordinate with owners of nearby buildings to increase the amount of 
passenger loading (white curb) space available. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 14 of 16 

Page 78 of 162

82



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 15 of 16 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 
T-7: All streets and intersections
on the route from the nearest fire
stations to the project site are
sufficiently wide enough to
provide adequate emergency
vehicle access to the site.
Operation of the project would not
substantially increase delays on
emergency access routes.
However, project construction
would temporarily impede
emergency access to the project
site during construction. The
project would have a less than
significant impact related to
emergency access with mitigation
incorporated during construction.

Implement Mitigation Measure T-3 (see above). Project Applicant 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development and 
Public Works 
Departments, 
Transportation 
Division 

Prior to 
issuance of a 
demolition 
permit 

T-8: The project would not
generate a substantial increase in
transit ridership that results in
result in overcrowding on local or
regional transit systems.
However, the temporary closure
of an AC Transit bus stop and
layover zone would impede transit
access during construction.
Traffic conflicts with vehicles
entering and leaving the proposed
driveway and with loading activity
also could delay buses on Allston
Way. The project would have a
less than significant impact on the
performance of local and regional
transit operations with mitigation
incorporated to preserve local bus

Implement Mitigation Measures T-3, T-4, T-5a, T-5b (see above). Project Applicant 
And designated 
inspector 

City of Berkeley 
Zoning Officer  

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development and 
Public Works 
Departments, 
Transportation 
Division 

Prior to 
issuance of a 
demolition 
permit and 
certificate of 
occupancy 

For a period 
of one year 
after 
construction 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 15 of 16 

Page 79 of 162

83



ATTACHMENT 1 – EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
October 25, 2018 Page 16 of 16 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
EIR IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 
access during construction and to 
minimize traffic and loading 
conflicts with buses during 
operation. 
T-9: The project would not involve
features that would result in
permanent or substantial
operational impacts to alternative
modes of transportation.
However, construction of the
project would temporarily impact
pedestrian and bicycle circulation.
The project would have a less
than significant impact with
mitigation incorporated on local
pedestrian and bicycle circulation.

Implement Mitigation Measures T-3 & T-4 (see above). Project Applicant 

City of Berkeley 
Zoning Officer  

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development and 
Public Works 
Departments, 
Transportation 
Division 

Prior to 
issuance of a 
demolition 
permit and 
certificate of 
occupancy 

Impact Statement Mitigation Measures 
Monitoring 

Responsibility 
Monitoring 

Timing 
INFILL INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES 
TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 
TCR-1: Proposed excavation of 
the project site could potentially 
result in adverse effects on 
unanticipated tribal cultural 
resources. Impacts from the 
unanticipated discovery of tribal 
cultural resources during 
construction would be less than 
significant with mitigation 
incorporated. 

TCR-1: Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the 
event that cultural resources of Native American origin are identified during 
construction, the City shall consult with a qualified archaeologist and begin or 
continue Native American consultation procedures. If the City determines that 
the resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus significant under CEQA, a 
mitigation plan shall be prepared and implemented in accordance with State 
guidelines and in consultation with Native American groups. If the resource 
cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce impacts to the 
resource and to address tribal concerns may be required. 

City of Berkeley 
Planning and 
Development 
Department 

During 
construction 
period; work 
must stop 
immediately if 
resources are 
discovered, 
and 
consultation 
initiated as 
soon as 
practical 

ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT B 
ZAB 10-25-18 
Page 16 of 16 

Page 80 of 162

84



PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

SHATTUCK TERRACE GREEN APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

USE PERMIT SET
10.25.2018

MILL CREEK RESIDENTIAL

EXHIBIT B
Page 81 of 162

85



PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
7
:0

5
 P

M

15.0022.00

DRAWING INDEX,
PROJECT DIRECTORY,
PROJECT INFO

G-001

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

DRAWING SHEET INDEXPROJECT DIRECTORYPROJECT INFO

TABULATION FORM

LOCATION MAPVICINITY MAP

ARCHITECT
WRNS STUDIO
501 SECOND STREET
SUITE 402
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107
415-489-2242

LANDSCAPE
SWA
301 BATTERY STREET
2 MEZZANINE
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111
415-836-8770

CIVIL MEP
INTERFACE ENGINEERING
135 MAIN STREET
SUITE 400
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
415-489-3215

BKF ENGINEERS
4670 WILLOW ROAD
SUITE 250
PLEASANTON, CA 94588
925-396-7718

PROJECT LOCATION
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY, CALIFORNIA 94704

PROJECT SUMMARY
DEMOLITION OF (E) BUILDING AND NEW CONSTRUCTION OF AN 18-STORY MIXED USE 
BUILDING WITH TWO LEVELS OF UNDERGROUND PARKING, 10,000 SF OF RETAIL AREA 
AND RESIDENTIAL LOBBY WITH ADJACENT COMMUNITY AREA AT GROUND FLOOR, AND 
274 RESIDENTIAL RENTAL UNITS ON LEVELS ABOVE. 

DESIGN NARRATIVE

Design Narrative Summary

The Shattuck Terrace Green Apartments project is a new mixed-use 
residential building set within the heart of Berkeley’s Downtown Core Area. 
The 18-story, approximately 211,590 SF building will offer a diverse mix of 
spaces including: a range of living unit types, 10,000 SF of ground floor retail, 
a community room and recreation spaces, enhancements to the BART Plaza 
and Allston Way, and lushly planted terraces with expansive views to the San 
Francisco Bay and Berkeley Hills.

The building’s design expresses a unique balance between individual and 
collective needs – a decidedly Berkeley Community aspiration. The project 
engages the 7-story base and 18-story tower into a dialogue of distinctive 
forms and material sensibilities. The building’s facades are composed to 
feature a fabric of wall panels, shade screens, and integrated balconies to 
control the amount of light and shadow on the south-facing facing façade. 
This “woven” composition creates a dynamic façade that opens at the corner 
of Shattuck and Allston. To further distinguish the massing and allow for 
multiple readings at the urban scale, the building’s base is characterized by a 
strong expression of rich structure and dark-textured materials, while the 
taller section takes on a lighter, more-ephemeral palette that reflects the sky.

Downtown Berkeley Design Guidelines

The building is designed to integrate within the urban context of downtown 
Berkeley. The project’s stepped massing complies with current zoning 
requirements and is in keeping with the Downtown Berkeley Design 
Guidelines. This massing also helps delineate the different scales of 
collective and individual uses, and sets up the overall engagement of the 
base and upper levels. The lower levels mediate between the surrounding 
heights of the Shattuck streetscape and the historic Hotel Shattuck, while the 
upper levels participate in the taller adjacent buildings such as Chase Bank, 
Wells Fargo, and other new buildings that are envisioned in the Downtown 
Area Plan.

The building’s base exhibits a clear base-middle-top composition with a highly 
transparent retail frontage at the ground level, and an open loggia and canopy 
at the top. The middle levels are articulated with alternating bays of punched 
windows and open balconies to create a crisp, modern expression that also 
feels rooted within the proposed historic district of the downtown. These 
projecting bays break the façade into 16’ sections that impart a residential 
scale to the lower levels while maintaining the contemporary look and feel of 
a downtown building. 

The ground floor retail space fronts on Shattuck Avenue with a recessed 
entry at the corner, while the residential lobby sets adjacent a new, small 
entry court down Allston Way -- where the tower steps back. The pedestrian 
experience along Allston is enhanced by a new robust streetscape including 
new sidewalk paving, street trees, benches, and public art vitrines that are 
integrated into the storefront windows. The art vitrines, situated beneath the 
projected bays above, help tie the layers of the building together and enhance 
the urban experience.

The upper levels of the building are comprised of a blended mix of solid wall 
panel, hi-performance glazing, integrated balconies, and south-facing shade 
screens. The pattern and openness of the shade screens help to control light 
and view and offer a complimentary counterpart to the look and feel of the 
base levels. The lyrical composition of glass window-wall, open balconies, 
and lightly-colored exterior shading features extend to all sides of the building. 
The intent is to emphasize that, while different in nature and orientation, all 
façades are equally important. While the south side features a dynamic skin, 
the north façade reads more like a collection of smaller buildings defined by 
different yet complimentary, façade patterns, exterior shading, and balconies.

Sustainability

The Shattuck Terrace Green project is pursuing LEED Gold Certification, and 
the building’s design leverages a myriad of sustainable features, including: 
Transit Oriented Development and Sustainable Sites, Water Conservation 
and Energy Efficiency, Material Resources, and enhanced Indoor Air Quality. 
Beyond merely picking items from a checklist, the design takes advantage of 
synergies among the various disciplines and building systems to incorporate 
“win-win” features that are high-performance, expressive of a conservation 
ethic, and also cost effective. For example, a primary aspect of the building 
design is lushly planted roof-decks. These communal features provide 
attractive settings for residents to engage socially and connect with nature (of 
an urban variety). But they also contribute to the outward expression of the 
building on multiple levels, and serve a vital function in storm water 
management, rainwater catchment, and reuse. Another great example is the 
exterior shading screens. This system expands the range of comfort for 
residents by providing added control over the environment while at the same 
time reducing solar heat gain that leads to greater comfort and ultimately 
energy savings.

STRUCTURAL
TIPPING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
1906 SHATTUCK AVE
BERKELEY, CA 94704
510-549-1906

001_SHEET INDEX ARCHITECTURAL

Sheet
Number Sheet Name

USE PERMIT
SUBMITTAL 06/01/2016

PRELIMINARY
DESIGN REVIEW

06/15/2017
DRC 3 Design

Update
DRC 4 Design

Updates
DRC 5 Design

Updates Sheet Issue 06

G-000 COVER PAGE

G-010 RENDERINGS ● ● ● ● ●

G-011 RENDERINGS ● ● ● ● ●

G-012 RENDERINGS ● ● ● ● ●

G-013 DAP COMPLIANCE - SITE DESIGN ● ● ● ● ●

G-023 MATERIAL BOARD ● ●

AS-100 VICINTY PLAN ● ● ● ●

AS-101 SITE PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-100 B2 PARKING ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-101 B1 PARKING ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-102 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-103 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 02 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-104 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 03-06 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-105 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 07 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-106 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 08 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-107 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 09-11 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-108 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 12 ● ● ● ● ●

A-109 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 13 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-110 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 14-17 ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-111 FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 18 ● ● ● ● ●

A-112 ROOF PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-113 UPPER ROOF PLAN ● ● ● ● ●

A-131 TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN, LEVELS 03 - 06 ●

A-132 TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN, LEVELS 09 - 11 ●

A-133 TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN, LEVELS 14 - 17 ●

A-301 BUILDING ELEVATION - SOUTH ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-302 BUILDING ELEVATION - NORTH ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-304 BUILDING ELEVATION - EAST - WEST ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-310 NORTH/SOUTH BUILDING SECTION ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-311 EAST/WEST BUILDING SECTION ● ● ● ● ● ●

A-320 STREETSCAPE ELEVATIONS ● ● ●

A-400 FACADES - DETAILS / ENLARGED ELEVATIONS ●

001_SHEET INDEX LANDSCAPE

L-100 ROOF TERRACE VIEWS ● ● ● ● ●

L-101 LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

L-102 LEVEL 1 LANDSCAPE PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

L-103 LEVEL 8 LANDSCAPE PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

L-104 LEVEL 13 LANDSCAPE PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

L-105 LEVEL 18 LANDSCAPE PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

L-106 PLANT PALETTE ● ● ● ● ●

001_SHEET INDEX CIVIL

C-100 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY ● ● ● ● ● ●

C-200 PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN ● ● ● ● ● ●

●

USE PERMIT 
SET

10/25/2018

EXHIBIT B
Page 82 of 162

86



PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
7
:0

7
 P

M

15.0022.00

RENDERINGS

G-010

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

SOUTHEAST VIEW FROM SHATTUCK AVENUE

EXHIBIT B
Page 83 of 162

87



PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
7
:0

9
 P

M

15.0022.00

RENDERINGS

G-011

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

SOUTHEAST NIGHT VIEW FROM SHATTUCK AVENUE

EXHIBIT B
Page 84 of 162

88



PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:0

4
:0

1
 A

M

15.0022.00

RENDERINGS

G-012

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

CLOSE UP VIEW FROM SHATTUCK AVENUE NORTH EAST VIEW FROM SHATTUCK AVENUE

SOUTH WEST VIEW FROM ALLSTON WAYALLSTON WAY ENTRY PLAZA VIEW FROM SOUTH WEST

EXHIBIT B
Page 85 of 162

89



PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1
0
/1

6
/2

0
1
8
 1

:5
9
:1

4
 P

M

15.0022.00

DAP COMPLIANCE - SITE
DESIGN

G-013

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

EXHIBIT B
Page 86 of 162

90



DN

DN

252 SF

PRIVATE PUBLIC SPACE

TERRACE

BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

TERRACE

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

TERRACE

843 SF

TERRACE

2,324 SF

TERRACE

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/32" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

0
:5

2
:1

5
 A

M

15.0022.00

Open Usable Space

A-115

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 01

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 2

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 3

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 7

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 8

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 9

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 13

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 14

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 18

1/32" = 1'-0"

ROOF

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 4

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 5

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 6

000_Commercial Public Open Space

Name Area

FF LEVEL 01

PRIVATE PUBLIC SPACE 252 SF

252 SF

000_Residential Open Usable Space

Name Area

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 331 SF

456 SF

FF LEVEL 13

BALCONY 43 SF

BALCONY 59 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 372 SF

TERRACE 2,437 SF

3,014 SF

FF LEVEL 14

BALCONY 42 SF

BALCONY 59 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 120 SF

BALCONY 401 SF

726 SF

FF LEVEL 15

BALCONY 42 SF

BALCONY 59 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 120 SF

BALCONY 401 SF

726 SF

FF LEVEL 16

BALCONY 42 SF

BALCONY 59 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 120 SF

BALCONY 401 SF

726 SF

FF LEVEL 17

BALCONY 42 SF

BALCONY 59 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 120 SF

BALCONY 401 SF

726 SF

FF LEVEL 18

BALCONY 580 SF

580 SF

ROOF

TERRACE 843 SF

TERRACE 2,324 SF

3,167 SF

21,952 SF

000_Residential Open Usable Space

Name Area

FF LEVEL 2

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

TERRACE 1,765 SF

1,922 SF

FF LEVEL 3

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 37 SF

BALCONY 72 SF

BALCONY 78 SF

BALCONY 99 SF

BALCONY 230 SF

673 SF

FF LEVEL 4

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 37 SF

BALCONY 72 SF

BALCONY 78 SF

BALCONY 99 SF

BALCONY 230 SF

673 SF

FF LEVEL 5

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 37 SF

BALCONY 72 SF

BALCONY 78 SF

BALCONY 99 SF

BALCONY 230 SF

673 SF

FF LEVEL 6

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 31 SF

BALCONY 37 SF

BALCONY 72 SF

BALCONY 78 SF

BALCONY 99 SF

BALCONY 230 SF

673 SF

FF LEVEL 7

BALCONY 96 SF

BALCONY 227 SF

BALCONY 602 SF

BALCONY 761 SF

TERRACE 689 SF

2,376 SF

FF LEVEL 8

BALCONY 146 SF

BALCONY 193 SF

BALCONY 464 SF

BALCONY 570 SF

TERRACE 614 SF

1,987 SF

FF LEVEL 9

BALCONY 53 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 395 SF

BALCONY 400 SF

952 SF

FF LEVEL 10

BALCONY 53 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 395 SF

BALCONY 400 SF

952 SF

FF LEVEL 11

BALCONY 53 SF

BALCONY 104 SF

BALCONY 395 SF

BALCONY 400 SF

952 SF

FF LEVEL 12

BALCONY 20 SF

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 10

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 11

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 12

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 15

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 16

1/32" = 1'-0"

FF LEVEL 17

000_Terrace vs. Balcony

Name Area

BALCONY

BALCONY 13,281 SF

13,281 SF

TERRACE

TERRACE 8,671 SF

8,671 SF

21,952 SF

EXHIBIT B
Page 87 of 162

91



10,005 SF

GFA
?

?

4,689 SF

GFA

299 SF

GFA

767 SF

GFA

16,594 SF

GFA

16,522 SF

GFA

14,495 SF

GFA

11,374 SF

GFA

11,359 SF

GFA

6,975 SF

GFA

6,525 SF

GFA

734 SF

GFA

1,477 SF

GFA

251 SF

GFA

STAIR AND ELEV COUNTED ONCE

734 SF

GFA

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2224 TEL

415.358.9100 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

As indicated

1
0
/1

6
/2

0
1
8
 3

:4
8
:2

4
 P

M

15.0022.00

Gross Floor Area - Berkeley
Code

A-122

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1" = 30'-0"1 FF LEVEL 01

1" = 30'-0"2 FF LEVEL 2

1" = 30'-0"3 FF LEVEL 3-6

1" = 30'-0"4 FF LEVEL 7

1" = 30'-0"5 FF LEVEL 8

1" = 30'-0"6 FF LEVEL 9-12

1" = 30'-0"7 FF LEVEL 13

1" = 30'-0"8 FF LEVEL 14-17

1" = 30'-0"9 FF LEVEL 18

1" = 30'-0"10 FF LEVEL B1

1" = 30'-0"11 FF LEVEL B2

1" = 30'-0"12 ROOF

000_Area Schedule By Level (Gross Building)

Level Name Area

Not Placed GFA 0 SF

FF LEVEL B2 GFA 1,728 SF

FF LEVEL B1 GFA 734 SF

FF LEVEL 01 GFA 15,760 SF

FF LEVEL 2 GFA 16,594 SF

FF LEVEL 3 GFA 16,522 SF

FF LEVEL 4 GFA 16,522 SF

FF LEVEL 5 GFA 16,522 SF

FF LEVEL 6 GFA 16,522 SF

FF LEVEL 7 GFA 14,495 SF

FF LEVEL 8 GFA 11,374 SF

FF LEVEL 9 GFA 11,359 SF

FF LEVEL 10 GFA 11,766 SF

FF LEVEL 11 GFA 11,130 SF

FF LEVEL 12 GFA 11,036 SF

FF LEVEL 13 GFA 6,975 SF

FF LEVEL 14 GFA 6,525 SF

FF LEVEL 15 GFA 6,530 SF

FF LEVEL 16 GFA 6,530 SF

FF LEVEL 17 GFA 6,530 SF

FF LEVEL 18 GFA 5,700 SF

ROOF GFA 734 SF

211,591 SF

1/8" = 1'-0"

000_CITY OF BERKELEY GFA CODE

EXHIBIT B
Page 88 of 162

92



PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
7
:1

7
 P

M

15.0022.00

MATERIAL BOARD

G-023

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

TILE-SOLID WALLS 
AT GROUND FLOOR

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 
CORNICE ELEMENTS, SLAB EDGES

GLASS-INSULATED GLASS UNIT 
EXTERIOR GLAZING

VISION GLASS - LOW IRON GLASS 
BASE OF BUILDING STOREFRONT

ALUMINUM-SILVER 
MULLIONS AT TOWER

ALUMINUM-BRONZE 
MULLIONS AT BASE

GLASS-FRITTED PANEL EXTERIOR 
GLAZING - 2'-0" SILL TYP.

CEMENTITIOUS FINISH 
EXTERIOR PANEL

BRICK VENEER AT 
BUILDING BASE

WOOD CORNICE 
SOFFITS, BALCONY 
SCREENS

LINEAR PAVERS

EXHIBIT B
Page 89 of 162

93



CENTER STREET

ALLSTON AVENUE

KITTREDGE ST

ADDISON ST

S
H

A
T

T
U

C
K

 A
V

E
N

U
E

M
IL

V
IA

 S
T

R
E

E
T

O
X

F
O

R
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BART 
PLAZA

DOWNTOWN 
BERKELEY BART 

STATION

CITY OF BERKELEY 
CIVIC CENTER

MARTIN LUTHER 
KING JR. CIVIC 
CENTER PARK

UNIVERSITY OF 
CALIFORNIA, 
BERKELEY

BERKELEY HIGH 
SCHOOL

BERKELEY 
COMMUNITY 

THEATRE

HOTEL SHATTUCK 
PLAZA

CHASE BANK

TARGET

DOWNTOWN 
BERKELEY 

YMCA

BERKELEY 
CENTRAL 

APARTMENTS

PROPOSED 
HOTEL 

PROJECT

PROPOSED 
HAROLD WAY 

PROJECT

PROPOSED SHATTUCK TERRACE 
GREEN APARTMENTS PROJECT, 

2190 SHATTUCK AVE

H
A

R
R

O
L
D

 W
A

Y

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1" = 50'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
6
:5

6
 P

M

15.0022.00

VICINTY PLAN

AS-100

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1" = 50'-0"1 VICINITY PLAN

NORTH

EXHIBIT B
Page 90 of 162

94



UP UP

UP

DN

DN

UP

UP

UP

SEE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS 
FOR WORK IN THIS AREA

VAULT 
BELOW

DROP-OFF ZONE / LOADING ZONEPROPOSED CURB CUT

22'-0"

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

BART PLAZA

ALLSTON WAY 

SEISMIC GAP,TBD

(E) EXIT DOOR FOR 

ADJACENT SITE

(E) BLDG

(E) BLDG

RETAIL 

ENTRY 

TOWER

EXIT

GARAGE

ENTRY

EASEMENT

ENTRY

PLANTING PLANTING

STREET CURB

BUS 

SHELTER

EXISTING CROSSWALK 

SCOPE OF WORK

COMMUNITY

ENTRY

RESIDENTIAL

ENTRY
ART VITRINE, TYP. 

BENCH BIKE PARKING

5
'-
0

"
6

'-
0

"

1
1

'-
8

"

SHATTUCK HOTEL

CONSTITUTION SQUARE

PROPOSED SHATTUCK TERRACE GREEN PROJECT

114'-0"45'-2"

RED CURB AREA FOR BUS STOP

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
7
:0

1
 P

M

15.0022.00

SITE PLAN

AS-101

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

NORTH

0' 12' 24' 48' 96'1/8" = 1'-0"1 SITE PLAN

EXHIBIT B
Page 91 of 162

95



UP

UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

STORAGE

(79) 
PARKING 
SPACES (5)

MECH. 
PARKING
LARGE 

CAR 

MECH. 
PARKING
REGULAR 

CAR 

RAMP UP

(8)

MECH. 
PARKING 
REGULAR

CAR

FIRE WATER

TANK

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

8.1

TRASH

80,000 USABLE GALLONS -
10.6k CUFT

STAIR

12'-0 5/8"

(8) (8)

(8)

3

TRASHMECH MECH

IRRIGATION

WATER TANK

DOMESTIC

HOT WATER

MECH

VEST.

DOMESTIC

WATER PUMP

GENERATOR

FIRE PUMP

STORAGE

ELEVATOR

2

5
'-
5
"

5.6

1

X-007

1

X-007

STAIR

MECH. 
PARKING

SMALL
CAR 

(8)

(8)

MECH. 
PARKING
REGULAR 

CAR 

(8)
MECH. 

PARKING
REGULAR 

CAR 

(8)

MECH. 
PARKING
REGULAR 

CAR 

(8)

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS S-2

PARKING SCHEDULE

REGULAR 
TANDEM MECH LIFT
THREE TIERED MECH LIFT
ADA

LEVEL B2 COUNT

0
0
77
2

LEVEL B1 COUNT

REGULAR 
TANDEM MECH LIFT
THREE TIERED MECH LIFT
ADA

5
15
0
4

TOTAL 103

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:1
6
:0

1
 P

M

15.0022.00

B2 PARKING

A-100

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 100_B2 PARKING

1 USE PERMIT COMMENTS 01 09/12/2016

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 92 of 162

96



UP

UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

D

E.1

G.1

D
R

IV
E

 A
IS

L
E

2
5

'-
7

 1
/8

"

8.13

MAIN ELEC.

ROOM

ELEVATOR

MECH TRASH MECH

MECH

VEST.

STAIR
STORAGE

EXHAUST

SHAFT

VEST.

STAIR

STORAGE

(24) 
PARKING 
SPACES

(5)

(3)

(2)

LINE OF 
RESIDENTIAL 
LOBBY ABOVE

11'-3" CLEAR 
HEIGHT

MECH
TANDEM 
PARKING 

OPEN TO RAMP 
BELOW

RAMP UP

RAMP DWN

MECH
TANDEM 
PARKING 

MECH
TANDEM 
PARKING 

VAULTVAULT

(5) SHARED
VEHICLE
STALLS

(5)
(5)

2

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

12'-0 5/8"

5
'-
5
"

VAULT

CORRIDOR

CORRIDOR

5.6

1

X-007

1

X-007

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS S-2

PARKING SCHEDULE

REGULAR 
TANDEM MECH LIFT
THREE TIERED MECH LIFT
ADA

LEVEL B2 COUNT

0
0
77
2

LEVEL B1 COUNT

REGULAR 
TANDEM MECH LIFT
THREE TIERED MECH LIFT
ADA

5
15
0
4

TOTAL 103

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:1
6
:0

3
 P

M

15.0022.00

B1 PARKING

A-101

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 100_B1 PARKING

1 USE PERMIT COMMENTS 01 09/12/2016

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 93 of 162

97



UP

DN

DN

UP

R
A

M
P

D
O

W
N

PROPERTY LINE

1 4 5 6 7 8
9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.1

VAULT
BELOW

VAULT
BELOW

VAULT
BELOW

SEE LANDSCAPE 
DRAWINGS FOR WORK 

IN THIS AREA

PROPERTY LINE
(E) EXIT DOOR

PROPERTY LINE

3

(1
0
) 

B
IK

E
S

(32) BIKES

BIKE REPAIR

(94) BIKE SPACES

(E) EXIT DOOR

(1
5
) 

B
IK

E
S

(6
) 

B
IK

E
S

(1
1
) 

B
IK

E
S

(1
0
) 

B
IK

E
S

(1
0
) 

B
IK

E
S

ENTRY 
PARKING 
GARAGE

ENTRY 
RESIDENTIAL 

LOBBY

STOR

GAS

STAIR

32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

12'-0 5/8"

5
'-
5
"

TOWER 
EXIT

ENTRY 
COMMUNITY 

ROOM 

STAIR

5.6

STORAGE MPOE

ELEVATOR

BAY WINDOW ABOVE

PACKAGES HUB

1

X-007

1

X-007

OFFICE

FCR

ST

OFFICE

RESIDENTIAL

LOBBY

COMMUNITY

ROOM

LOADING

CORRIDOR

MAIL

WORKROOM

RR

RETAIL

SPACE

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY TYPES ARE GROUP M FOR RETAIL AREAS, GROUP A FOR 
RESIDENTIAL LOBBY AND COMMUNITY ROOM, AND GROUP S FOR BIKE ROOM

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:5

3
:5

5
 A

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 01

A-102

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - GROUND FLOOR

1 USE PERMIT COMMENTS 01 09/12/2016

3 CEQA SUBMITTAL 9/26/2016

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 94 of 162

98



UP

UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.1

PROPERTY LINE

3

STAIR

2

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

12'-0 5/8"

STAIR

VEST.

VEST.

2 BR 1BR

ST ST ST1BR

5.6

TERRACE

BALC BALC BALC BALC BALC

ENCROACHING AREA, MAX. 
ENCROACHMENT 2'-6"

ENTRY CANOPY BELOW

ENTRY CANOPY BELOW

TERRACE

BLDG BELOW

1BR 1BR 1BR 1BR 1BR 1BR 1BR 1BR

2BR

1BR

2BR

2BR

ST

ST ST ST ST

BALCBALC

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:5

6
:0

0
 A

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 02

A-103

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 02

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 95 of 162

99



UP

UP

ENCROACHING AREA, MAX. 
ENCROACHMENT 2'-6"

PROPERTY LINE

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.1

32

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

12'-0 5/8"

5.6

STAIR

VEST.

TRASH

ELEVATOR

BALC

BALCONY

BALC BALC BALC BALC BALC BALC

ENCROACHING AREA, MAX. 
ENCROACHMENT 2'-6"

BALC

BALC

2 BR

1BR 2BR

ST ST ST ST

ST

2BR

1BR

2BR1BR1BR1BR1BR1BR1BR1BR1BRSTSTST1BR

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

2
:1

4
:2

5
 P

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL
03-06

A-104

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 03-06

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

ST

EXHIBIT B
Page 96 of 162

100



GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.132

5.6

2BR

1BR
2BR

ST ST ST ST ST

1BR

ST

2BRSTSTSTSTSTSTST
STSTST

2 BR

BALCONY
BALCONY

BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY

BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY

BALC.

BALC.

BALC.

BALC.

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:5

8
:3

1
 A

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 07

A-105

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 07

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 97 of 162

101



UP

PROPERTY LINE

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.1

TERRACE

SEE LANDSCAPE 
DRAWINGS FOR 
WORK IN THIS 

AREA

BALCONY

32

12'-0 5/8"
16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

1BR 1BR
ST ST ST ST ST

2BR

2BR

STST

STSTSTST

ST
ST1BR

2BR

5.6

STAIRVEST.

VEST.

STAIR

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

ST

CORRIDOR
CORRIDOR

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:5

9
:2

4
 A

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 08

A-106

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 08

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 98 of 162

102



UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

AA

BB

CC

EE

H

G

F

DD

E.1

G.1

8.132

12'-0 5/8"
16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

1BR

1BR

ST
ST

ST

2BR

2 BR

ST

STST
ST2 BR

ST ST

ST

ST

CORRIDOR

5.6

ST

VEST.
STAIR

STAIR

VEST

BALCONY

BALCONY

2BR

BALCONYBALCONYBALCONYBALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

ST

BALC.

BALCONY

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

2
:0

0
:2

0
 P

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL
09-11

A-107

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"2 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 09-11

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 99 of 162

103



UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

G.1

8.13

CORRIDOR

2

1BR

ST ST ST ST

ST STST

ST

2BR
1BR

5.6

2BR

ST

BALC

STAIR

VEST.
CORRIDOR

ELEVATOR

ST

TRASH

VEST.

2BR

2BR

ST

BALCONY

BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALC.

ST

12'-0 5/8"
16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

BALC

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

2
:0

1
:1

2
 P

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 12

A-108

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 12

EXHIBIT B
Page 100 of 162

104



UP

UP

PROPERTY LINE

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

MECH

EXTERIOR ROOF TERRACE

8.1

STAIR

SEE LANDSCAPE 
DRAWINGS FOR WORK 

IN THIS AREA

32

2BR 1BR 1BR
2BR

2BR

1BR2BR

5.6

BALCONY

BALC.

BALCONY

BALCONY

STAIR

CORRIDOR

ELEV VEST

ELEVATOR

VEST.

CORRIDOR

STAIR

VEST.

> 120' - AUP REQUEST

R 122'-10"

> 120' - 
AUP R

EQUEST

R 125'-6
"

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALC.

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

2
:0

1
:5

5
 P

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 13

A-109

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 13

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 101 of 162

105



UP

UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.132

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

2BR

1BR 1BR

2BR

1BR2BR

5.6

STAIR

CORRIDOR?

ELEVATOR

ELEV VEST

2BR

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

STAIR

BALCONY

> 120' - AUP REQUEST

R 122'-10"

> 120' - 
AUP R

EQUEST

R 125'-6
"

VEST

BALCONY

2BR

BALCONY

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

2
:0

3
:1

1
 P

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL
14-17

A-110

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 14-17

1 USE PERMIT COMMENTS 01 09/12/2016

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 102 of 162

106



UP

UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.132

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

1BR

2BR 1BR 1BR

2BR

2BR

5.6

CORRIDOR

VEST.

STAIR

BALCONY

BALCONY

> 120' - 
AUP REQUEST

R 123'-6
"

> 120' - AUP REQUEST

R 122'-8"

VEST. STAIR

2 BR

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY BALCONY

BALCONY

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

2
:0

3
:4

8
 P

M

15.0022.00

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 18

A-111

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL18

EXHIBIT B
Page 103 of 162

107



UP

UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

41'-6" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0"

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

EXTERIOR TERRACE

8.1

12'-0 5/8"

STAIR

VEST.

VEST.

SEE LANDSCAPE 
DRAWINGS FOR WORK 

IN THIS AREA

3

TRASH

MECH

2

TRELLIS ABOVE

ROOF ABOVE

TRELLIS ABOVE

5.6

STORAGE MECH

STAIR

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

0
:5

1
:5

8
 A

M

15.0022.00

ROOF PLAN

A-112

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN - ROOF

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 104 of 162

108



UP

UP

1 4 5 6 7 8 9

A

B

C

E

H

G

F

D

E.1

G.1

8.132

1
5

'-
6

"
1

1
'-
3

"
1

8
'-
6

"
9

'-
6

"
9

'-
8

"

TRASH CHUTES

TRELLIS 

TRELLIS 

SOLAR HOT WATER 
PANELS 

1
7

'-
0
"

1
8

'-
0
"

16'-3" 25'-3" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 32'-0" 12'-0 5/8"

5.6

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

2
:1

0
:3

5
 P

M

15.0022.00

UPPER ROOF PLAN

A-113

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN -UPPER ROOF

EXHIBIT B
Page 105 of 162

109



2BR

2BR

1BR

1BR1BR

1BR1BR1BR1BR1BR1BRST

ST

ST

1BR

CORRIDOR
VEST.STAIR ELEV VEST

ELEVATOR

CORRIDOR

2 BR
1BR

2BR
ST ST

ST
ST

ST

STAIRVEST.

BALCONY
BALCONY

BALC. BALC. BALC. BALC. BALC. BALC. BALC.

BALC.

BALC.

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:0

4
:3

4
 A

M

15.0022.00

TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN,
LEVELS 03 - 06

A-131

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1
TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN, LEVELS 03 - 06

ST

EXHIBIT B
Page 106 of 162

110



2BR

STSTSTSTST1BR

1BR

2BR

2 BR

ST

ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST

2 BR

CORRIDOR

STAIRVEST.

ELEV VEST

ELEVATOR

VEST

STAIR

CORRIDOR

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY

GENERAL NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION IS TYPE 1
2. OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION IS RESIDENTIAL GROUP R-2

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

0
:5

2
:2

0
 A

M

15.0022.00

TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN,
LEVELS 09 - 11

A-132

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1
TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN, LEVELS 09 - 11

EXHIBIT B
Page 107 of 162

111



UP

UP

1BR

1BR

2BR

2BR

1BR

2BR

STAIR

CORRIDORCORRIDOR

ELEVATOR

ELEV VEST

2BR

BALCONY

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

BALCONY

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y
STAIR

BALCONY

VEST

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

BALCONY

BALCONY

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:1
7
:4

0
 P

M

15.0022.00

TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN,
LEVELS 14 - 17

A-133

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1
TYP. UNIT LAYOUT PLAN, LEVELS 14 - 17

1 USE PERMIT COMMENTS 01 09/12/2016

4 USE PERMIT UPDATE 12/19/2016

EXHIBIT B
Page 108 of 162

112



FF LEVEL 01
0"

FF LEVEL 2
15'-0"

FF LEVEL 3
24'-6 7/8"

FF LEVEL 4
34'-1 3/4"

FF LEVEL 5
43'-8 5/8"

FF LEVEL 6
53'-3 1/2"

FF LEVEL 7
62'-10 3/8"

FF LEVEL 8
72'-5 1/4"

FF LEVEL 9
82'-0 1/8"

FF LEVEL 10
91'-7"

FF LEVEL 11
101'-1 7/8"

FF LEVEL 12
110'-8 3/4"

FF LEVEL 13
120'-3 5/8"

FF LEVEL 14
129'-10 1/2"

FF LEVEL 15
139'-5 3/8"

FF LEVEL 16
149'-0 1/4"

FF LEVEL 17
158'-7 1/8"

FF LEVEL 18
168'-2"

ROOF
177'-8 7/8"

FF LOBBY
-3'-6"

1 4 5 6 7 8

UPPER ROOF 2
188'-2 7/8"

UPPER ROOF 1
186'-8 7/8"

32

ELEV. OVERRUN
191'-8 7/8"

AVERAGE GRADE

176.86

FF LEVEL 8

251.55

FF LEVEL  13

299.40

FF LEVEL  ROOF

356.86

HIGHEST GRADE

179.55

LOWEST GRADE

174.38

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
8

0
'-
0

"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

7
4

'-
8

 3
/8

"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
2

2
'-
6
 3

/4
"

3
'-
6
"

1
'-
6
"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

1
5
'-
0
"

3
'-
6
"

GLASS / FRITTED GLASS

GLASS WINOW WALL WITH 
OPERABLE WINDOW ELEMENTS

LATTICE SCREENS

GFRC OR COMPOSITE RAIN 
SCREEN 

COMPOSITE WALL PANELS

GLASS WINOW WALL WITH 
OPERABLE WINDOW ELEMENTS

GUARD RAIL GLASS PANELS WITH 
CABLE RAIL, TYP.

THIN-BRICK

CANOPY, STEEL PTDALUM. STOREFRONT, DARK BRONZE ART DISPLAY

METAL FIN

ART DISPLAY

PATTERNED THIN BRICK

ALUMINUM SCREENSALUMINUM SCREENS

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:2
9
:5

6
 P

M

15.0022.00

BUILDING ELEVATION -
SOUTH

A-301

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 SOUTH ELEVATION

EXHIBIT B
Page 109 of 162

113



FF LEVEL 01
0"

FF LEVEL 2
15'-0"

FF LEVEL 3
24'-6 7/8"

FF LEVEL 4
34'-1 3/4"

FF LEVEL 5
43'-8 5/8"

FF LEVEL 6
53'-3 1/2"

FF LEVEL 7
62'-10 3/8"

FF LEVEL 8
72'-5 1/4"

FF LEVEL 9
82'-0 1/8"

FF LEVEL 10
91'-7"

FF LEVEL 11
101'-1 7/8"

FF LEVEL 12
110'-8 3/4"

FF LEVEL 13
120'-3 5/8"

FF LEVEL 14
129'-10 1/2"

FF LEVEL 15
139'-5 3/8"

FF LEVEL 16
149'-0 1/4"

FF LEVEL 17
158'-7 1/8"

FF LEVEL 18
168'-2"

ROOF
177'-8 7/8"

UPPER ROOF 2
188'-2 7/8"UPPER ROOF 1
186'-8 7/8"

ELEV. OVERRUN
191'-8 7/8"

AVERAGE GRADE

176.86

FF LEVEL 8

251.55

FF LEVEL  13

299.40

FF LEVEL  ROOF

356.86

HIGHEST GRADE

179.55

LOWEST GRADE

174.38

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
8

0
'-
0

"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

7
4

'-
8

 3
/8

"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
2

2
'-
6
 3

/4
"

1
5
'-
0
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
0
"

1
'-
6
"3

'-
6
"

GFRC OR COMPOSITE RAIN SCREEN 

GLASS / FRITTED GLASS

METAL PANELS

GLASS WINOW WALL WITH OPERABLE WINDOW ELEMENTS

GFRC OR COMPOSITE RAIN 
SCREEN 

EXISTING BUILDING IN FRONT 

GAURD RAIL GLASS PANELS WITH CABLE RAIL, TYP. 

LATTICE SCREEN

THIN BRICK

TILE

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

0
:5

9
:1

6
 A

M

15.0022.00

BUILDING ELEVATION -
NORTH

A-302

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION

EXHIBIT B
Page 110 of 162

114



FF LEVEL 01
0"

FF LEVEL 2
15'-0"

FF LEVEL 3
24'-6 7/8"

FF LEVEL 4
34'-1 3/4"

FF LEVEL 5
43'-8 5/8"

FF LEVEL 6
53'-3 1/2"

FF LEVEL 7
62'-10 3/8"

FF LEVEL 8
72'-5 1/4"

FF LEVEL 9
82'-0 1/8"

FF LEVEL 10
91'-7"

FF LEVEL 11
101'-1 7/8"

FF LEVEL 12
110'-8 3/4"

FF LEVEL 13
120'-3 5/8"

FF LEVEL 14
129'-10 1/2"

FF LEVEL 15
139'-5 3/8"

FF LEVEL 16
149'-0 1/4"

FF LEVEL 17
158'-7 1/8"

FF LEVEL 18
168'-2"

ROOF
177'-8 7/8"

FF LOBBY
-3'-6"

UPPER ROOF 2
188'-2 7/8"

UPPER ROOF 1
186'-8 7/8"

ELEV. OVERRUN
191'-8 7/8"

AVERAGE GRADE

176.86

FF LEVEL 8

251.55

FF LEVEL  13

299.40

FF LEVEL  ROOF

356.86

HIGHEST GRADE

179.55

LOWEST GRADE

174.38

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
8

0
'-
0

"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

7
4

'-
8

 3
/8

"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
2

2
'-
6
 3

/4
"

CANOPY TILEALUM. 
STOREFRONT, 
DARK 
BRONZE

THIN-BRICK

GLASS WINOW WALL 
WITH OPERABLE 

WINDOW ELEMENTS

GLASS / FRITTED GLASS

ALUMINUM SCREENS

GFRC OR COMPOSITE RAIN 
SCREEN 

METAL PANEL

PATTERNED THIN-
BRICK

ART DISPLAY

FF LEVEL 01
0"

FF LEVEL 2
15'-0"

FF LEVEL 3
24'-6 7/8"

FF LEVEL 4
34'-1 3/4"

FF LEVEL 5
43'-8 5/8"

FF LEVEL 6
53'-3 1/2"

FF LEVEL 7
62'-10 3/8"

FF LEVEL 8
72'-5 1/4"

FF LEVEL 9
82'-0 1/8"

FF LEVEL 10
91'-7"

FF LEVEL 11
101'-1 7/8"

FF LEVEL 12
110'-8 3/4"

FF LEVEL 13
120'-3 5/8"

FF LEVEL 14
129'-10 1/2"

FF LEVEL 15
139'-5 3/8"

FF LEVEL 16
149'-0 1/4"

FF LEVEL 17
158'-7 1/8"

FF LEVEL 18
168'-2"

ROOF
177'-8 7/8"

FF LOBBY
-3'-6"

UPPER ROOF 2
188'-2 7/8"

3
'-
6

"
1

5
'-
0

"
9

'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
6

"
3

'-
6

"

EXISTING BUILDING

UPPER ROOF 1
186'-8 7/8"

ELEV. OVERRUN
191'-8 7/8"

GFRC OR COMPOSITE 
RAIN SCREEN 

GLASS / FRITTED GLASS

METAL PANELS

GLASS WINOW WALL 
WITH OPERABLE 
WINDOW ELEMENTS

GAURD RAIL GLASS 
PANELS WITH CABLE RAIL, 
TYP. 

ALUMINUM SCREEN

GFRC OR COMPOSITE 
RAIN SCREEN 

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:0

3
:5

5
 A

M

15.0022.00

BUILDING ELEVATION -
EAST - WEST

A-304

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/8" = 1'-0"1 EAST ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"2 WEST ELEVATION

2 EIR REVISIONS 11/02/2017

EXHIBIT B
Page 111 of 162

115



FF LEVEL 01
0"

FF LEVEL 2
15'-0"

FF LEVEL 3
24'-6 7/8"

FF LEVEL 4
34'-1 3/4"

FF LEVEL 5
43'-8 5/8"

FF LEVEL 6
53'-3 1/2"

FF LEVEL 7
62'-10 3/8"

FF LEVEL 8
72'-5 1/4"

FF LEVEL 9
82'-0 1/8"

FF LEVEL 10
91'-7"

FF LEVEL 11
101'-1 7/8"

FF LEVEL 12
110'-8 3/4"

FF LEVEL 13
120'-3 5/8"

FF LEVEL 14
129'-10 1/2"

FF LEVEL 15
139'-5 3/8"

FF LEVEL 16
149'-0 1/4"

FF LEVEL 17
158'-7 1/8"

FF LEVEL 18
168'-2"

ROOF
177'-8 7/8"

FF B1 PARKING
LANDING HIGH

-8'-1 1/2"

FF LEVEL B1
-12'-9"

PIT LEVEL
-37'-0"

FF LOBBY
-3'-6"

UPPER ROOF 2
188'-2 7/8"

A B C ED E.1

1
1

'-
0

"
2

'-
6
 1

/2
"

5
'-
7
 1

/2
"

5
'-
1

"
4

'-
7
 1

/2
"4

'-
7
 1

/2
"3

'-
6

"
1

5
'-
0

"
9

'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
6

"

FF LEVEL B2
-26'-0"

FF B2 PARKING
LANDING HIGH

-17'-10"

FF B2 PARKING
LANDING MID

-23'-5 1/2"

15'-6" 11'-3" 18'-6" 9'-6" 9'-8"

ROOF 

TERRACE

AVERAGE GRADE

176.86

FF LEVEL 8

251.55

FF LEVEL  13

299.40

FF LEVEL  ROOF

356.86

HIGHEST GRADE

179.55

LOWEST GRADE

174.38

UPPER ROOF 1
186'-8 7/8"

ALLSTON WAY

PARKINGELEVATOR

STORAGE

FIRE WATER

TANK

MECH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH ELEVATOR

STORAGE

TRASH

CORRIDOR

CORRIDOR

ELEVATOR

ELEVATOR

ELEVATORCORRIDOR

CORRIDOR

CORRIDOR

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

ELEVATOR

1BR
ST

1BR
ST

ST

ST

1BR
ST

1BR
ST

1BR
ST

1BR
ST

1BR
ST

1BR

1BR 1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR 1BR

1BR 1BR

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATORELEV VEST

ELEVATOR

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

FF LEVEL B2
PARKING PIT

-32'-6"

BO SLAB
-37'-6"

ST 1BR

1BR

1BR

ELEVATOR
ELEV VEST

ELEVATOR

1BR

ELEVATOR

ST
1BR

1BR

1BR

ELEV LOBBY

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

3/32" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:0

3
:5

7
 A

M

15.0022.00

NORTH/SOUTH BUILDING
SECTION

A-310

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

3/32" = 1'-0"1 North South Building Section

1 USE PERMIT COMMENTS 01 09/12/2016

VOID VOIDPIT

EXHIBIT B
Page 112 of 162

116



FF LEVEL 01
0"

FF LEVEL 2
15'-0"

FF LEVEL 3
24'-6 7/8"

FF LEVEL 4
34'-1 3/4"

FF LEVEL 5
43'-8 5/8"

FF LEVEL 6
53'-3 1/2"

FF LEVEL 7
62'-10 3/8"

FF LEVEL 8
72'-5 1/4"

FF LEVEL 9
82'-0 1/8"

FF LEVEL 10
91'-7"

FF LEVEL 11
101'-1 7/8"

FF LEVEL 12
110'-8 3/4"

FF LEVEL 13
120'-3 5/8"

FF LEVEL 14
129'-10 1/2"

FF LEVEL 15
139'-5 3/8"

FF LEVEL 16
149'-0 1/4"

FF LEVEL 17
158'-7 1/8"

FF LEVEL 18
168'-2"

ROOF
177'-8 7/8"

FF LEVEL B1
-12'-9"

1
'-
6

"
9

'-
0

"
9

'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

9
'-
6
 7

/8
"

1
5

'-
0

"
3

'-
6

"
9

'-
3

"
5

'-
1

"

5
'-
7
 1

/2
"

2
'-
6
 1

/2
"

FF LOBBY
-3'-6"

1 4 5 6 7 8

UPPER ROOF 2
188'-2 7/8"

FF LEVEL B2
-26'-0"

FF B2 PARKING
LANDING HIGH

-17'-10"

FF B2 PARKING
LANDING MID

-23'-5 1/2"

32'-0"32'-0"32'-0"32'-0"73'-6"

ROOF TERRACE

RAMP

ROOF

TERRACE

AVERAGE GRADE

176.86

FF LEVEL 8

251.55

FF LEVEL  13

299.40

FF LEVEL  ROOF

356.86

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

7
4
'-
8

 3
/8

"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
2
2
'-
6
 3

/4
"

B
U

L
K

 H
E

IG
H

T
 L

IM
IT

1
8
0
'-
0
"

HIGHEST GRADE

179.55

LOWEST GRADE

174.38

OPEN TO ABOVE

2
'-
3

"

UPPER ROOF 1
186'-8 7/8"

32

STOR

ELEV. OVERRUN
191'-8 7/8"

PARKING

STAIR

DOMESTIC

HOT WATER

MAIN ELEC.

ROOM

VEST.

STAIR

MECH MECHTRASHSTAIR

IRRIGATION

WATER TANK MECH MECHTRASH

TRASH

STAIR

STAIR

PARKING

M
TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

ST
ST

STSTSTST STST ST2 BR 2BRST

ST
ST

STSTSTST STST 2BR
1BR

ST
ST

STSTSTST STST 2 BR
2 BR

ST
ST

STSTSTST
ST

ST 2 BR
2 BR

STSTST STST

ST STST
1BR

ST STST
1BR

ST STST
1BR

ST STST
1BR

2BR 1BR 2BR

2BR 1BR 2BR

2BR 1BR 2BR

2BR 1BR 2BR

2BR 1BR 2BR

1BR 2BR2BR

2BR

VEST.STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

STORAGE MPOE

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

STORAGE MECH

1
2
'-
0
"

1
2
'-
6
"

8
'-
6
"

FF LEVEL B2
PARKING PIT

-32'-6"

BO SLAB
-37'-6"

STSTSTSTSTST ST

2BR
2BR

1BR

1BR 1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR 1BR 1BR 2BR

2BR

2BR

2BR

2BR1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR
1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR
1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR1BR

1BR

1BR

1BR

ST

ST1BR

2BR

2BR

2BR

2 BR

2 BR

2 BR

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY

411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

3/32" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
8
 1

1
:0

4
:0

1
 A

M

15.0022.00

EAST/WEST BUILDING
SECTION

A-311

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

3/32" = 1'-0"1 330_East West Section

1 USE PERMIT COMMENTS 01 09/12/2016

VOID PITVOID VOID VOIDPIT PIT

EXHIBIT B
Page 113 of 162

117



SHATTUCK AVE

ALLSTON WAY

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1" = 20'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
6
:4

5
 P

M

15.0022.00

STREETSCAPE
ELEVATIONS

A-320

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1" = 20'-0"1 South Street Elevation

1" = 20'-0"2 East Street Elevations

EXHIBIT B
Page 114 of 162

118



Balcony Interior of unit

Thin brick cladding

Protruding mtl. 
frame at window

Steel railing 

Brick wrapped in at sill 
and soffit connects to 
vertical coursing at face 
of wall

Balcony 

Interior of unit

Wood screen, color: bronze 

Glass railing 

Interior of unit

Finn element, metal panel, color: bronze

Balcony 

Facade screen panel, alu silver 
annodized

Sill panel FRC, off-white

Balcony

PR III SHATTUCK LLC, A 
DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY
411 BOREL AVENUE
SUITE 405
SAN MATEO
CALIFORNIA 94402

650-349-1224 TEL

5

4

SAN FRAN CI SC O

CALIFORNIA 94107

415. 489.2 224 TEL

415.358.91 00 FAX
WWW W. RNSSTUDIO. OC M

01 SECOND STREET

TH LF ORO STE., 402

SHEET NO:

SHEET TITLE:

DATEISSUES

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

SCALE:

All drawings and written material appearing herein constitute original and unpublished work of the
Architect/Engineer and may not be duplicated, used or disclosed without consent of Architect/Engineer.

If this drawing is not 30"x42", then the drawing has been revised from its original size.
Noted scales must be adjusted.  This line should be equal to one inch

KEYPLAN

06/01/2016USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL

REVISION LIST# DATE

ZONING DISTRICT C-DMU CORRIDOR

06/15/2017PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL

02/15/2018DRC 3 - UPDATE DESIGN

03/15/2018DRC 4 - UPDATE DESIGN

04/19/2018DRC 5 - UPDATE DESIGN

10/25/2018USE PERMIT SET

1/2" = 1'-0"

1
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
8
 4

:5
6
:4

7
 P

M

15.0022.00

FACADES - DETAILS /
ENLARGED ELEVATIONS

A-400

10.25.2018

SHATTUCK
TERRACE GREEN
APARTMENTS
2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE, BERKELEY

1/2" = 1'-0"1 Plan Detail_Brick at Balcony
1/2" = 1'-0"2 Plan Detail_GFRC at Tower

EXHIBIT B
Page 115 of 162

119



EXHIBIT B
Page 116 of 162

120

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



EXHIBIT B
Page 117 of 162

121

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



SITE

EXHIBIT B
Page 118 of 162

122

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



EXHIBIT B
Page 119 of 162

123

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



EXHIBIT B
Page 120 of 162

124

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



ROOF LANDSCAPE PLANROOF LANDSCAPE PLAN

ROOF LEVEL 
LANDSCAPE PLAN

EXHIBIT B
Page 121 of 162

125

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Text Box



EXHIBIT B
Page 122 of 162

126

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



EXHIBIT B
Page 123 of 162

127

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



EXHIBIT B
Page 124 of 162

128

Goetz Frank (WRNS)
Snapshot



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 125 of 162

129



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 126 of 162

130



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 127 of 162

131



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 128 of 162

132



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 129 of 162

133



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 130 of 162

134



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 131 of 162

135



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 132 of 162

136



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 133 of 162

137



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 134 of 162

138



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 135 of 162

139



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 136 of 162

140



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 137 of 162

141



Z O N I N G 

A D J U S T M E N T S 

B O A R D 

S t a f f R e p o r t

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 
E-mail: zab@ci.berkeley.ca.us

FOR BOARD ACTION 
OCTOBER 25, 2018 

2190 Shattuck Avenue 
Use Permit #ZP2016-0117  to redevelop a 19,967 square-foot (0.46-acre) site 
at the northwest corner of Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way with a 
proposed 18-story building with 274 residential units above approximately 
10,000 square feet of ground floor retail space. One hundred and three (103) 
parking spaces would be provided in a two-level subterranean garage 
accessed from Allston Way. 

I. Background

A. Land Use Designations:
 General Plan:  Downtown (DT)
 Downtown Area Plan: Downtown Mixed-Use District, Core
 Zoning:  Downtown Mixed-Use District (C-DMU) Core Sub-Area

B. Required Permits:
 Use Permit for construction for demolition of a non-residential building, under BMC

23C.08.050.A
 Use Permit for construction of a new main building with mixed-use development,

under BMC 23E.68.030;
 Use Permit for construction of >10,000 sq. ft. gross floor area, under BMC

23E.68.050
 Use Permit to allow a maximum height of up to 180 feet, under BMC 23E.68.070.B
 Use Permit to allow a reduction in the required 5 foot rear yard setback for the

portion of the building between 20 and 75 feet in height, under BMC 23E.26.070.C
 Use Permit to allow that portion of the building over 120 feet to be greater than 120

feet in width when measured at the widest point on the diagonal in plan view, under
BMC 23E.68.070.C

 Use Permit to allow a reduced vehicle parking space requirement, under BMC
23E.68.080.D

 Use Permit for reduction of required parking spaces through payment of an in-lieu
fee to be used to provide enhanced transit services, under BMC 23E.68.080.D

 Administrative Use Permit to allow architectural projections (e.g. elevator
enclosures) to exceed the height limit, under BMC 23E.04.020.C

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 138 of 162

142

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/contentdisplay.aspx?id=488
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/dap/
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/?comp-Berkeley23E/Berkeley23E68/Berkeley23E68.html


ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 2 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

D. CEQA Determination:  An Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared to 
evaluate the potentially significant environmental impacts of the proposed project, 
pursuant to Article 7 the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The public 
review and comment period for the Draft EIR (DEIR) began on August 10, 2017 and 
ended on September 25, 2017. The Responses to Comments Document (RTC) was 
distributed on January 4, 2018. The ZAB certified the Final EIR (FEIR), which is 
composed of the DEIR and RTC, on January 25, 2018.  

 
E. Parties Involved: 

 Applicant Mill Creek Residential, Don Peterson, 411 Borel Avenue, 
Suite 405, San Mateo, CA 94402 

 Property Owner PR III Shattuck LLC, 2190 Shattuck Avenue, Berkeley, CA 
94704 

 Lead Agency City of Berkeley, Planning and Development Department, 
Land Use Planning Division, 1947 Center Street, 3rd Floor, 
Berkeley, CA 94704  

 
F. Application Materials, Staff Reports, Correspondence, and CEQA documents 

are available on the Internet:  
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Planning_and_Development/Zoning_Adjustment_Boa
rd/2190_Shattuck.aspx.  
 
  

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 139 of 162

143

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Planning_and_Development/Zoning_Adjustment_Board/2190_Shattuck.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Planning_and_Development/Zoning_Adjustment_Board/2190_Shattuck.aspx


ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 3 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

Figure 1: Vicinity Map 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 140 of 162

144



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 4 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

Figure 2:  Proposed Site Plan/Ground Level Floor Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 141 of 162

145



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 5 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

Figure 3:  Proposed South (Allston Way) Elevation 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 142 of 162

146



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 6 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

Figure 4:  Proposed East (Shattuck Avenue) Elevation 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 143 of 162

147



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 7 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

 
Table 1:  Land Use Information 

Location Existing Use Zoning District General Plan Designation 
Subject Property Retail/Commercial C-DMU, Core Downtown 

Surrounding 
Properties 

North Restaurant/Office C-DMU, Core Downtown 
South Hotel C-DMU, Core Downtown 
East Retail C-DMU, Core Downtown 

West Parking/Retail/Food 
Service 

C-DMU, Core Downtown 

 
Table 2:  Special Characteristics 

Characteristic Applies to 
Project? Explanation 

Affordable Child Care Fee for 
qualifying non-residential 
projects (Per Resolution 
66,618-N.S.) 

No 
The project does not involve construction of a building 
with a net increase of more than 7,500 square feet of 
commercial space. 

Affordable Housing Fee for 
qualifying non-residential 
projects (Per Resolution 
66,617-N.S.) 

No 
The project does not involve construction of a building 
with a net increase of more than 7,500 square feet of 
commercial space. 

Affordable Housing Mitigations 
for rental housing projects (Per 
BMC 22.20.065) 

Yes 
The project is subject to the affordable housing 
provisions of BMC 22.20.065 because it includes 5 or 
more dwelling units. 

Housing Accountability Act 
(Gov’t Code Section 65589.5) No 

The project is a “housing development project” 
consisting of a mixed-use building, but requests 
modifications to development standards. Therefore, the 
Act’s findings would not apply to this project if the City 
disapproved it or imposed a condition requiring a lower-
density development. See Section VI.H for discussion. 

Alcohol Sales/Service No No incidental service of beer and wine is proposed in 
the commercial space.  

Creeks (BMC Section 
17.08.045) Yes 

The project involves construction within 25 feet of the 
culverted Strawberry Creek. An investigation that 
confirms the distance between the edge of the project 
site and the culverted creek is required. Pursuant to 
Mitigation Measure GEO-1 in the certified Final EIR, 
excavation and temporary shoring will be designed to 
protect the culvert’s stability. 

Green Building Score Yes 

Minimum score is 60 for the required LEED Gold rating, 
and Maximum score is 110. Proposed project scores 
61 points on the LEED checklist for New Construction 
and Major Renovations checklist. 

Historic Resources Yes 

The new building would affect the setting of the 
proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District, 
including the adjacent Shattuck Hotel, which is a City of 
Berkeley Landmark. However, the certified Final EIR 
determined that associated impacts would be less than 
significant with mitigation incorporated. 

Oak Trees No None present. 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 144 of 162

148



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 8 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

Characteristic Applies to 
Project? Explanation 

Rent Controlled Units No 
The building proposed to be demolished does not 
include residential units. Newly constructed rental units 
would not be subject to rent control.  

Residential Preferred Parking No The site is not in a RPP zone. Thus, the project would 
not be eligible for RPP permits. 

Seismic Hazards (SHMA) No 

The project site is not subject to seismic hazards 
related to liquefaction, fault rupture, or landsliding, 
according to a Geotechnical Feasibility Report 
prepared for the project by ENGEO, Inc. in October 
2016. 

Soil/Groundwater 
Contamination Yes 

The project site is located in the City’s Environmental 
Management Area and subject to subject to the City’s 
Standard Conditions of Approval (SCA) for Toxics that 
requires preparation of a Soil and Groundwater 
Management Plan (SGMP). 

Transit Yes 

The project site is served by multiple bus lines (local, 
rapid, and transbay) that operate along Shattuck 
Avenue and other nearby roadways, and is adjacent to 
the Downtown Berkeley BART Station. 

 
Table 3:  Project Chronology 

Date Action 

June 13, 2016 Application submitted 

January 5, 2017 Notice of Preparation (NOP) released 

January 26, 2017 EIR scoping session at ZAB 

February 6, 2017 End of 30-day NOP comment period 

August 10, 2017 Publication of Draft EIR and Notice of Availability 

August 17, 2017 Preliminary design review at DRC 

September 7, 2017 Draft EIR discussion item at LPC 

September 14, 2017 Draft EIR comment hearing at ZAB 

September 25, 2017 Close of Draft EIR comment period 

January 4, 2018 Publication of Response to Comment Document 

January 25, 2018 ZAB hearing on Final EIR certification 

February 15, 2018 Continued preliminary design review at DRC 

March 15, 2018 Continued preliminary design review at DRC 

April 19, 2018 Continued preliminary design review at DRC, favorable recommendation 
received 

August 28, 2018 Application Deemed Complete 

October 10, 2018 Public Hearing Notices mailed/posted 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 145 of 162

149



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 9 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

October 25, 2018 ZAB hearing on Use Permit 

Table 4:  Development Standards 
Standard 
BMC Sections 23E.68.070-080 

Existing Proposed Permitted/Required 

Lot Area (sq. ft.) 19,967 19,967 -- 

Gross Floor Area (sq. ft.) 38,700 211,590 -- 

Floor Area Ratio 1.94 10.6 -- 

Total Dwelling Units 0 274 -- 

Building 
Height (ft.) 

Maximum ≈22 180 60 + 5 parapet 180 + 5 parapet 
(with Use Permit) 

Maximum Architectural 
Projection unknown 14 (With Administrative Use Permit) (1) 

Stories 2 18 -- 

Building 
Setbacks 

Front (Shattuck) 

0 
0 

n/a 
n/a 

0 
0 

15 
98 

Building height ≤20’: 0 - 5 max. 
Building height >20’≤75’: 0 min.  
Building height >75’≤120’: 15 
Building height >120’≤180’: 15 

Rear (west) 
5 

n/a 
n/a 

0 
0(2) 
15 

Building height ≤20’: 0 
Building height >20’≤75’: 5 

Building height >75’: 15 

Street Side (Allston) 0 0 -- 

Interior Side 
(distance from 
lot frontage) 

0-65’ 
0 

n/a 
n/a 

0 
5 

n/a 

Building height ≤75’: 0 
Building height >75’≤120’: 5 

Building height >120’: 15 

>65’ 
0 

n/a 
n/a 

0 
10 

15 

Building height ≤20’: 0 
Building height >20’≤75’: 5 

Building height >75’: 15 

Lot Coverage (%) 92 92 -- 

Usable Open Space 
(sq. ft.) 

Residential n/a 21,952 
80 per unit 
21,920 total 

Commercial 
(privately 
owned 
public open 
space) 

0 252 
1 per 50 sq. ft. 

200 total 

Parking 

Automobile 0 103 91 for DUs: 1:3 units 

15 for commercial: 1.5:1K sqft 

Vehicle Sharing 0 5 4 

Bicycle 0 99 5 for commercial: 1:2K sqft 

(1) No such architectural element shall represent more than fifteen percent (15%) of the average floor area of all of the building’s 
floors; and no tower or similar structure shall be used as habitable space or for any commercial purpose, other than that which may 
accommodate the mechanical needs of the building (BMC §23E.04.020.C) 
(2) All setbacks may be modified with a Use Permit (BMC §23E.68.070.C) 

 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 146 of 162

150



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 10 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

II. Project Setting 
 
A. Neighborhood/Area Description: The project site is located on the northwest corner 

of Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way, in the Downtown area. The site has frontage on 
Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way, and is adjacent to the southern edge of the Bay 
Area Rapid Transit (BART) Plaza associated with the Downtown Berkeley BART 
station. The project site is surrounded primarily by Downtown Berkeley commercial 
and institutional development in buildings ranging in height from one story (the Fresco 
Mexican Grill building at 2177 Shattuck Avenue) to 14 stories (the 180-foot First 
Savings/Great Western Building at 2150 Shattuck Avenue). Currently under 
construction is a 16-story hotel at 2129 Shattuck Avenue, at the northeast corner of 
Shattuck Avenue and Center Street. In 2015, an 18-story mixed use building was 
approved by the City one block south, on a site at 2211 Harold Way; this site is 
generally on the western portion of the block defined by Harold Way, Allston Way, 
Shattuck Avenue and Kittredge Street.  
 

B. Site Conditions:  The 19,967 square-foot (0.46-acre) project site is entirely covered 
by a two-story, approximately 38,700 square-foot retail and office building currently 
occupied by a Walgreens store on the ground floor. The first floor has retail space 
occupied by a drug store and pharmacy (Walgreens) and the second floor has 
administrative office (roundCorner) and electronics development and administration 
(Nokia) uses. The basement was occupied by Fast Response, a paramedics and 
phlebotomy training center, until December 2016, and is currently vacant. 

 
III. Project Description 

The project would involve demolition of the existing retail and office building and 
construction of an 18-story, approximately 211,590 square-foot mixed-use building. On 
the ground floor, the proposed building would have commercial retail space with a floor 
area of approximately 10,000 square feet, a residential lobby, and an adjacent 677 
square-foot community art space that would be available for community events. The retail 
space would front on the BART Plaza and wrap around to Allston Way. The applicant 
anticipates that Walgreens would return to the site after construction and occupy the 
ground-floor retail space. On the upper floors, the building would have 274 apartment 
units, ranging in size from micro-units to two-bedroom units (see Table 5). The upper 
floors would step back from Shattuck Avenue.  
 

Table 5:  Residential Unit Summary 

Unit Type Count Average Floor Area 
(square feet) 

Micro 57 389 

Studio 63 554 

1 Bedroom 93 611 

2 Bedroom 61 889 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 147 of 162

151



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 11 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

Total 274  

 
 
Motor vehicle parking would be provided in a two-level underground garage with 103 
parking spaces, including five car share spaces. Access would be provided from a 
driveway off Allston Way. Mitigation Measure T-4 from the certified Final EIR would 
require the inclusion of safety features at the driveway: a minimum sight distance and 
signage for drivers exiting the garage, pavement markings, convex mirrors for improved 
visibility, and visual/audio warning devices. Ninety-nine (99) bicycle parking spaces would 
be provided, including 94 spaces for residents and five for commercial users, along with 
a bicycle repair shop on the ground floor.  
 
The project would include 21,952 square feet of residential open space on rooftop terraces 
and gardens and private balconies for residents, 449 square feet of public open space on 
the site’s Allston Way frontage adjacent to the driveway and residential lobby, and 252 
square feet of private commercial open space at the retail entrance. Other improvements 
within and facing the public right-of-way would include enhanced stone paving, trees, 
planters, and benches on the sidewalk; and glass display cases along the building’s 
sidewalk frontage for art. In addition, seating and other pedestrian amenities may be 
provided at the BART Plaza in coordination with improvements planned by BART at that 
site. 
 

IV. Community Discussion 
 
A. Neighbor/Community Concerns:  Prior to submitting this application to the city, the 

applicant invited interested neighborhood organizations as well as owners and 
occupants within 300 feet of the project to a project preview meeting. The meeting was 
held on May 26, 2018 and attended by two people. Later, a pre-application poster was 
erected by the applicant in June 2016.  
 
As part of the CEQA process, the community has had multiple opportunities to provide 
input on the project and its environmental impacts. On January 5, 2017, the City mailed 
the Notice of Preparation (NOP) for an EIR to property owners and occupants, and to 
interested neighborhood organizations and the City posted notices within the 
neighborhood in three locations. On January 26, 2017, the City held a scoping session 
for the EIR at the ZAB. The City issued a Notice of Availability of the Draft EIR on 
August 10, 2017, followed by a hearing to take comments on the Draft EIR at the ZAB 
on September 14, 2017. On January 25, 2018, the City held a public hearing for 
certification of the Final EIR. 
 
On October 10, 2018, the City mailed public hearing notices to property owners and 
occupants, and to interested neighborhood organizations, and the City posted notices 
within the neighborhood in three locations. Since the writing of this staff report, staff 
has received two letters in opposition. All public correspondence can be found in 
Attachment 7. 

 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 148 of 162

152



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 12 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

B. Committee Review:   
 

1. Landmarks Preservation Commission: On November 3, 2016, the project was 
referred to the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) regarding demolition 
of a building greater than 40 years old, pursuant to BMC Section 23C.08.050.C. 
The LPC took no action to initiate a Landmark or Structure of Merit designation 
for the existing building on-site. 

 
2. Design Review Committee: On March 17, 2016, the Design Review Committee 

previewed the project and issued advisory comments with respect to neighborhood 
context, views, building design, and streetscape design. Beginning on August 17, 
2017, and continuing through three subsequent meetings to April 19, 2018, the 
Committee conducted a preliminary design review of the project. It provided 
advisory recommendations on building design refinements for the project to best fit 
into its urban and historic Downtown context. Among other modifications response 
to the Design Review Committee’s recommendations, the project team modified 
the massing at the southeast corners of both the midrise and upper levels. The 
corners have been clipped along the axis of the view corridor to narrow the profile 
of the building as seen from Campanile Way. At the April 19, 2018 meeting, the 
project received a favorable recommendation to ZAB for the building design, with 
several conditions (Attachment 6). 

 
V. Final Environmental Impact Report 

An Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act. The ZAB certified the Final EIR on January 25, 2018. 
 
The certified Final EIR identified significant environmental impacts that would result from 
implementation of the project and, where feasible, recommends mitigation measures to 
reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level. Impacts determined to be less than 
significant without mitigation were identified for the following topics: Aesthetics, 
Agriculture and Forest Resources, Biological Resources, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, 
Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Hydrology and Water Quality, Mineral Resources, 
Population and Housing, Public Services, Recreation, and Utilities and Service Systems. 
 
Impacts were determined to be less than significant with the implementation of mitigation 
measures for the following topics: Air Quality, Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, 
Land Use and Planning, Noise (excluding construction noise), Transportation and Traffic, 
and Tribal Cultural Resources, 
 
The EIR identified one significant and unavoidable impact from construction activity that 
would intermittently expose residences and businesses to elevated noise levels. This 
impact is consistent with the Downtown Area Plan EIR’s determination that new 
development in the Downtown Area as a whole would have a significant and unavoidable 
impact from construction noise. 

 
The CEQA Findings and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program are attached to 
this document as Attachment 1, Exhibit A and B 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 149 of 162

153



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 13 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

 
VI. Issues and Analysis 

 
A. Housing Accountability Act: The Housing Accountability Act §65589.5(j)  requires 

that when a proposed housing development complies with the applicable, objective 
general plan and zoning standards, but a local agency proposes to deny the project or 
approve it only if the density is reduced, the agency must base its decision on written 
findings supported by substantial evidence that: 

1. The development would have a specific adverse impact on public health or 
safety unless disapproved, or approved at a lower density;1 and 

2. There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific 
adverse impact, other than the disapproval, or approval at a lower density.  

 
Staff Analysis: The project would not meet all applicable development standards 
because it would require use permits to grant exceptions for a diagonal greater than 
120 feet in width above 120 feet in height, for a reduced rear yard setback for the 
portion of the building between 20 and 75 feet in height, for reduced parking, and for 
rooftop architectural projections exceeding the height limit of 180 feet, and to allow the 
maximum height of 180 feet. Therefore, §65589.5(j) does not apply to this project as 
proposed. 

 
B. Demolition of Existing Building: The proposed project includes the demolition of the 

commercial building currently located on-site. Pursuant to BMC Sections 22.12.060 
and 23C.08.050, the demolition of a commercial structure requires a demolition permit 
granted by the ZAB. In addition, pursuant to BMC Section 23C.08.050.C, any 
application for a permit to demolish a non-residential building or structure which is 40 
or more years old shall be forwarded to the LPC for review prior to the consideration 
of the use permit. 

 
Staff Analysis: The applicant anticipates that the existing retail tenant in the 
commercial building to be demolished, a Walgreens drug store and pharmacy, would 
temporarily relocate offsite during construction and then return after construction to 
occupy a proposed ground-floor commercial space of similar scale (10,000 square 
feet). This would provide continued operation by Walgreens after project construction. 
The LPC also reviewed the existing building and did not raise concerns about its 
historical value. Staff believes that the ZAB can find that the demolition of the 
commercial building would not be materially detrimental to the financial needs of the 
neighborhood or the City because the proposed project would provide replacement 
floor area on-site, as well as adding residential units Downtown to further activate the 
area and enhance local commercial activity.  
 
Analysis by staff concludes that the ZAB may make the necessary Use Permit findings 
of non-detriment for demolition of the existing structure under BMC Section 

                                            
1  As used in the Act, a “specific, adverse impact” means a “significant, quantifiable, direct and unavoidable 

impact, based on objective, identified written public health or safety standards, polices, or conditions as they 
existed on the date the application was complete. 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 150 of 162

154



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 14 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

23C.08.050.D. The proposed conditions of approval require that demolition of the 
existing building may not occur until complete construction plans are submitted to the 
City for the replacement building. 

 
C. Mixed Use Development: BMC Section 23E.68.030.A allows mixed-use 

development in the C-DMU District subject to the approval of a Use Permit and the 
ZAB making a finding of Non-Detriment listed in BMC Section 23B.32.040, and the 
findings listed in BMC Section 23E.68.090. The ZAB may rely on these findings to 
consider the building as a whole (specific features of this project are addressed later 
in this report). In order to approve this Use Permit the ZAB must find that the proposed 
use or structure would: 
 
1. Be compatible with the purposes of the District; and 
2. Be compatible with the surrounding use and buildings. 
 
The required findings are evaluated as follows: 
 
#1: Be compatible with the purposes of the District. 
 
Staff Analysis: The Project is within the C-DMU Downtown Mixed Use District, and as 
per Provisions of the BMC, the purpose of this district is to implement the vision and 
goals of the Downtown Area Plan (adopted 2012), which include: Environmental 
Sustainability, Land Use, Access, Historic Preservation and Urban Design, Streets and 
Open Space, Housing and Community Health and Services, and Economic 
Development. 
 
1. Environmental Sustainability: DAP Goals ES-1, ES-4, and ES-5 pertain to 

environmental sustainability and would apply to the project. 
 
 Goal ES-1: Integrate environmentally sustainable development and practices in 

Downtown, and in every aspect of the Downtown Area Plan. 
 Goal ES-4: Promote “green” buildings. 
 Goal ES-5: Promote ecologically beneficial landscaping and stormwater 

features throughout the Downtown, to filter pollutants found in urban runoff, 
protect and restore the health of connected watersheds, reduce downstream 
stormwater flows, and express the community’s commitment to environmental 
sustainability. 

 
Consistent with the above DAP goals, the project would integrate environmentally 
sustainable development and practices in the Downtown area. The project is on 
track to attaining a LEED Gold or equivalent certification. Evidence for such 
certification would be provided prior to issuance of building permits. 
 

2. Land Use: Policies under DAP Goals LU-1 and LU-2, which encourage a thriving 
and livable Downtown that is a focal point for the city and a major destination for 
the region, would apply to the project.  
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 151 of 162

155



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 15 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

 Policy LU-1.1: Encourage uses that allow people who live, work and learn in 
Downtown to meet daily needs on foot.  

 Policy LU-2.2: Developers of buildings in excess of 75 feet must provide 
significant community benefits beyond what would otherwise be required. 
These may include: affordable housing, supportive social services, green 
features, open space, transportation demand features, job training, and/or 
employment opportunities. The applicable public benefit requirements shall be 
included as conditions of approval and the owner shall enter into a written 
agreement that shall be binding on all successors in interest. 

 
Consistent with Policy LU-1.1, the project would provide encouraged retail 
commercial (10,000 square feet) and multi-family residential uses (274 units) in the 
Downtown Area. These uses would allow people who live, work and learn in 
Downtown to meet daily needs on foot. Consistent with Policy LU-2.2, the new 
mixed-use development would contribute its fair share toward Downtown 
improvements. It is anticipated that the project would generate approximately $12.0 
million in impact fees for affordable housing, schools, arts, and street and open 
space improvements. 

 
3. Access: Several DAP Goals related to access (AC-1, AC-2, AC-4, and AC-5) 

would apply to the project. 
 
 Goal AC-1: Improve options that increase access to Downtown on foot, by 

bicycle, and via transit. Make living, working, and visiting Downtown as car-free 
as possible. 

 Goal AC-2: Give pedestrians priority in Downtown, and make walking 
Downtown safe, attractive, easy and convenient for people of all ages and 
abilities. 

 Goal AC-4: Promote transit as an efficient, attractive choice and as a primary 
mode of motor-vehicle travel. 

 Goal AC-5: Maintain and enhance safe, attractive and convenient bicycle 
circulation within Downtown, and to and from surrounding areas, for people of 
all ages and abilities. Promote bicycling Downtown. 

 
Consistent with the above goals, the project would contribute towards making the 
Downtown area as car-free as possible. The project is located adjacent to the 
Downtown Berkeley BART station and multiple AC Transit lines run on Shattuck 
Avenue and Allston Way. This setting would allow for the proposed retail 
commercial use to encourage the use of transit services as primary modes of 
transportation for both their employees and patrons. A total of 99 bicycle parking 
spaces would be provided. In addition, transit passes would be provided to every 
employee and residential unit on-site, reducing demand for motor vehicle use and 
parking. 

 
4. Historic Preservation and Urban Design: DAP Goals HD-2, HD-3, and HD-4 are 

intended to preserve historic resources and would apply to the project. 
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 152 of 162

156



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 16 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

 Goal HD-2: Enhance areas of special character in Downtown, such as clusters 
of historic resources. 

 Goal HD-3: Provide continuity and harmony between the old and the new in the 
built environment. 

 Goal HD-4: Improve the visual and environmental quality of Downtown, with an 
emphasis on pedestrian environments that are active, safe and visually 
engaging. Encourage appropriate new development Downtown. 

 
Consistent with the above goals, the proposed building would be designed with 
ground-floor storefronts and continuous building street walls except for 
architectural expression at the site’s southeast corner and for usable open space. 
These features would provide for greater compatibility with nearby historic 
buildings in the proposed Shattuck Avenue Downtown Historic District. In addition, 
implementation of Final EIR Mitigation Measures CR-1a through CR-1e would 
enhance the compatibility of the proposed building’s cladding, void to wall patterns, 
roofline, and storefront windows with the adjacent, historic Shattuck Hotel.  
 
Figure HD-3 lists the project site as a Building called Contributing or Significant by 
BAHA Report, 1990 Downtown Plan, LPC List, or Design Guidelines. However, a 
Historical Resources Technical Report prepared for the project found that the 
existing commercial building on-site does not possess architectural merit and/or 
cultural, education, or historic interest or value. Therefore, its demolition would not 
have an adverse effect on historic preservation. 

 
5. Streets and Open Space: DAP Goal OS-1 promotes public open spaces and 

would apply to the project. 
 

 Goal OS-1: Enhance public open spaces and streets to benefit pedestrians, 
improve Downtown’s livability, and foster an exceptional sense of place. In 
particular, create new public gathering places that support nearby uses and 
Downtown as a destination. 

 
Consistent with DAP Goal OS-1, the project would enhance public open spaces 
and streets to benefit pedestrians, improve Downtown’s livability, and foster an 
exceptional sense of place. In particular, it would create new public gathering 
places that support nearby uses and Downtown as a destination. Streetscape 
improvements such as glass display cases for art and enhanced stone paving 
would strengthen Allston Way as a destination. A 677 square-foot community art 
space next to the residential lobby also would be available for community events. 
Sidewalks would be rebuilt consistent with the adopted Streets and Open Space 
Improvement Plan (SOSIP), and the project would pay its SOSIP fee, dedicated to 
public enhancement in the downtown. 

 
6. Economic Development: Several DAP goals to promote economic development 

would apply to the project. Goal ED-1, ED-3, ED-6, and ED-11: 
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 153 of 162

157



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 17 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

 Goal ED-1: Serve the needs of the neighborhood and the city. Make Downtown 
a more attractive regional destination, by building on Downtown’s unique blend 
of cultural, historic, entertainment, art, educational, and community institutions 
– and by promoting successful retail businesses and other attractions with 
daytime and nighttime populations to support them.  

 Goal ED-3: To make Downtown more attractive and economically successful, 
encourage place-making through the preservation of historic buildings, street 
and open space improvements, and high-quality new construction. Goal ED-6: 
Invest in civic improvements (such as streets, open spaces, and community 
facilities) to enhance Downtown as a place to live, work, and visit. 

 Goal ED-11: Provide access to Downtown, which supports retail, restaurants, 
entertainment, hotels and cultural uses.  

 
Consistent with Goal ED-1, the project would serve the needs of the neighborhood 
and the City by building on Downtown’s unique blend of cultural, historic, 
entertainment, art, educational and community institutions – and by promoting 
successful retail businesses and other attractions, with daytime and night-time 
populations to support them. The proposed glass display cases for art at the 
building’s Allston Way frontage and community art space would serve as 
destinations for artists and viewers. The project would replace the retail space in 
the existing building with a new ground-floor retail space of similar scale (10,000 
square feet), enabling Walgreens to relocate to the project site after construction.  
 
Consistent with Goals ED-3 and ED-6, the project would enhance Downtown as a 
place by streetscape improvements and high-quality new construction. The site’s 
Allston Way frontage would feature glass display cases for art integrated in the 
retail commercial storefront, enhanced stone paving on the sidewalk and along the 
curb, benches, planted trees, and bike racks. In addition, the project would provide 
direct financial support for affordable housing, schools, and street improvements 
through required fees and indirectly through increased economic activity. The 
project also would be required to pay its SOSIP fee, dedicated to public 
enhancement in the downtown. 
 
Consistent with Goal ED-11, the project would provide new residents with access 
to Downtown, which supports retail, restaurants, entertainment, hotels and cultural 
uses. 

 
For the reasons outlined above, staff believes that the project is consistent with the 
findings in BMC Section 23E.68.090.B.1. 
 
#2: Be compatible with the surrounding uses and buildings. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project would maintain continuity with and respect for the 
surrounding urban environment. Street wall height, cornice lines, human-scaled 
openings, and material would complement downtown’s traditional fabric. The 
building’s wall treatments would complement those of the adjacent, historic Shattuck 
Hotel. The street-level scale of neighboring buildings would be respected, as the 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 154 of 162

158



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 18 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

project would maintain a continuous street wall at the edge of the abutting streets up 
to where the building would step back toward the interior of the site. As shown in Figure 
3, at a height of approximately 72 feet (seven stories) above street level, the building 
would step back 15 feet from Shattuck Avenue and Allston Way. Above the 12th floor, 
the building would step back an additional 65 feet from Shattuck Avenue. This stepped 
massing is intended to minimize sight lines of the proposed 18-story tower from the 
perspective of people on Shattuck Avenue. The project’s proposed retail and multi-
family residential uses also are already found in Downtown Berkeley. 
 
For the reasons outlines above, staff believes that the project is consistent with the 
finding in BMC Section 23E.68.090.B.2. 

 
D. Construction of Over 10,000 Square Feet of New Floor Area: In order for any Use 

Permit to be granted under BMC Section 23E.68.050 for new floor area, the ZAB must 
find that the project meets the findings noted in BMC Section 23E.68.090.D of the 
Zoning Ordinance, which requires that: 
1. The addition or new building is compatible with the visual character and form of the 

District; and  
2. No designated landmark structure, structure of merit, or historic district in the 

vicinity would be adversely affected by the appearance or design of the proposed 
addition. 

 
Staff analysis: The project site is near the center of a dense downtown with buildings 
of varying heights, including two of similar height. Although most buildings around the 
project site range from two to five stories, two have similar height to the proposed 180-
foot building (the 180-foot First Savings/Great Western Building at 2150 Shattuck 
Avenue and the 173-foot Chamber of Commerce Building at 2140–2144 Shattuck 
Avenue). Construction of buildings in Downtown Berkeley has been ongoing for over 
one hundred years, with changes, modernizations and rehabilitations of older buildings 
and development of newer buildings at various points in time. New construction is part 
of an evolving downtown. The new building would retain retail façades at street level 
and have varied massing that would step back from Shattuck Avenue on upper floors. 
In addition, the proposed glass display cases for art and amenities like stone paving, 
planters, and benches would improve the Allston Way streetscape for pedestrians. 
Based on these characteristics, the DRC voted 5-1-0-0 on April 19, 2018, to forward a 
favorable recommendation on the project’s design to ZAB, with several conditions 
included (Attachment 6). Therefore, the new building would be compatible with the 
visual character and form of the District. 
 
No nearby Landmark buildings would be adversely affected by the appearance and 
design of the proposed structure. The EIR reviewed the project’s design to evaluate 
its possible impact on adjacent historic resources and concluded that the project 
created no significant adverse impact on these adjacent and nearby historic resources.  
 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 155 of 162

159



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 19 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

The new 18-story building would be visible from Campanile Way. While the building 
would adversely affect views from Campanile Way, it would not have a direct adverse 
effect on Campanile Way and the features within it on the UC Berkeley campus.  
 
Therefore, Staff concludes that the ZAB may find that the project is compatible with 
the visual character and form of the District and that no designated landmark in the 
vicinity would be adversely affected. 

 
E. Community Benefits: Exceedance of Building Height Limit of 120 Feet: Pursuant 

to BMC Section 23E.68.070.B, the ZAB may issue Use Permits for up to five buildings 
that exceed the limits set forth in BMC Section 23E.68.070.A if it makes the finding in 
BMC Section 23E.68.090.E.  

 
In order to approve a Use Permit for buildings over 75 feet in height, the ZAB must find 
that the project would provide significant community benefits, either directly or by 
providing funding for such benefits to the satisfaction of the City, beyond what would 
otherwise be required by the City (BMC Section 23E.68.090.E). These may include, 
but are not limited to: affordable housing, supportive social services, green features, 
open space, transportation demand management features, job training, and/or 
employment opportunities. The applicable public benefit requirements must be 
included as conditions of approval, and the owner shall enter into a written agreement 
that would be binding on all successors in interest. 
 
The applicant’s proposal may be found in Attachment 4, and is summarized below: 
 Project Labor Agreement. An agreement with all twenty eight member trades of 

the Alameda County Building Trades Council, without any trade or work 
exclusions.  Value: $5,547,020. Based on 5% of estimated construction costs, as 
per City Council Resolution 67,172 – N.S. 

 Community Space. A 677 square-foot community art space next to the residential 
lobby that would be available for community events. 

 
Staff Analysis: As a result of immediate access to BART, multiple bus lines, and walk-
to conveniences, provisions for the C-DMU District in the DAP’s Core Area allow three 
buildings up to 180 feet in height. The proposed project is the third application 
submitted for the three potential buildings over 120 feet (but not more than 180 feet) 
to be considered in the Core area. 
 
On July 14, 2015, City Council provided direction for determining significant community 
benefits (Resolution #67,172-NS). On August 13, 2018, the applicant submitted its 
community benefits proposal consistent with Option B of the City Council Resolution.  
 
Strategic Economics was commissioned by the City to peer review the applicant’s 
community benefits proposal and presented its results in a memorandum dated August 
28, 2018 (see Attachment 5). This review found that it is not reasonable to expect that 
the project could contribute additional community benefits fees beyond those 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 156 of 162

160



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 20 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

proposed by the applicant. Therefore, the project would provide significant community 
benefits to the City. 

 
F. Reduced Rear Setback for Portion of Building Between 21 and 75 Feet in Height: 

BMC 23E.68.070.C requires a Use Permit to allow a modification to the prescribed 
setbacks, subject to the required findings in 23E.68.090.F.  

 
Staff Analysis: The project proposes a 0’ rear yard (west) setback for the portion of the 
building at the height between 21 and 75 feet (levels three through seven) where a 
minimum of 5 feet is required. Up to 11 residential units on each of these floors would 
encroach into the southern interior side setback. As the portion of the building that 
encroaches into the prescribed setback is narrow (five feet in width), located on floors 
three through seven, and located north of Allston Avenue and away from Shattuck 
Avenue, the massing encroachment would provide a negligible increase in solar 
access on the public sidewalk. Shadow diagrams presented in Appendix A of the Draft 
EIR indicate that the building would partially shade Allston Way at street level during 
summer mornings, while partially shading Allston Way, the north side of the Shattuck 
Hotel, and a retail commercial building east of the hotel during summer afternoons. 
The setback encroachment would have a minimal contribution to these shadows. 
Therefore, Staff believes that it would not unreasonably limit solar access. 
 
The Wind and Comfort Impact Analysis in the Draft EIR prepared for the project found 
that wind accelerations generated by the building would be located over rooftops of 
adjacent buildings or at decks and terraces within the building itself. It is not expected 
that the building would significantly affect ground-level winds. Therefore, Staff believes 
that the building’s extension beyond setback standards would not significantly 
increase winds on the public sidewalk. The request for a reduced rear yard setback 
between 21 and 75 feet above grade is consistent with the finding in 23E.68.090.F. 

 
G. Diagonal Greater than 120 Feet in Width at 120 Feet Above Ground: The project 

requires a Use Permit under BMC Section 23E.68.070.C for the portion of the building 
above 120 feet in height that exceeds 120 feet in width (for floors 13 through 18). By 
code, the portion of a building over 120 feet in height must be less than 120 feet in 
width when measured at the widest point on the diagonal in plain view, unless 
approved with a Use Permit, subject to the Board making a finding noted in Section 
23E.68.090.F of the Zoning Ordinance, which states that modified setbacks will not 
unreasonably limit solar access or create significant increases in wind experienced on 
the public sidewalk. 

  
Staff Analysis: Staff has determined that the ZAB could find that the project would 
comply with Section 23E.68.090.F. Shadow modeling diagrams included in Appendix 
A of the Draft EIR for the project show that the new building would not unreasonably 
limit solar access. In addition, the Wind and Comfort Impact Analysis determined that 
the project would not substantially increase ground-level winds. 

 
H. Parking Waiver, Parking In-Lieu Fee: In order to approve a Use Permit to allow a 

reduction of required vehicle parking spaces required by BMC Section 23E.68.080.D, 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 157 of 162

161



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 21 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

the ZAB must find that the applicant will pay an in-lieu fee to a fund established by the 
City that provides enhanced transit services. 

 
Staff Analysis: The project would provide 103 parking spaces for residential use and 
zero parking spaces for commercial use. The 103 parking spaces for residential use 
exceed the required 91 spaces (based on a ratio of 1 parking space per 3 dwelling 
units pursuant to BMC Section 23.68.080.B). The project would not provide the 
required 15 commercial parking spaces (based The Zoning Ordinance allows payment 
of an in-lieu fee as an alternative to meeting parking demand on-site. The fee schedule 
adopted by the Council by resolution (66,178 – N.S) sets the fee at $15,000 per space 
for spaces 1-5 waived or reduced and $20,000 per space for spaces 6-15 waived or 
reduced. Payment of the fee for a reduction of 15 spaces is required as a Condition of 
Approval. The money would be deposited in the parking in-lieu fee fund created for 
this purpose and managed by the Transportation Planning Division, Public Works 
Department. The project meets the finding required in BMC 23E.68.090.H to waive the 
parking as the project would pay the required in-lieu fee for the shortfall in parking 
spaces, which would finance improved transit services. 

 
I. Rooftop Architecture, Height Modification: BMC Section 23E.04.020.C requires an 

Administrative Use Permit for rooftop projections including mechanical penthouses, 
elevator equipment rooms and other architectural features which exceed a District’s 
height limit. No such structure shall represent more than fifteen percent (15%) of the 
average floor area of all the building’s floors; and no tower or similar structure shall be 
used as habitable space or for any commercial purposed, other than that which may 
accommodate the mechanical needs of the building. 

 
Staff Analysis: The proposed elevator and stairwell enclosures would exceed the 
height limit of 180 feet by up to approximately 10 feet. In addition, solar hot water 
panels would be installed on top of the elevator enclosure and a stairwell enclosure. 
These panels would not substantially exceed the height of enclosures. The elevator 
extension and stairwell enclosures are necessary to serve maintenance of the building. 
The solar hot water panels would reduce the building’s energy demand and assist in 
attainment of LEED Gold certification. An Administrative Use Permit may allow the 
height of these projections if their enclosed area is less than 15% of the average floor 
area of the building. Enclosed rooftop structures exceeding the height limit would total 
1,236 square feet, which is approximately 9% of the average floor area. The AUP to 
approve the rooftop projections is, therefore, permissible.  

 
J. Views: The City received a number of public comments on the Draft EIR expressing 

concerns about the project’s effect on scenic views of the Bay and the Golden Gate 
from the historic Campanile Way. The certified Final EIR included detailed topical 
responses to these comments. In summary, the project would partially block views of 
the Bay, Alcatraz Island, and the Golden Gate Bridge from various points at the base 
of the Campanile and along Campanile Way. Although the view would not be 
completely blocked from any viewpoint, obstruction would range from zero to 
approximately 75 percent of the view depending on the viewpoint location. Obstruction 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 158 of 162

162



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE 
October 25, 2018 Page 22 of 22 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Shattuck\2190\ZP2016-0117_high rise\Document Finals\ZAB 2018-10-25 - Use Permit\2018-10-
25_ZAB_SR_2190 Shattuck.docx  

of views would be greatest from the upper portion of Campanile Way to the steps of 
the Campanile tower. 
 
The westward view that would be altered is a character-defining feature of a historic 
resource (Campanile Way) that has been identified as a contributing element to the 
historic cultural landscape of the Classical Core of the UC Berkeley campus. Although 
the project would partially obstruct this view, it would not materially impair Campanile 
Way or the Classical Core of the UC Berkeley campus itself. Therefore, the obstruction 
of views would not significantly degrade the historic cultural landscape. 
 
DAP Policy UD-31 – Views states that construction “should avoid blocking significant 
views, especially ones toward the Bay, the hills, and significant landmarks such as the 
Campanile, Golden Gate Bridge, and Alcatraz Island…” As the project would partially 
obstruct scenic views toward the bay from Campanile Way, it would be inconsistent 
with this policy to some extent. Nevertheless, as discussed above, staff believes that 
the required findings for approval for the project can still be made. 

 
VI. Recommendation 
 

Because of the project’s consistency with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan, and 
minimal impact on surrounding properties, staff recommends that the Zoning Adjustments 
Board: 
 

A. ADOPT CEQA associated findings, statement of overriding considerations and the 
mitigation monitoring and reporting program (see Attachment 1, Exhibit A & B); and 
 

B. APPROVE Use Permit ZP2016-0117, pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.040 and 
subject to the attached Findings and Conditions (see Attachment 1). 

 
Attachments: 
 
1. Findings and Conditions 

Exhibit A:  Findings of Fact Regarding Environmental Impacts, Mitigation Measures, 
Alternatives and Overriding Considerations 

Exhibit B:   Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  
2. Project Plans, dated October 25, 2018 
3. Notice of Public Hearing 
4. Community Benefits Proposal, dated August 13, 2018, with associated Feasibility 

Analysis Memorandum prepared by EPS, dated August 10, 2018 
5. Peer Review of Community Benefits Proposal, prepared by Strategic Economics, dated 

August 28, 2018 
6. Design Review Committee Recommendation, dated April 19, 2018 
7. Correspondence Received 
 
 
Staff Planner: Leslie Mendez, Senior Planner, lmendez@CityofBerkeley.info, (510) 981-7426 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 159 of 162

163

mailto:lmendez@CityofBerkeley.info


 
Administrative Record 

ZAB Appeal: 
2190 Shattuck Ave 

 
 
 

 
 
 
This attachment is on file and available for review at 
the City Clerk Department, or can be accessed from 
the City Council Website.  Copies of the attachment 
are available upon request. 
 

 
 

City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
or from:  
 
The City of Berkeley, City Council’s Web site 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil/ 

Attachments 4-5 

164



ATTACHMENT 6

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING – BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM,

1231 ADDISON STREET

ZAB APPEAL: USE PERMIT #ZP 2016-0117, 2190 SHATTUCK AVENUE

Notice is hereby given by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that on THURSDAY 
JANUARY 31, 2019 at 6:00 P.M. a public hearing will be conducted to consider an appeal of 
a decision by the Zoning Adjustments Board to approve Use Permit #2016-0117, to 
redevelop a 19,967 square-foot (0.46-acre) site at the northwest corner of Shattuck Avenue 
and Allston Way with a proposed 18-story building with 274 residential units above 
approximately 10,000 square feet of ground floor retail space.

A copy of the agenda material for this hearing will be available on the City’s website at 
www.CityofBerkeley.info as of January 24, 2019

For further information, please contact Leslie Mendez, Project Planner at (510) 981-7426.
Written comments should be mailed or delivered directly to the City Clerk, 2180 Milvia Street, 
Berkeley, CA 94704, in order to ensure delivery to all Councilmembers and inclusion in the 
agenda packet.  

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of the 
City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-
mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but 
if included in any communication to the City Council, will become part of the public 
record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made 
public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the City 
Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not 
include that information in your communication.  Please contact the City Clerk at 981-6900 or 
clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further information.

__________________________________
Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Mailed: January 17, 2019

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny(Code Civ. Proc. 1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 65009(c)(5) an appeal, the 
following requirements and restrictions apply: 1) Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6, 
no lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny or approve a Zoning Adjustments Board decision may be 
filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed.  
Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against 
a City Council decision to approve or deny a Zoning Adjustments Board decision, the issues and 
evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a public hearing 
or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

If you challenge the above in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone 
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the 
City of Berkeley at, or prior to, the public hearing.  Background information concerning this proposal will 

Page 161 of 162

165

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


ATTACHMENT 6
be available at the City Clerk Department and posted on the City of Berkeley webpage prior to the public 
hearing. 

Page 162 of 162

166



 
 

Communications 
 

 
 
 
 

All communications submitted to the City Council are 
public record.  Communications are not published directly 
to the City’s website.  Copies of individual communications 
are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department and 
through Records Online. 
 
City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
Records Online 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline 
 
To search for communications associated with a particular City Council 
meeting using Records Online: 



1. Select Search Type = “Public – Communication Query (Keywords)” 
2. From Date: Enter the date of the Council meeting 
3. To Date: Enter the date of the Council meeting (this may match the 

From Date field) 
4. Click the “Search” button 
5. Communication packets matching the entered criteria will be 

returned 
6. Click the desired file in the Results column to view the document as 

a PDF 
 


	01-31 Special Agenda
	2019-01-31 Item 01 ZAB Appeal 2190 Shattuck
	2019-01-31 Communications



